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Happiness 1 is the “five-dimensional happiness service system” created by Shinsun Property through insight and exploration
of the service needs of urban families, adhering to the brand concept of “personalized happiness in every sense”, covering
five core service contents: happiness tribe, happiness space, happiness community, happiness service and happiness
neighborhood, and is dedicated to providing customers with an all-age, all-cycle Shinsun-style happiness life experience.
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Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (the “Company” or “Shinsun”, which
together with its subsidiaries, is referred to as the “Group” or “We")
is a fast-growing, large-scale, comprehensive real estate developer in
the People’s Republic of China (“China” or the “PRC") focusing on the
development of quality residential properties in selected regions in China.
Headquartered in Shanghai and deeply rooted in Zhejiang Province, the
Group has established a leading market position in Zhejiang Province
through over 20 years of development. The Company was successfully
listed (the “Listing”) on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 November 2020 (the “Listing
Date”).

Adhering to the vision of becoming a “happy life operator”, the Group
offers different series of properties to cater to the varying needs of its
target customers, from first-time purchasers and first-time upgraders to
subsequent upgraders and high-net-worth customers. Through years of
research and development, we have developed four series of residential
properties, including Arbor series (## %) targeting first-time purchasers,
Mansion series (7 &) targeting first-time upgraders, Cloud series (&%
%) targeting subsequent upgraders, and Top series (Top &) targeting
high-net-worth customers seeking luxury lifestyles with high degrees of
privacy. Leveraging the Group’s brand and experience in developing quality
residential properties, it has also built a growing portfolio of diversified
commercial properties, covering office buildings, shopping centers,
community businesses and hotels. We have also developed our” Shinsun
Town” (¥ 4 /]N§8) model under which we design featured projects
comprising residential and commercial properties based on the motto of
“living-friendly, business-friendly, tourism friendly and retirement-friendly”
(BEF - H¥ Hir HE).
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RE B YR ERRERARTIE M RIZEL The Group adopts a proactive and standardized approach to its property
Tk WEEE FEHRIBBEATENRN development processes and has established a three-tier organizational
H=EHEMERE UR—ERENEILRE structure, including its headquarters, business units and project companies,

WEMEIMNKEREPRESZZRENE as well as a set of standardized operational protocols covering each process
EALBIERE - from site selection and land acquisition to property delivery and after-sales

customer services.

REEBBREBEMSREEL  ERARQA The Group will adjust its corporate development strategy in a timely
BREE - LR EERRERE - manner in light of market environment changes to better cope with future

developments.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD. 3
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

The late Mr. Chen Guoxiang (passed away on 16 April 2023)
Mr. Chen Hongni (Acting Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Han Bo (resigned on 14 November 2022)
Mr. Zhao Leiyi (resigned on 14 November 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kon Man Jason (resigned on 31 January 2022)
Mr. Ding Jiangang (resigned on 17 November 2023)

Mr. Ma Hongman
Mr. Hung Yuk Miu (appointed on 1 March 2022)

Mr. Wang Guozhen (appointed on 11 December 2023)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Hung Yuk Miu (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Guozhen
Mr. Ma Hongman

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Guozhen (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Hongni
Mr. Ma Hongman

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chen Hongni (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Guozhen
Mr. Ma Hongman

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong Willie

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chen Hongni
Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong Willie

AUDITOR

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai
Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
Rooms 1901A-1905, 19/F

8 Observatory Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

Xiangsheng New Century Plaza Commercial Building
No. 195 Zhuluo East Road

Zhuji City

Zhejiang Province

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre
No. 248 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited Zhuji branch
China Minsheng Bank Ningbo Cixi branch

Bank of China Tiantai Count branch

Ping An Bank Hangzhou West Lake branch

WEBSITE

www.shinsunholdings.com

STOCK CODE

02599

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.
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MILESTONES AND AWARDS

1 @R 202Q2FAERNNER 1 Golden Building Award — 2022 Best Real Estate Enterprises by Delivery
Competitiveness

2 2022 BEMREREE TOP4O 2 2022 China Real Estate Enterprises Top 40 by Comprehensive Strength

3 2022FBIEREMEIPES 4 3 2022 China Real Estate Enterprises Top 10 by Brand IP Operation

4 2022%EIEMERBEEHERDE 4 2022 China Real Estate Enterprises TOP 100 by Brand Influence

5 20224 BIEGRN@EETIER T34 5 2022 China Real Estate Enterprises Top 10 by Delivery Brand
Benchmarking Projects

6 FBLEMIZRZHE 6 The 7th Zhejiang Charity Award

HEZR(RE)BRAE —T-_FFRH
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MILESTONES AND AWARDS

7 2022 China Real Estate Enterprises Top 30 by Brand Value

8 2022 China Luxury Home Products Series Top 10 by Brand Value

9 2022 National Top 500 Zhejiang Enterprises
10 2022 China Real Estate Enterprises Top 10 by Social Responsibility

11 2022 21st Century Excellent Golden-Brick Cases by Real Estate
Competitiveness

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.
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BE-_Z-_—f+-_A=1+—HIFE
AHHEERNAARE

Contracted sales amounted to approximately RMB

25,629.9 B & 7t million
for the year ended 31 December 2022

REFEBATRELD
decreased by approximately 68.1%

as compared with the corresponding period

in the previous year

BE_Z__F+-_HA=+—RHILFE
WM B AR
Total revenue amounted to approximately RMB

19,701.0 B & st million
for the year ended 31 December 2022

BEFERBATRELDY
decreased by approximately 54.9%
as compared with the corresponding period
in the previous year

BE_Z-__F+_HA=+—RHItFE
EmBEN /AR
Total equity was approximately RMB

7,247.79 A & 7t million
for the year ended 31 December 2022

BT —FREPTE
decreased by 57.2%
as compared with the corresponding
period in 2021.

HE-_Z-_—F#+-A=+—RHIFE
ARBERBERARE
The interest-bearing liabilities of
the Company amounted to RMB

28,583.7 & & s million
for the year ended 31 December 2022

BEFFRTER
decreased by approximately 16.9%
as compared with the end of last year.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2022 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD. 9



10

BEAYEEE

MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS

TRV AEBR _ZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—

The following table sets out details of the Group’s major property

HEARYMEREIBEE S - development projects as at 31 December 2022.
etk
AR BEER BB /#it
EH rEEELESE B (FHK) (EHXK) t#AR BIARH
Equity Total Actual/
interest Occupied  attributable estimated
attributable area GFA completion
Project to the Group  Location (sq.m.) (sq.m.)  Land use date
REERD 83% FEBRMR LEWILAEDTRRERAKEILE 37414 28417356  AE-EE-HA 311122026
Shanghai Xiangsheng The project is located at the easter side of Siping Residential,
Center Road and the northern side of Tianshui Road, commercial and
Hongkou District, Shanghai City office
RERCIREAR 70% ERAEHERIAL S 2318507 26648447 (% 30/6/2024
Zhuji Shinsun Jiangnanli The northern side of Shinan Road of Jiyang Residential Residential
(East) District, Ma Village
FERERT L 100% #EMHA=ERPSIRTHBREL 240K 207,04300 33001021 HE -#FE 31/8/2024
Zhuji Shinsun City Light About 240 meters east of Zhongyi Gloria Garden, Residential and
Zhusan West Road, Zhuji City commercial
EMEERNEE 100% BHHREETEALEREIXOAR60K 10510900  271977.10 % &% 30/11/2024
Quzhou Shinsun Xiyue Villa 160 meters southwest of the intersection of Sanjiang Residential and
West Road and Longyou Road, Kecheng District, commercial
Quzhou
ERHAENER 100% ERTHMREWEENF 7032100 21525197 = 21172024
Ningbo Shinsun Yuehaitang Yimen Village, Jiangshan Town, Yinzhou District, Residential
Ningbo
HEZER(EE)ERAT —T-_FFRH
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS

JEfk 4
AR BEER Y /Rt
R rEEEGRE (B (EHX) (EHK) AR BIARS
Equity Total Actual/
interest Occupied  attributable estimated
attributable area GFA completion
Project tothe Group  Location (sq.m.) (sq.m.)  Land use date
MMEETINEMER 80% MMTEENECGEE  LEREE BEURLE - 7961700 29240620 (EE HE 22/82023
REERLE HEKEE
Hangzhou Shinsun Baiyang Street, Qiantang New District, Hangzhou: Residential and
Jiangshanyun Yuenan north to Yinhai Street, west to Wencong North commercial
Mansion Road, east to Yunhai North Road, south to
Shuiyun Street
NS TLERLR 100% MMTEEREEGEE: REUME BEEME - 5730000 20450850 HE 8/9/2023
BEKEH
Hangzhou Shinsun Baiyang Street, Qiantang New District, Hangzhou: east Residential
Jiangshanyun Yuebei to Wencong North Road, West to Chunxin Road,
Mansion South to Shuiyun Street
MMEETILEHAR 100% MMTEENEAGEE  LEHRE BEXCTME - 40031.00 13931740 (% H% 2711212023
RERIMK
Hangzhou Shinsun Baiyang Street, Qiantang New District, Hangzhou: Residential and
Jiangshanyun Yuexi north to Xinnong Road, west to Wengianfan Road, commercial
Mansion east to Chunxin Road
BERER 100% REFERAE BEEH BEEHIHL 90,007.00 30402023 GFE-EEF 30/4/2024

Sugian Shinsun Mansion

TEERE-ER)E

East to Xichu Avenue, south to open space, west
to Huangpujiang Road, north to Suyu No. 1
Experimental Primary School

Residential and
commercial

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.
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ACTING CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

BFEUBRR :

AABREEEER (E@) ARAFNES
(IZE=2Ng((ESg))  MAZMAEEE
E-E - —HF+-_A=+—HIFE(AH
FEDOFEEE -

™ 3% B B8

TECF 2EZWRENRE BHED
BRERH BHERERERKELTR -
BHRE BEFHE HETE BERH
LSREMENABRARE  FERERELL 2
FEREEEARLKIBER26.7%  &F
FARFLEE T ZHK - TRAIEZHRE
HERK BEPZEIEREN - BE M
WE  WABHTR BETRSHRATE
REBEBHRE K mBEYRNBERE
H—EBENEH - REBERERR B
RANMNAHATISRERELIMEN  BEH
REFEKEHERCREEEE  BHONE
RIEIE N - 1T EFFEUAE -

HEER(EB)ARRR T _FFRH

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd., | am pleased to present the Group’s
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Relevant
Year”).

MARKET REVIEW

In 2022, the pandemic recurred in various regions of China, the real estate
market performance was weak, and the investment and demand in real
estate lacked confidence. The situation deteriorated cyclically with inter-
changing negative feedback among factors such as the crash-down of
many real estate enterprises, customers’ wait-and-see attitude, sales decline
and difficulties in financing. Annual sales of commercial housing dropped
by 26.7% year-on-year. Despite the several rounds of sales facilitating
policies with different focuses introduced by the government during the
year, customers were affected by the frequent outbreaks of pandemics,
project non-deliveries, falling income expectations and declining property
prices, etc., resulting in investor sentiment dropping to freezing low,
and the market was unable to recover vigorously like the previous cycles.
Financial institutions were overly risk-averse, and domestic and foreign
open market financing channels for real estate enterprises were nearly
shut down, resulting in a double squeeze on financing and operating cash
flow and leading to a significant increase in defaulting enterprises and
continuous contraction of the industry.
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REXFE®RSE
ACTING CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group continued to operate steadily to ensure barrier-free completion
and delivery. We completed the delivery of 20 projects in 2022 successfully
with a delivery area of approximately 2.08 million sq.m. and 13,291 units
were delivered. Affected by the overall sluggish market environment, as
of 31 December 2022, the Group’s annual contracted sales amounted to
approximately RMB25.6 billion, representing a decrease of approximately
68.1% as compared to 2021. Our gross profit amounted to approximately
RMB1,737.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately 63.1% as
compared to 2021. Our gross profit margin was 8.8% as compared to
10.8% in 2021. The land bank area held was approximately 9.71 million
sg.m., representing a decrease of approximately 53.3% as compared to
2021.

OUTLOOK FOR 2023

Looking forward, the government of the PRC will put more efforts to
propelling stable economic growth and will firmly position real estate as a
pillar industry of the national economy. Therefore, governments at all levels
are gradually introducing many policies to support the overall economic
development and stabilize the real estate industry, and the external
environment is expected to improve.

With the recovery of China’s economy, customers’ sentiment toward home
ownership is expected to pick up gradually. However, it will take time for
the economy as well as the expectations of the upstream and downstream
industry chains, such as home buyers, financial institutions, suppliers, etc.,
to recover and it will take even longer time to translate them into improved
corporate cash flow and restoration of the ability to invest, hence, the
industry still has a long way to pass the cold spring. It is the Group’s primary
business goal to maintain operational liquidity, solve various problems and
surmount difficulties in an orderly manner to ensure smooth completion of
project delivery.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The achievements of the Group in 2022 cannot be made without the
support and trust of all shareholders, customers and partners, as well as
the hard work and dedication of all employees. On behalf of the Board, |
would like to express our most sincere gratitude to all of you.

Looking ahead, the Group will hold firmly to its mast of sail, and
relentlessly strive and move forward with dedication to create higher
value for shareholders and investors, provide better products and services
for consumers, and practice public welfare and deliver positive energy to
enhance social well-being.

Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd.
Chen Hongni
Acting Chairman of the Board
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BE+=-B=+—HLHFE
For the year ended
31 December

—E-CF T BHOLEH
Change in
2022 2021 Percentage
ERHEERMED Contracted sales Mote
FEAEEEGNEOEER Contracted sales attributable to
(AR¥ETF ) Wan the Group’s interests (RMB'000) Nete D 25,629,866 80,331,016 (68.1)%
EEAEEESNDE Contracted GFA sold attributable to
AHEEEmE (FHK) the Group’s interests (sq.m.) 2,055,602 5,946,696 (65.4)%
BEASEEENED Contracted average selling price (“ASP")
FHEE(FHEED attributable to the
(AR¥T/FHK) Group’s interests (RMB/sg.m.) 12,468 13,509 (7.7%
MEERREE Selected financial information
W (ARETFIT) Revenue (RMB’000) 19,701,040 43,719,028 (54.9)%
EF(ARETIT) Gross profit (RMB’000) 1,737,201 4,706,222 (63.1)%
FREER), B8R (AREFIT)  (Loss)/Profit for the year (RMB'000) (3,926,577) 480,675 (916.9)%
2Ot (E18) /B a2 Core net (loss)/profit Mote2
(ANR¥EFTT) (RMB’000) (2,130,646) 479,940 (544.0)%
ARRER ARILERE Loss attributable to owners of the
(ANR¥EFTT) Company (RMB’000) (3.878,628) (215,363) 1,701.0%
FE T I (%) Wi Gross profit margin (%) Mete3) 8.8% 10.8%
Bl (518) /B FR (%) ™= Core net (loss)/profit margin (%) Nete® (10.8%) 1.1%
T (EE) (EAREE) (Loss) per share (basic and diluted)
(ANRES) (RMB cents) (127) (7)
FEizOEE (EARREE) Core loss per share (basic and diluted)
(ANRES) (RMB cents) (127) (7)

REZR(EE)ERAR —F-—44H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

W+=A=+-8
As at 31 December

—B-C —F— B EE

Change in

2022 2021 Percentage

BEEARETIT) Total assets (RMB’000) 116,732,843 145,743,132 (19.9)%
Re RIBITHER Cash and bank balances

(AR TFT) Wis) (RMB’00Q) (Note 5) 4,645,193 8,448,078 (45.0)%

EEE(ARETx) W= Total indebtedness (RMB'000) Mote ® 28,583,651 34,386,436 (16.9)%

=B E(ARBTT) Total equity (RMB’000) 7,247,789 16,952,356 (57.2)%

RRRHEB AR Equity attributable to owners of the

Ezm (ANREFT) Company (RMB’000) 3,868,492 7,717,713 (49.9)%

FEEB B R Net gearing ratio Mete? 330.3% 153.0%

DN G E TG KA (%) 1) Weighted average costs of

indebtedness (%) Note 8 7.8% 8.8%

B 3 Notes:

(1) GRHERERBERAEBERENENHEE - 44 (1) Contracted sales include contracted sales attributable to the Group’s interests. Contracted
HEHBACEZURBEAEENBERFER sales data is unaudited and is prepared based on internal information of the Group.
%FH&%&#%’iﬁﬂiﬁ&ﬁP FESENEER Contracted sales data may be subject to various uncertainties during the process of collating
£ ZEEANHEBBREHRREERE - such sales information and is provided for investors’ reference only.

(2) HOMEBBEMRIREYERRATEFABR (2) Core net loss represents the net loss excluding changes of fair value of investment properties
MEeREENDNTEZE  BX W EE -8 and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, foreign exchange gains/losses, loss
U1 B I8 B AR K MANBREIE B IR () 4B 18 - on forfeited land development projects and net of deferred taxes. Core net profit represents
@/E\é@*‘l?ﬁ%ﬁlﬂ?&ﬁ%%&?ﬁ NEEFABTH the net profit excluding changes of fair value of investment properties and financial assets
SRMEENATEZS EXWE BERLEN at fair value through profit or loss, foreign exchange gains/losses and listing expenses, net
X EMBRERENAET - BHETAQARIE of deferred taxes. To supplement the Company’s financial statements, which are presented
ERMBHmELR ([FEMBREEN]) 2| in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), the Company
BIs R - A DR INMERZFFEEIEEA also uses core net profit/loss as an additional financial measure, which is not required by,
—IBREIN TS IEAE - Lttﬁﬂ%?ﬂ?%ﬁﬁ#%?éﬁﬂ%iﬁ or presented in accordance with the HKFRS. The Company believes that the presentation
EREREK - TRIFRBEBM G MELEA 2 of core net profit/loss, being a non-HKFRS measure, will facilitate the evaluation of financial
215 AIRA - 2R FFIEEE 1”!57%*15 3!5 performance of the Group by excluding potential impact of certain non-operating and non-

%Eﬁﬁa‘tﬁ%ﬁ,ﬁ‘J 2 Hﬁﬁﬁjﬁ/\ﬁﬂ}ﬁ recurring items. However, the presentation of the adjusted profit is not intended to be

BE TGS M MR EIEIRE MBEZ BRG] (and should not be) considered in isolation or as a substitute for the financial information
HAREENTBES - Am - T8 (KT E) 85 prepared and presented in accordance with the HKFRS. Shareholders and potential investors
EEEMABREBIE b TEBEEAREES of the Company should not view the non-HKFRS measure (i.e. the core net profit/loss) on a
MRS EARR R BN B ENERER - stand-alone basis or as a substitute for results under the HKFRS, or as being comparable to
RABWRR RETEREETEKIERBHBR results reported or forecasted by other companies.
&R B F 24T E(Eﬂﬁ/uﬁrf' B8 R AE
VHEERE b TESEBRAB BN ERELE
AT AR RER  HEE MR E 2 ML TR
B4 RABELEL

(3) EFEDRBFAEMBRAFA R - BFEMA (3) The calculation of gross profit margin is based on gross profit for the year divided by
100% FHEB T © revenue for the year and multiplied by 100%.

(4) ZOFE B R TIREF A O A B DAF Rk (4) The calculation of core net loss margin is based on core net loss for the year divided by

i FARPA100% &1 5 15 H %0 A Rl 2 9 4R 75 2
AR OAERR AR RS - BARIA100% =T ESH -

R MRTEHREBEZRGRS  CEMAEFH
EHERERERREEEY

ERGRIEET BARIT R A MK
AfES

FEEBBERDRIFFREHEERR S RIR
TTHER IR A SR AR B TRIA100% st H S H -

ANHE P E TR AR IR & BT IR R R A B R 1B
BT R IR F IR SR A -

BERBERRD

revenue for the year and multiplied by 100%. The calculation of core net profit margin is
based on core net profit for the period divided by revenue for the period and multiplied by
100%.

Cash and bank balances comprise restricted cash, pledged deposits, time deposits and cash
and cash equivalents.

Total indebtedness represents total interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior
notes and corporate bonds.

The calculation of net gearing ratio is based on total indebtedness less cash and bank
balances divided by total equity at the end of the year and multiplied by 100%.

Weighted average cost of indebtedness is the weighted average of interest costs of all
indebtedness outstanding at the end of each financial year.
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BRHE

REBFE AEBERFEBEAEEEZER
MENHEENARKE256308E8T B =
T -FENHNARKS33TABTLALH
68.1%  TE2HNMHAREEREX &
WEREEEL AR BERERENEP,AS
BRALH  ERAEEETFELE2NRR
- REIEFMEIER - MAKWHEER TR
EEAX °

REBFEE AEERBASEERSNEYN
HEEEmE ([BEEE]) A2,055,602F
Bk T = —F#5,946,696 F 77 K
LHI65.4% c REB B - —EHELHTH
EEBAARKI124687L,/ FHAK BT
T —FEH AR 13,5097, F T KR AL
7.7% °

WTE  R=—AREREAMRE (BT
Bz R=ARBUIINHERE - B
& HmEd AREBERE BRARE
EH)BRBASEEENAOEERD AN
AEER -_F-__FRAANHELEND
57.55% ~ 20.95% }221.5% -

HEER(EB)ARRR T _FFRH

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND SALES

Contracted sales

During the Relevant Year, the Group achieved contracted sales attributable
to the Group’s interests of approximately RMB25,630 million, decreased
by approximately 68.1% from approximately RMB80,331 million in 2021,
which was mainly due to overall market sluggishness, lack of confidence
of real estate investors and a large proportion of customers bearing a wait-
and-see attitude, and also the fact that the Group focused its capital on
barrier-free completion and had no new development projects, resulting in
a relatively significant decrease in contracted sales.

During the Relevant Year, the Group’s contracted sales in gross floor area
("GFA") attributable to the Group’s interests amounted to 2,055,602
sg.m., representing a decrease of approximately 65.4% from 5,946,696
sg.m. in 2021. The Group’s contracted ASP in 2022 was RMB12,468/sg.m.,
representing a decrease of approximately 7.7% from RMB13,509/sq.m. in
2021.

Contracted sales attributable to the Group’s interests from the Zhejiang
province, Pan-Yangtze River Delta region and other regions, which
represent regions in the PRC other than Zhejiang province and the Pan-
Yangtze River Delta region, including Hubei province, Hunan province,
Inner Mongolia Autonomous region, Fujian province and Liaoning province,
accounted for approximately 57.55%, 20.95% and 21.5% of total
attributable contracted sales of the Group’s interests in 2022, respectively.



TREIREEFE

HEBRAE

&;
I

RN

i
iz
e
B
=
o)

EEEN WD

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets forth the details of contracted sales attributable to
the Group’s interests for the Relevant Year:

58 o]

EEBEEZEN HENHE AEEESE
BRHERE BEADL WEEEE BRTEHEE

Contracted

sales Percentage of GFA

attributable to total attributable to
the Group's contracted the Group’s Contracted
interests sales interests ASP
(AR®x,/
(AR T ) (%) (FEFK) F7HK)
(RMB’000) (%) (sg.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
A Hangzhou 4,592,184 17.92% 170,828 26,882
47 58 Shaoxing 3,434,888 13.40% 177,137 19,391
g Sugian 1,859,215 7.25% 205,476 9,048
Al Wenzhou 1,531,401 5.98% 60,415 25,348
2 R0 S A Huhhot 1,394,242 5.44% 145,191 9,603
&N Quzhou 1,346,963 5.26% 58,369 23,077
=K Ningbo 1,170,090 4.57% 41,937 27,901
BK Lishui 1,108,712 4.33% 75,943 14,599
£33 Zoucheng 1,026,262 4.00% 119,333 8,600
i=RAl Suzhou 796,536 3.11% 123,813 6,433
B3 Fuyang 786,629 3.07% 82,725 9,509
& Shangrao 630,786 2.46% 77,768 8,111
Al Zhoushan 578,986 2.26% 39,969 14,486
SR Chuzhou 542,515 2.12% 98,193 5,525
Hh Others 4,830,457 18.85% 578,505 8,350
#st Total 25,629,866 100% 2,055,602 12,468
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F+ZA=+—HAR

Land bank

The following table sets out a breakdown of the total land bank developed

EEELAEEMNBAR AEDCER by the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates of the Group attributable
NAEIPTFE T EE RSB E S H to the Group by geographical location as at 31 December 2022:
B4
HAEBEMHELTER Developed by the Group’s subsidiaries
HEE/
A r5E EAEE
URBREMH EEHE ARBR it FEfh L3t
=17 wm BREYE ERINE BEER BAAREER mELE RELE
Completed Percentage
properties Estimated Total of total
available for Planned GFA land bank land bank
Number of sale/lease and GFA under for future attributable attributable
Provinces Cities projects for investment development development to the Group to the Group
(FHK) (E£FXK) (EH*K) (£H*K) (%)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (%)
ZH ZH 25 289,838.93 963,981.50 56,881.00 1,310,701.43 10.37%
Anhui Anhui
M 9 164,286.33 106,191.00 56,881.00 327,358.33 2.59%
Chuzhou
= 1 - 234,990.00 - 234,990.00 1.86%
Fuyang
Gl 7 - 341,735.88 - 341,735.88 2.70%
Hefei
BM 1 - 281,064.62 - 281,064.62 2.22%
Suzhou
L] 1 4,395.00 - - 4,395.00 0.03%
Wuhu
EH 6 121,157.60 - - 121,157.60 0.96%
Xuancheng
BE BE 2 52,006.99 - 130,641.00 182,647.99 1.44%
Fujian Fujian
[ZRe 2 52,006.99 - 130,641.00 182,647.99 1.44%
Nanping
isihlg y:ihlg 5 96,482.60 - 222,011.45 318,494.05 2.52%
Hubei Hubei
HH 1 15,980.68 - - 15,980.68 0.13%
Honghu
HE 1 - - 67,000.00 67,000.00 0.53%
Wuhan
bk 3 80,501.92 - 155,011.45 235,513.37 1.86%
Xiantao
HEZER(RE)ABRAR —T__FFHK
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THEE/
A XEE HAEH
URRE®N EERE ARER Pt L3t FEfh L3t
#h Hw BRYE ERINE BEHEE AREEEE mELE RmELE
Completed Percentage
properties Estimated Total of total
available for Planned GFA land bank land bank
Number of sale/lease and GFA under for future attributable attributable
Provinces Cities projects for investment development development to the Group to the Group
(F5HK) (FHK) (FHK) (F75K) (%)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (%)
il M 3 114,487.84 128,676.99 123,804.43 366,969.26 2.90%
Hunan Hunan
R 1 58,677.54 43,650.79 109,787.05 212,115.38 1.68%
Changde
L5 1 9,647.19 83,760.20 - 93,407.39 0.74%
Hengyang
Ei5 1 46,163.11 1,266.00 14,017.38 61,446.49 0.49%
Yueyang
L& TE 18 861,307.23 152,558.88 124,901.20 1,138,767.31 9.01%
Jiangsu Jiangsu
EE) 2 73,022.20 - - 73,022.20 0.58%
Liangyungang
il 3 12,879.84 152,558.88 - 165,438.72 1.31%
Nantong
BE 3 268,146.87 - - 268,146.87 2.12%
Sugian
ZM 6 428,282.31 - - 428,282.31 3.39%
Taizhou
201 1 15,223.64 - - 15,223.64 0.12%
Yancheng
B 1 53,108.00 - 124,901.20 178,009.20 1.41%
Yangzhou
M 2 10,644.37 - - 10,644.37 0.08%
Suzhou
s N 6 214,067.51 115,612.98 168,259.32 497,939.81 3.94%
Jiangxi Jiangxi
M 3 30,077.10 - 168,259.32 198,336.42 1.57%
Fuzhou
1= 1 - 115,612.98 - 115,612.98 0.91%
Nanchang
Hith 1 66,197.84 - - 66,197.84 0.52%
Others
L& 1 117,792.57 - - 117,792.57 0.93%
Shangrao
e BE 2 25,492.11 - - 25,492.11 0.20%
Liaoning Liaoning
gl 2 25,492.11 - - 25,492.11 0.20%
Anshan
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THEE/
pE:eg | ¥ 3 {38 -3
URRE®N EERE ARER i FEfh L3t
# ww BRYE ERINE BEHEE AREEEE mELE mELE
Completed Percentage
properties Estimated Total of total
available for Planned GFA land bank land bank
Number of sale/lease and GFA under for future attributable attributable
Provinces Cities projects for investment development development to the Group to the Group
(F5HK) (FHK) (FHK) (F75K) (%)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (%)
AEE RE 6 39,216.07 700,445.50 - 739,661.57 5.85%
Inner Mongolia  Inner Mongolia
AN 6 39,216.07 700,445.50 - 739,661.57 5.85%
Hohhot
& ITEY 3 - 562,070.29 164,488.29 726,558.58 5.75%
Shandong Shandong
2 3 - 562,070.29 164,488.29 726,558.58 5.75%
Zoucheng
LA iy 1 - 132,842.94 151,330.62 284,173.56 2.25%
Shanghai Shanghai
L 1 - 132,842.94 151,330.62 284,173.56 2.25%
Shanghai
ipan 798 9% 1,892,902.78 4,509,715.65 - 6,402,618.43 50.64%
Zhejiang Zhejiang
M 11 375,303.18 1,328,549.90 - 1,703,853.08 13.48%
Hangzhou
M 3 20,474.25 - - 20,474.25 0.16%
Huzhou
=R 6 55,895.49 - - 55,895.49 0.44%
Jiaxing
Bk 7 48,314.14 86,402.96 - 134,717.10 1.07%
Lishui
9 4 14,904.61 394,552.51 - 409,457.12 3.24%
Ningbo
M 8 260,558.23 271,977.10 - 532,535.33 421%
Quzhou
e 40 609,154.20 2,009,492.39 - 2,618,646.59 20.71%
Shaoxing
= 8 306,455.66 177,798.67 - 484,254.33 3.83%
Taizhou
aM 3 12,160.30 196,777.12 - 208,937.42 1.65%
Wenzhou
A 4 189,682.71 44,165.00 - 233,847.71 1.85%
Zhoushan
gt 165 3,585,802.06 7,265,904.73 1,142,317.31  11,994,024.10 94.86%
Subtotal

HEZR(EE)ERLQT
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HASESE EEMBE N R AR Developed by the Group’s joint ventures and associates
THHEE/
A b 3 iy
URBEM EERE ARBAR Pt L3t i
=17 ww HRYE BRINE BEER AEEER RERE mERE
Completed Percentage
properties Estimated Total of total
available for Planned GFA land bank land bank
Number of sale/lease and GFA under for future attributable attributable
Provinces Cities projects for investment development development to the Group to the Group
(F5K) (FHK) (FHK) (F75K) (%)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
ZH ZH 5 30,913.88 39,973.89 - 70,887.77 0.56%
Anhui Anhui
ZE 3 7,181.50 39,973.89 - 47,155.39 0.37%
Anging
T 2 23,732.38 - - 23,732.38 0.19%
Chuzhou
isible it 2 13,747.03 56,683.44 57,660.26 128,090.74 1.01%
Hubei Hubei
P 2 13,747.03 56,683.44 57,660.26 128,090.74 1.01%
Jingmen
L& TE 4 8,179.06 40,840.04 12,719.10 61,738.19 0.49%
Jiangsu Jiangsu
BR 1 6,339.90 - 12,719.10 19,059.00 0.15%
Nanjing
ZM 2 1,839.16 - - 1,839.16 0.01%
Taizhou
018 1 - 40,840.04 - 40,840.04 0.32%
Zhenjiang
R LR 1 - 57,037.18 63,780.45 120,817.63 0.96%
Shandong Shandong
g 1 - 57,037.18 63,780.45 120,817.63 0.96%
Zibo
ipan DA 1" 46,670.17 221,295.87 - 267,966.04 2.12%
Zhejiang Zhejiang
M 2 25,252.30 77,457.73 - 102,710.03 0.81%
Hangzhou
BE 1 7,057.96 - - 7,057.96 0.06%
Jinhua
) 1 4,673.53 - - 4,673.53 0.04%
Ningbo
R 6 9,686.38 120,381.48 - 130,067.85 1.03%
Shaoxing
il 1 - 23,456.67 - 23,456.67 0.19%
Wenzhou
gt 23 99,510.14 415,830.43 134,159.81 649,500.37 5.14%
Subtotal
@it 188 3,685,312.19 7,681,735.16 1,276,477.12 12,643,524.47 100.00%
Total
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AHEE/
A A&EE EEEE
URBREMH EERE E N EiE it [ 2
B HEYE BRIV BEER BAEREER mERE RERAE
Completed Percentage
properties Estimated Total of total
available for Planned GFA land bank land bank
Number of sale/lease and GFA under for future attributable attributable
Regions projects for investment development development to the Group to the Group
(FHK) (FHXK) (FAHK) (F75K) (%)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
wR= AR 53 1,190,239.10 1,330,197.25 345,831.92 2,866,268.26 22.67%
Pan-Yangtze River Delta region
HibR g 30 555,500.15 1,620,526.39 930,645.20 3,106,671.74 24.57%
Other regions
TR 1 105 1,939,572.94 4,731,011.52 - 6,670,584.47 52.76%
Zhejiang region
@it 188 3,685,312.19 7,681,735.16 1,276,477.12 12,643,524.47 100.00%
Total
BIEHENEETYH Completed properties held for sale

FIFLENCRITMERENSREMRIDR
R DR TEERE  WIRRARATEE
FERNBEERR - FEHENDRTYE
MR AR R E YR EEARRBARR

R-ZE-_—_F+-_A=Z+—H A£BH
M7EBERTIYWEEE BERIHEEME
HNEIOBEEFLHAK BRI —F+=A
—+—BMH405BEFTKEFRD o

REFIHA

BERPYERNRIRIFELE - BRTY
ERRA (BRELMEAR  ZERA - BER
EMEENHAEHEEENERFEBNZS
WEEOEMKA) KAl 23 FENBREET
RoMBRTR  ZFEVERERERELE
WERIWE -

R-ZB-—F+=-—A=+—H8 A£EF
G5EEEFRYERE BRTHEEE@E
WAETSEBFEI K B_ZE-_—F+=A4
—+—BHMHI13.10BEFHKBARD °

HEER(EB)ARRR T _FFRH

Completed properties held for sale represent completed GFA remaining
unrecognised at the end of each reporting period and are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of the completed properties
held for sale refers to the related costs incurred attributable to the unsold
properties.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 117 completed property projects,
and the total completed GFA amounted to approximately 3.69 million
sg.m., representing a decrease from approximately 4.05 million sq.m as at
31 December 2021.

Projects under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion. Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost, which comprises land costs, construction costs, capitalised interests
and other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during
the development period, and net realisable value. Upon completion, the
properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 65 property projects under
development, and the total GFA under development amounted
to approximately 7.68 million sq.m., representing a decrease from
approximately 13.10 million sq.m as at 31 December 2021.
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Bt 7% [0 R FINANCIAL REVIEW
g Revenue
REMFE  AEBENWGKE LIREBR - During the Relevant Year, the Group derived its revenue from five

BI() ¥ 2h 2 M HE ¢ (i) B IR AR ¢ (iii) business lines, namely (i) property development and sales; (ii) management
WG (V)5 RS : R (V) WEEIRRT consulting services; (iii) property leasing; (iv) hotel services; and (v) property
REBOKREZRERNPTENYEHRE - management services. The revenue of the Group was primarily derived
TREIIAREE TR FE IR EBRERD from the sales of properties in the PRC. The following table sets forth the

W g 5 1E details of the Group’s revenue recognised by business line for the years
indicated:
BE+-A=t+-RALFE
For the year ended 31 December
—BC-CF —F—F BAOLLES
Change in
2022 2021 Percentage
(AR#®F ) (AREFT)
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
& Revenue
VIR MIHEE Property development and sales 19,577,073 43,560,590 (55.1)%
EIRH AR Management consulting services 64,858 64,648 0.3%
WEMRE Property leasing 38,357 76,467 (49.8)%
MEEER®E Property management services 20,752 17,323 19.8%
BEr Total 19,701,040 43,719,028 (54.9)%
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VIR REE RS
TREHIR AR FE W R 2R

B -

SEEIE

Revenue from property development and sales
The following table sets forth the details of revenue and GFA recognised
for the years indicated:

BET=ASt-ALER

For the year ended 31 December

—E-CE &
2022 2021

28371 oRR [ BH#R
& EEER FHEE Yrzs BREER FHER
Recognised  Recognised Recognised Recognised
Revenue GFA ASP Revenue GFA ASP
(AR¥Rn/ (ARET/
(AE®F ) (EHXK) THK) (ARBTT) (F7XK) FHXK)
(RMB'000) (sgq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.) (RMB’000) (sg.m.)  (RMB/sg.m.)
ST Zhejiang 15,709,057 1,221,199 12,864 30,155,104 1,938,251 15,558
wE=ZA Pan-Yangtze River Delta 1,898,650 286,570 6,625 10,815,850 1,472,739 7,344
HipR g Other regions 1,969,366 272,101 7,238 2,589,636 365,763 7,080
@it Total 19,577,073 1,779,870 10,999 43,560,590 3,776,753 11,534

RZEZZF  AEENMEREREEK
B ABARKI95771EET AL
55.1% T EHRBEEXNHEERD -

IR A AR e

R-T-_—%F AEENEEEARE K
HRARMEGAIBETT  ALLIZMNA0.3%
HEFHLRFEHRE -

MEHEE KRS

FEER B _FHPEERERIO/A
R¥384B8 T RALLELH498% T2
HRRIRBEHERBENZETE -

Y3 E IR W

REER T - —FOYEEERFWELD
BARE208B&ET - RLENAI19.8%
IZARREFENYEERRAER -

HEER(EE)ARAR —ZE-_FFH

In 2022, the Group’s revenue from property development and sales
amounted to approximately RMB19,577.1 million, representing a year-
on-year decrease of approximately 55.1%, which was mainly due to the
decrease in number of projects delivered.

Revenue from management consulting services

In 2022, the Group’s revenue from management consulting services
amounted to approximately RMB64.9 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 0.3%, which remained relatively stable as
compared with the last year.

Revenue from property leasing

The Group’s revenue from property leasing in 2022 amounted to
approximately RMB38.4 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 49.8%, which was mainly due to the overall impact from
the epidemic on entity businesses.

Revenue from property management services

The Group's revenue from property management services in 2022
amounted to approximately RMB20.8 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 19.8%, which was primarily due to the increase
in property management income from Tiantai Commercial.
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Cost of sales

The Group incurred a vast majority of its cost of sales in its property
development and sales business. The Group’s cost of sales decreased by
approximately 54.0% from approximately RMB39,012.8 million in 2021 to
approximately RMB17,963.8 million for 2022. Cost of sales declined as a
result of the decline in property development income.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted
to approximately RMB1,737.2 million, representing a year-on-year decrease
of approximately 63.1%.

Gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2022 was 8.8%,
representing a decrease of 2 percentage points as compared to 10.8%
for the same period of last year, mainly due to the different layout of
properties in different regions and the difference in selling price and gross
profit margin levels resulted from the different structure of properties sold.
Furthermore, as continuously affected by the systemic risk of the real estate
sector in 2022, the Group sold those projects located in third-tier and
fourth-tier cities at a discount in order to improve its liquidity, resulting in a
decrease in the overall gross profit margin for the year.

Finance income

Finance income primarily consists of interest income from bank deposits.
The Group’s finance income decreased by approximately 80.3% from
approximately RMB305.3 million in 2021 to approximately RMB60.0 million
in 2022, which was mainly due to the decrease in bank deposits as a result
of the funding crunch.

Other income and gains

The Group’s other income and other gains primarily include (i) gain on
disposal of joint ventures; (ii) subsidy income; and (iii) interest income.

The Group’s other income and gains increased by 32.8% from
approximately RMB436.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB579.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
which was mainly due to the increase in gain on disposal of joint ventures
in 2022.
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REEMBEERSHAYHBE_S_—F
F+TZA=ZT—BLEFEMNHARKE,266.8
BETRLH506% EHE-_T-_—_F+=
A=+—HLFEMHARBE252HET -
TEHREEHEERHEEABTI TR -
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Selling and distribution expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
50.6% from approximately RMB1,266.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB625.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, which was primarily due to the decrease in advertising
and promotional charges and remuneration of sales staff.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by approximately 48.8%
from approximately RMB987.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB505.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2022, which was mainly due to the decrease in labour costs.

Other expenses

The Group's other expenses primarily consist of (i) donations to non-profit
organizations and local communities for purposes of poverty elimination,
tuition sponsorship, infrastructure construction, disaster relief and elderly
care; (ii) compensation for delayed delivery of property projects; and
(iii) the increase in late payment of taxes and penalties due to larger
increase in penalties related to construction violations and losses incurred
in the disposal of subsidiaries. For the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group’s other expenses increased by approximately 121.3% from
RMB306.7 million to approximately RMB678.7 million as compared with
the corresponding period in the previous year, primary due to the loss on
disposal of subsidiaries and the provision for impairment of investments in
associates and joint ventures.

Fair value losses/gains on investment properties

The Group’s fair value loss on investment properties for the year ended
31 December 2022 amounted to approximately RMB46.4 million,
representing a turnaround from fair value gains on investment properties
of approximately RMB17.7 million for the corresponding period in 2021,
which was mainly due to a steady to moderate decline in commercial
property values resulted from the weaker than expected recovery of the
property market and the remaining weakness in the commercial property
market on both the supply and demand sides.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Loss on forfeited land development projects

Loss on forfeited land development projects mainly includes (i) the
land deposit which is not refundable when the land transfer contract
is terminated; (ii) taxes related to the performance of the land transfer
contract; and (iii) the initial construction cost.

The Group’s loss on forfeited land development projects for the year ended
31 December 2022 amounted to approximately RMB1,643.6 million (nil
for the corresponding period in 2021) in relation to the Group’s loss on
operating projects in Hangzhou and Shaoxing.

Finance costs

Finance costs mainly consist of (i) interest on loans and other borrowings,
senior notes, corporate bonds and lease liabilities; and (ii) interest
expense arising from revenue contracts which represent interest expenses
recognised for the significant financing components included in contract
liabilities during the period from the receipt of sales proceeds to the
delivery of underlying properties, less capitalised interests.

The Group’s finance costs increased from approximately RMB1,257.3
million in 2021 to approximately RMB1,547.4 million in 2022, which
was mainly due to the decrease in the capitalisable interest after project
delivery.

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures

The Group recorded share of profits of joint ventures of approximately
RMB349.2 million in 2021 and share of losses of joint ventures of
approximately RMB 63.5 million in 2022. The Group recorded share of
profits of joint ventures in 2021 in relation to the profits from joint venture
projects operated by joint ventures in Nanjing, Huzhou and other cities.
The Group recorded share of losses of joint ventures in 2022 in relation to
the losses from joint venture projects operated by joint ventures in Anging,
Zhuji and other cities.

Share of profits and losses of associates

The Group recorded share of profits of associates of approximately
RMB95.6 million in 2021 and share of profits of associates of approximately
RMB49.8 million in 2022, which was mainly due to the profits from joint
venture projects operated by associated entities in Ningbo and other cities.
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Loss/profit before tax

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s loss before tax was approximately
RMB3,257.1 million in 2022, compared to its profit before tax of
approximately RMB1,639.9 million in 2021.

Income tax expense

The Group’'s income tax expense decreased from approximately
RMB1,159.2 million in 2021 to approximately RMB669.5 million in 2022,
which was primarily due to the decrease in taxable profit before tax.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group operates in a capital-intensive industry and property
development requires substantial capital investments for land acquisition
and property construction. As at the date of this report, the Group has
funded its operations, working capital, capital expenditure and other capital
requirements primarily from cash generated from its operations, mainly
including proceeds from the pre-sales and sales of properties, receipt
of property lease income from its investment properties, management
consulting service fees, and property management service fees, as well
as bank and other borrowings, corporate bonds and senior notes. The
financing methods of the Group vary from project to project, and are
subject to limitations imposed by PRC regulations and monetary policies.

Cash position

The Group’'s cash and bank balances, comprising cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, time deposits and pledged deposits, amounted
to approximately RMB4,645.2 million in total as at 31 December 2022,
of which RMB4,644.8 million, RMBO0.3 million and RMBO0.1 million
were denominated in RMB, HKD and USD, respectively (31 December
2021: approximately RMB8,448.1 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 45% as compared with 31 December 2021.
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Borrowings

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total borrowings, comprising
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, corporate bonds and senior
notes, amounted to approximately RMB28,583.7 million (31 December
2021: RMB34,386.4 million), representing a decrease of approximately
16.9% as compared with 31 December 2021. The borrowings as at 31
December 2022 were denominated in RMB (2021: same) and carried
at interest rates of 3.2% to 15% per annum (2021: 3.70% to 15% per
annum).

The following table sets forth the maturity profiles of the Group’s
borrowings as at the dates indicated:

R+=B=+—8H
As at 31 December

—E-= —F-—
2022 2021
(AR®T ) (ANREFIT)
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)
R—FREER Repayable within one year 18,314,301 17,247,884
REZFER Repayable in the second year 10,027,690 8,634,377
R-_ERFANEE Repayable within two to five years 241,660 8,504,175
REFEE Repayable over five years - -
st Total 28,583,651 34,386,436

200,000,000 E TR =—F=—4FNH
FIEIBI10.50 EEB L E 1

BRBEARTIVR -_ZE-—FANBE
TR 4 4 %8 /5200,000,000E TR ==
TZFNHMI0SEREER (22
FRNAZE]D CEISNMBRARBD A
XS2347497906 £2 234749790 -

BBEZTZ_FAAZBNGER ==
FRARBHNmAMAREERACEERE
R EREBA T A3 H
JEft e RABWER T - —FXA+BH
ZE I ZFRNAZEBEBTEAEELADE
200,000,000 & LK A & & Fl B VB A 3R e
CTECICFRARBIHEEREF
NAT BB FTRRE -

BEARERAH  LAMRRENDEFED
SENAERFEMAREER -

US$200,000,000 10.50% Senior Notes Due June 2022

Reference is made to the 10.5% senior notes due 2022 (the “June 2022
Notes”) issued by the Company on 8 June 2021 in an aggregate principal
amount of US$200,000,000, and the ISIN and Common Code of which are
XS2347497906 and 234749790, respectively.

Pursuant to the terms of the June 2022 Notes, all outstanding principal
amount on the June 2022 Notes together with the accrued interest
thereon were due and payable on the maturity date of 7 June 2022.
The Company had not made payment of principal and interest on the
remaining outstanding principal amount of the June 2022 Notes of
US$200,000,000 on 7 June 2022. The June 2022 Notes were delisted from
the Stock Exchange on 7 June 2022 upon its maturity.

As of the date of this report, the principal and interests of the
aforementioned existing notes remain outstanding.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.

31



32

EEENWR DM

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MEEEFE
RZE-_—_F+_A=+—H0 Xx&£EH
MEBEEFENRARKI11,483 88 &
T(ZE-_—F+-A=Z+—H: ARK
27,0636 B BT) - LEE AEEMRH
BERER_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—80K
#IANR#138,469.9E E LR %202% =
R-E-_—F+_A=+—HANHARE
110,466 7B E L - AEBEMN A BEERE
M- -+ -_A=+—BHNHOARE
1M11,4062B8 TR HIN2%E_F =
FH+ZA=Z1+—AMNHARKOI8,98298H
BN -AEENRBEEFERL HEE
HR)EBESRLHARKIB029EHE
T EZHRREEBEREEMANIRR ()3
BHRMERBIELENERIMERDLOA
R#¥19,003.08 8L TEHNAFHE
BMIBEBERD  R(NEHNBEBERLOARE
10,8220 88 L TZHNEBHTERT
BRK  BRERWEN Y EEEMEHRE
SERD o

BERA

R-ZEBE-—F+-_A=+—8 KEFHE
RITBAAEENEENARKE32,7808BE
T(REDE BEREE ZRTPVER
BEERER (ZE—F+ZA=+—8:
WARM389648FHE L) ER MR EE
WTREEHNASEERSTERDAE -

% B

REAKEESHEIZEMRS - MERR
SRk IERRERBDESRR BT
7R B B B IR T S| ARSTROSRES o B
AR BT R % 5 B R &I A&
| 3 A AR DT E R B A T BRSO B A o
AEBARFAERETERZAENITLEDR
THe

F 2= @R

7R £2 [ T e 1O T 35 M) R S B L P = R B E AT
BRITREMERBR - ARBELEERDT
EERT AR RER - REEEHRTEE
RITERREMEREZEN B

HEER(EB)ARRR T _FFRH

Net current assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s net current assets amounted to
approximately RMB11,483.8 million (31 December 2021: RMB27,063.6
million). Specifically, the Group’s total current assets decreased by
approximately 20.2% from approximately RMB138,469.9 million as at 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB110,466.7 million as at 31 December
2022. The Group’s total current liabilities decreased by approximately
11.2% from approximately RMB111,406.2 million as at 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB98,982.9 million as at 31 December 2022. The
decrease in the net current assets of the Group was mainly attributable
to (i) the decrease of approximately RMB3,802.9 million in currency
funds, primarily due to the repayment of borrowings and the payment of
construction costs; (ii) the decrease of approximately RMB19,003.0 million
in properties under development and completed properties held for sale,
primarily due to the decrease in the number of newly acquired projects
during the year; and (iii) the decrease of approximately RMB10,822.0
million in contract liabilities, primarily due to the impact of the epidemic
and the downturn in the market which had led to the decrease in actual
amount of property sales proceeds received.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s borrowings were secured by the
Group’s assets of approximately RMB32,789.8 million which include
property, plant and equipment, properties under development and pledged
deposits (31 December 2021: approximately RMB38,964.8 million). The
decrease in pledged assets was primarily due to the decrease in the amount
of the Group’s loans.

Financial risks

The main risks arising from the Group’s activities are: interest rate risk,
credit risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the Group
introduces conservative strategies on its risk management. To keep the
Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum, the Group has not used any
derivatives and other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does
not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to its interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The Group
does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate risks.
The Group manages its interest costs using variable rate bank borrowings
and other borrowings.
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Credit risk

The Group classifies financial instruments on the basis of shared credit
risk characteristics, such as instrument type and credit risk ratings for the
purpose of determining significant increases in credit risk and calculation
of impairment. To manage risk arising from trade and bills receivables,
the Group has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are made only
to counterparties with an appropriate credit history and management
performs ongoing credit evaluations of the Group’s counterparties. The
credit period granted to the customers is generally six months and the
credit quality of these customers is assessed, taking into account their
financial position, past experience and other factors. The Group also has
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue receivables. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of trade and bills receivables to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no
significant concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated with
cash deposits at banks since they are substantially deposited at state-owned
banks and other medium or large-sized listed banks. Management does
not expect that there will be any significant losses from non-performance
by these counterparties.

The Group also makes periodic collective assessments for financial assets
included in prepayments and other receivables and amounts due from
related parties as well as individual assessments on the recoverability of
other receivables and amounts due from related parties based on historical
settlement records and past experience. The Group has classified financial
assets included in prepayments and other receivables and amounts due
from related parties in Stage 1 and continuously monitored their credit risk.

The Group expects that there is no material credit risk inherent in the

Group’s outstanding balance of financial assets included in prepayments
and other receivables and amounts due from related parties.
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Foreign currency risk

The Group primarily operates its business in the PRC. Therefore, the
Group’s businesses are principally conducted in RMB, which is the
functional currency of the group companies. Foreign currency transaction
included mainly receipts of proceeds from the initial public offering of the
Company’s shares, proceeds from senior notes and payment of professional
fees which are dominated in HK$ or US$. As at 31 December 2022, major
non-RMB assets are 2,240.9 million denominated in HK$ in the amount of
RMB2,001.7 million. Major non-RMB assets are 504.5 million denominate
in US$ in the amount of RMB3,513.7 million. Major non-RMB liabilities
are 739.5 million denominated in US$ in the amount of RMB5,150.4
million. Fluctuation of the exchange rates of RMB against foreign currency
could affect the Group’s results of operations. The Group currently does
not engage in hedging activities designed or intended to manage foreign
exchange rate risk. The Group will continue to monitor foreign exchange
changes to best preserve the Group’s cash value.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash through internally generated
sales proceeds and an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to
meet its operation needs and commitments in respect of property projects.
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings. The Group reviews its liquidity position on an ongoing basis,
including review of the expected cash inflows and outflows, pre-sales/sales
results, maturity of its borrowings and the progress of the property projects
in order to monitor its liquidity requirements in the short and long terms.

The Board reviews its risk management policy on a on-going basis and
would take appropriate actions to contain its risk exposure.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has no plan for any material
investments or capital assets.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Disposal of 23.8095% equity interest in Zhejiang Sunflower
Health Industry Development Co., Ltd.

On 7 January 2022, Shinsun Hong Kong Limited (“Shinsun HK"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity
transfer agreement with Zhuji Tiancheng Hongwei Property Co., Ltd.
(“Zhuji Tiancheng”), under which Zhuji Tiancheng agreed to acquire and
Shinsun HK agreed to sell, 23.8095% equity interest in Zhejiang Sunflower
Health Industry Development Co., Ltd. (a company principally engaged in
the business of elderly care services, health and sports related consulting
services (excluding diagnosis and treatment services), hospital management,
property management, hotel management, park management services)
at a consideration of RMB336,990,471.75 (equivalent to approximately
HK$410,963,989.939) in cash.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 7 January 2022.

Disposal of 51% equity interest in Hangzhou Bintuo
Enterprise Management Co., Ltd

On 17 January 2022, Hangzhou Binwang Enterprise Management
Consulting Co., Ltd. ("Hangzhou Binwang”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement
with Zhelvzhanjing Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Zhelvzhanjing Real Estate”),
under which Zhelvzhanjing Real Estate agreed to acquire and Hangzhou
Binwang agreed to sell, 51% equity interest in Hangzhou Bintuo Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd. (a company principally engaged in the business
of enterprise management consulting, marketing planning, and related
services) at a consideration of RMB487,036,040.11 in cash.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 17 January 2022.
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Acquisition of 7.3258% equity interest in Hangzhou Didang
Investment Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)

On 17 January 2022, Hangzhou Dongyu Enterprise Management Co.,
Ltd. (“Hangzhou Dongyu”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an share transfer agreement with Zhelvzhanjing
Real Estate, under which Hangzhou Dongyu agreed to acquire and
Zhelvzhanjing Real Estate agreed to sell, 7.3258% of the interest
in Hangzhou Didang Investment Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (a partnership principally engaged in the business of equity
investment) at the consideration of RMB160,000,000 in cash and the debt
owed by the Shaoxing Xiangsheng Hongsheng Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. to Zhelvzhanjing Real Estate in the principal amount of
RMB398,868,517.15 at the consideration of RMB398,868,517.15.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 17 January 2022.

Disposal of 58.5% equity interest in Linhai Ziyuan Yintong
Real Estate Co., Ltd

On 18 March 2022, Shinsun Property Group Co., Ltd. (“Shinsun Property”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Zhuji Guoyue Enterprise Management Consulting Co.,
Ltd. (“Zhuji Guoyue”), under which Zhuji Guoyue agreed to acquire and
Shinsun Property agreed to sell, 58.5% equity interest in Linhai Ziyuan
Yintong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (a company principally engaged in the
business of properties development) at a consideration of RMB272,000,000
in cash.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 18 March 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Disposal of 50% equity interest in and debt assignment to
Huzhou Jiaotou Xiangsheng Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd.

On 3 June 2022, Shinsun Property, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement with Zhejiang Jiaotou
Holding Group Co., Ltd., under which Zhejiang Jiaotou Holding Group
Co., Ltd. agreed to acquire and Shinsun Property agreed to sell, 50%
equity interests in Huzhou Jiaotou Xiangsheng Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. ("Huzhou Jiaotou”) at a cash consideration of RMB92,500,000.
Simultaneously to entering of the equity transfer agreement, Shinsun
Property, Huzhou Wuxing Jiaotou Xiangsheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. and
Huzhou Jiaotou entered into a debt assignment agreement, pursuant
to which, Shinsun Property assigned its debt of RMB24,750,000 owed
to Huzhou Wuxing Jiaotou Xiangsheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. to Huzhou
Jiaotou to offset the same amount of debt owed by Huzhou Jiaotou to
Shinsun Property.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 5 June 2022.

Disposal of 100% equity interest in Shaoxing Shinsun
Hongxing Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

On 12 July 2022, Hangzhou Yaoyang Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.
(“Hangzhou Yaoyang”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement with Hangzhou
Yuhang Agile Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Hangzhou Yuhang Agile
Real Estate”), under which Hangzhou Yuhang Agile Real Estate agreed to
acquire and Hangzhou Yaoyang agreed to sell, the sale shares, representing
100% of the registered capital of Shaoxing Shinsun Hongxing Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Shaoxing Shinsun”) at a cash consideration of
RMB339,734,559.85 (equivalent to approximately HK$397,490,000).

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 12 July 2022.
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Disposal of 50% equity interest in Anji Sante Tianye Pastoral
Tourism Development Co., Ltd. and accounts receivables and
related interests

On 17 November 2022, Zhejiang Xiangjing Tourism Development Co.,
Ltd.* (I SIREEZZERAER A R) (“Xiangjing Tourism”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Hangzhou Jinglu Enterprise
Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (/N SECXERAE
% (BMR& %)) ("Hangzhou Jinglu”) entered into (i) an equity transfer
agreement to dispose 50% of the equity interests in Anji Sante Tianye
Pastoral Tourism Development Co., Ltd.* (& & = #F M B HIR ik % 7 3%
AR A A]) (“Anji”) at the consideration of RMB22,963,110.45; and (i) a
transfer agreement to dispose the accounts receivable and related interests
of Xiangjing Tourism against Anji with a book value of RMB78,198,700 as
at 30 June 2022 at a consideration of RMB69,486,283.54.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 17 November 2022.

Disposal of 55% equity interest in Hangzhou Chunyuan
Health Elderly Care Co., Ltd. and accounts receivables and
related interests

On 17 November 2022, (i) Hangzhou Langjun Enterprise Management
Consulting Co., Ltd.* (fIMBEAECEE B F WA R 2 ) ("Hangzhou
Langjun”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the transfer agreement with Hangzhou Jinglu, pursuant to which
Hangzhou Langjun agreed to sell and Hangzhou Jinglu agreed to acquire
55% equity interests in Hangzhou Chunyuan Health Elderly Care Co., Ltd.*
(MMNERREEEZERBEAR2AA) (“Chunyuan”) at the consideration of
RMB13,432,224.02; and (ii) Hangzhou Langjun and Shinsun Property, each
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
transfer agreement with Hangzhou Jinglu pursuant to which Hangzhou
Langjun and Shinsun Property agreed to dispose of and Hangzhou
Jinglu agreed to acquire the accounts receivable and related interests
of Hangzhou Langjun and Shinsun Property against Chunyuan with an
aggregate book value of RMB122,800,000 as at 30 June 2022 at the
consideration of RMB109,118,382.00.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 17 November 2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant investments or
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Mortgage guarantees

In line with market practice in the PRC, the Group has arrangements with
various banks for the provision of mortgage financing and where required,
provide its customers with guarantees as security for mortgage loans.
The terms of such guarantees typically last until the issuance of the real
estate ownership certificate upon the completion of guarantee registration
or satisfaction of mortgage loan by the purchaser. As a guarantor, if
the purchaser defaults in payment, the Group is obligated to repay all
outstanding amounts owed by the purchaser to the mortgagee bank under
the loan and have the right to claim such amount from the defaulting
purchaser.

The total outstanding mortgage guarantee amounts provided by the
Group to banks amounted to approximately RMB17,767.1 million as at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: approximately RMB22,250.9 million).

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year ended 31
December 2022 in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage
facilities granted to purchasers of its completed properties held for sale.

Financial guarantees

As at 31 December 2022, the Group guaranteed certain of the bank and
other borrowings made to its related companies up to approximately
RMB320.98 million (as at 31 December 2021, the Group guaranteed
certain of the bank and other borrowings made to its related companies up
to approximately RMB913.7 million).

Legal contingents

The Group may be involved in lawsuits and other proceedings in its ordinary
course of business from time to time. Save as disclosed in this report, the
Group believes that no liabilities resulting from these proceedings will
have a material and adverse effect on its business, financial condition or
operating results.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had capital commitment of
approximately RMB21,699.1 million in relation to the signing of a
construction contract or land contract that is being or will be performed (31
December 2021: approximately RMB28,227 million).
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Current ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the current ratio of the Group was approximately
1.1 times (31 December 2021: approximately 1.2 times). The Group's
current ratio was relatively stable and the decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in current assets.

Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by the
total current liabilities as at the respective dates and multiplied by 100%.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the gearing ratio of the Group was
approximately 93.8% (2021: approximately 88.4%), mainly due to the
decrease in net assets as a result of losses incurred during the Relevant
Year. This ratio is calculated as total debts divided by total assets as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet.

Net gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s net gearing ratio increased to 3.3 as
compared with the net gearing ratio of 1.5 as at 31 December 2021 (which
was calculated based on total bank and other borrowings, asset-backed
securities, corporate bonds and senior notes less cash and bank balances
divided by total equity as of the respective dates), which was primarily
due to the decrease in net assets as a result of losses incurred during the
Relevant Year.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS AND
ARRANGEMENTS

Except for the contingent liabilities disclosed above, the Group has not
entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements or commitments to
guarantee the payment obligations of any third parties and related parties.
The Group does not have any variable interest in any uncombined entity
that provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit support to the
Group.
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EMPLOYEE, REMUNERATION POLICY AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 1,256 full-time
employees (31 December 2021: 2,966). For the year ended 31 December
2022, the staff cost recognised as expenses of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB356 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB840 million).

The remuneration policy of the Group is to provide remuneration packages,
including salary, bonus and other cash subsidies. The emoluments of
the Directors are recommended by the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) and are decided by the Board,
having regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. The Company has also conditionally
adopted a share option scheme on 20 October 2020 to recognise and
reward the eligible employees for their contributions to the business and
development of the Group. In general, the Group determines employee
salaries based on each employee’s qualification, position and seniority. The
Group has designed an annual review system to assess the performance of
our employees, which forms the basis of our determination on salary raises,
bonuses and promotions. As required by PRC regulations, the Group makes
contributions to mandatory housing funds and social insurance funds.

The Group has also incorporated mentorship, assessment, feedback and
evaluation processes into its various training programs, which the Group
believes will facilitate its employees to better learn and grow. The Group
believes that its training programs, combined with on-the-job learning,
facilitate advancement of its employees.

The Group has a labor union which represents the interests of its
employees and works closely with its management on labor-related issues.
As at 31 December 2022, no labor dispute had occurred which materially
and adversely affected or was likely to have a material and adverse effect
on the Group’s operations.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Hongni (B 3A1{%), aged 41, was appointed as the executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company on 21 May 2020. He
was appointed as the acting chairman of the Board on 16 April 2023. He
has been the president of the Group since January 2019 and is primarily
responsible for overseeing the overall business management and operations
of the property projects of the Group. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries within the Group.

He has over 11 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry. He
joined the Group in November 2012 as the general manager of the hotel
management company of Xiangsheng Industrial Group Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (“Xiangsheng Industrial Group”), where he was responsible
for overseeing the overall operations of the hotels. From November 2014
to December 2017, Mr. Chen Hongni served as the chairman of the
branch company in Zhuji City, where he was responsible for overseeing
the operations and management of the Group’s project companies in Zhuiji
area. From December 2017 to January 2019, he served as the executive
president of Shinsun Property Group Co., Ltd. (“Shinsun Property”) (a
company established in the PRC with limited liability on January 4, 1995
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), where he
assisted the president in the overall business management of Shinsun
Property.

Since July 2016, Mr. Chen Hongni has served as the vice chairman of the
Zhuji Young Entrepreneurs Association (FEZ M AR D EXHE) of the
Zhuiji city in the PRC. Mr. Chen Hongni obtained a bachelor’s degree in
general studies (business management) from Fort Hays State University in
the United States in May 2010.

Mr. Chen Hongni has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 18 November 2023, and is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings
of the Company in accordance with the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company. Pursuant to the service contract, Mr. Chen
Hongni will be entitled to receive an annual remuneration (including
salary, allowances and benefits in kind) of approximately RMB4.7 million
for his role as executive Director, which is determined by the Board upon
recommendation from the Remuneration Committee with reference to his
qualification, level of duties and responsibilities undertaken in the Company
and the prevailing market conditions.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Ma Hongman (F4L)8) (“Mr. Ma"), aged 48, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 20 October 2020. Mr. Ma has
more than 20 years of experience in the media industry. From April 2002 to
April 2017, he served as a producer and host of various financial television
programs for Shanghai First Financial Media Co., Ltd. (_ /85 —Bf & @A
fR A 7]). From September 2014 to August 2016, he served as an external
postgraduate adviser of master of finance (& B8 = 2 2 B4 78 £ R 5h
FEEZ Z M) in Tonji University ([F & X 2) in the PRC. From April 2017 to
April 2020, he served as the director and a senior researcher of the Institute
of Enterprises Competitiveness (1> %3t 5 N L FT) under the Institute of
Chinese Enterprises Development of Shanghai Jiao Tong University (_E/83
BAEBREMEERFZERT). Since April 2017, Mr. Ma has been a director
and president of Shanghai Youera Media Co., Ltd. (/B4 HEHE AR A
A]), a media company, where he oversees the business operation, and a
member of the experts committee of Shanghai Brand Development Center
(LB RERES D). Since December 2018, he has been a guest lecturer
of SILC Business School of Shanghai University (_E /& X% fE T E63) for
a period of three years.

Mr. Ma obtained the qualification of an international actuary (= B &% fit
¥ & B) from the USA Federal International Qualification Authentication
Corp. (BB H B & %R B E ) in September 2017. He was named as
one of “2011-2012 Top Ten Young Economic Figures in Shanghai” (2011
F-2012F EB T+ KEFLEAY) by Shanghai Young Entrepreneurs
Association (E/8MEFRERHE) in March 2013, and “Shanghai Top
Ten Outstanding Youth” (_E£/&+ K £t H 5 &) by the 18th Shanghai Top
Ten Outstanding Youth Selection Activity Group (% + /\ @ /& + A4
B FFEEE ) formed by representatives of various organizations
including Shanghai Youth Federation, Xinhua News Agency (Shanghai
branch), Shanghai Television Station and Liberation Daily Newspaper
Group in December 2015. He was also awarded the “Shanghai Youth May
Fourth Medal” (/8™ & 4 A M4 %) by the Central Committee of the
Communist Youth League (& B /8™ % & &) and Shanghai Human
Resources and Social Security Bureau (L&MW A D ERMESRER) in
May 2014.

Mr. Ma obtained a master’s degree in industrial economics from Shanghai
University (_E/8AX2) in the PRC in April 2002 and a doctorate degree in
economics from Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences ( L8 @RI EB7) in
the PRC in July 2007.
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Mr. Ma has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 17 November 2023, and is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings
of the Company in accordance with the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company. Pursuant to the service contract, Mr. Ma will
be entitled to receive an annual remuneration (including salary, allowances
and benefits in kind) of approximately RMBO0.2 million for his role as
independent non-executive Director, which is determined by the Board
upon recommendation from the Remuneration Committee with reference
to his qualification, level of duties and responsibilities undertaken in the
Company and the prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Hung Yuk Miu, Jason (# & &) (“Mr. Hung”), aged 44, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1 March 2022.
Mr. Hung has more than 17 years of experiences in accounting and audit,
corporate finance, investor relations, company secretarial and governance.
Mr. Hung currently holds directorship in ST International Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 8521) as an non-executive director.

From August 2004 to October 2006, Mr. Hung worked at Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Hong Kong branch, an accountancy firm, and his last position
was senior accountant, responsible for external audit works. From October
2006 to May 2014, he worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified
Public Accountants LLP, Shenzhen branch, an accountancy firm, and his
last position was manager in audit department, responsible for external
audit works. From March 2017 up to now, Mr. Hung successively served as
an executive director, chief financial officer, company secretary and non-
executive director during his employment with ST International Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 8521). From July 2019 to May 2020, Mr.
Hung served as chief financial officer and company secretary of Sheng
Yuan Holdings Limited (stock code: 851). From June 2020 up to now, Mr.
Hung served as vice president, company secretary and chief financial officer
of Greentech Technology International Limited (stock code:195).

Mr. Hung graduated from Curtin University of Technology in Australia
with a Bachelor of Commerce (double major in accounting and finance) in
September 2004. In November 2007, Mr. Hung was admitted as a certified
practising accountant of the Certified Practising Accountant of CPA
Australia Ltd. Since January 2011, he has been a certified public accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Hung has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
in respect of the appointment as an independent non-executive Director
for a term of three years commencing from 1 March 2022. He is entitled
to a director’s fee of HK$240,000 per annum for his directorship in the
Company, which was determined by the Board on the recommendation
of the Remuneration Committee with reference to his qualifications,
experience, duties and responsibilities, as well as the prevailing market
conditions.

Mr. Wang Guozhen (“Mr. Wang”), aged 66, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director on 11 December 2023. He holds an
executive master’s degree in business administration with the Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business (&)L £t ). He joined the Ministry
of Finance of the People’s Republic of China (“MOF”) in 1982 and has
served as heads of various departments. He held various positions such as
the general manager of Debao Hotel (1% £k J5) operated by the MOF,
the deputy general manager of Debao Industrial Corporation ({22 & %

2~ 7)) and the deputy officer of the bureaucratic service center at the
l\/IOF (BF B 2B #4 B8 AR 75 0 0y ). He was also officer of General Office and
Bureaucratic Service Center of National Council for Social Security Fund (&
HEHeREESEEESHARE), the standing member of council of Beijing
Charity Association (Jt R 252 #€) and the member of 11th and 12th
Beijing Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (It R EIHZE 8).

From September 2018 to November 2019, Mr. Wang acted as the
executive director and vice chairman of Hsin Chong Group Holdings
Limited (FTE £ EIZ K ER A7) (“Hsin Chong”). Hsin Chong is a
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and the securities
of which were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) until 31 December 2019 (stock code:
404). Hsin Chong was principally engaged in engineering and property
businesses, and was wound up by an order of the Supreme Court of
Bermuda dated 20 January 2020, following a winding-up petition being
filed by a creditor and shareholder of Hsin Chong in January 2019. Mr.
Wang confirmed that (i) the winding up had not resulted in any liability
or obligation imposed against him, (ii) there was no wrongful act on his
part leading to the winding up process of Hsin Chong, and (iii) he was not
aware of any actual or potential claim that had been or would be made
against him as a result of the winding up. From 28 November 2019 to 2
April 2020, Mr. Wang was the independent non-executive director, and on
3 April 2020, he was re-designated as the executive director and president
of China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited (formerly known
as Link-Asia International Co. Ltd. ((Ra: B & 2 B R A 7)) (stock code:
1143), a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Wang has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 11 December 2023, and is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings
of the Company in accordance with the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company. Pursuant to the letter of appointment, Mr.
Wang will be entitled to receive a remuneration of RMB0.2 million per
annum for his role as an independent non-executive Director, which is
determined by the Board upon recommendation from the Remuneration
Committee with reference to his qualification, level of duties and
responsibilities undertaken in the Company and the prevailing market
conditions.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Yihui (BRZ &) (“Mr. Chen”), aged 35, joined the Group as the
regional president. He served as the regional president of the Group for
Eastern Zhejiang from January 2019 to January 2020 and was responsible
for the overall day-to-day business operations in the Eastern Zhejiang
region. Since January 2021, he has been promoted to the position of vice
president of the Group. He has 11 years of experience in the real estate
industry in the PRC. From July 2011 to November 2018, he successively
served as secretary to the chairman of the board and senior manager of
operation, general manager of construction company, general manager of
Fuzhou regional company, general manager of Fujian regional company,
president of the first business unit, general manager of Ronshine operation
and management center and general manager of the president’s office
of Ronshine China Holdings Limited (stock code: 03301, a property
development company whose shares are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange), during which he was mainly responsible for the overall
day-to-day business operation of the business unit and the operation and
management center.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong Willie (58 &) (“Mr. Cheung”) was appointed
as the company secretary on 10 September 2021. Mr. Cheung is a senior
manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited,
mainly responsible for assisting listed companies in professional company
secretarial work. Prior to joining SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited, he served as the company secretary of certain companies,
each of which is listed on the Stock Exchange. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. He
obtained a Bachelor Degree of Arts (Honors) in Accounting and Finance at
the University of Glamorgan in the United Kingdom in June 1996.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the holders (the “Shareholders”)
of the shares (the “Shares”) of the Company and to enhance corporate
value and accountability.

The Company has adopted and applied the corporate governance code
(the "Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix 14 (which has
been renumbered to Appendix C1 with effect from 31 December 2023)
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code on corporate
governance and, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company had
complied with all the then applicable code provisions under the Corporate
Governance Code for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Non-compliance with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.10A, 3.21 during
the Relevant Year

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31 January 2022,
following the resignation of Mr. Wong Kon Man Jason as independent
non-executive Director and his cessation to be the chairman of the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) on 31 January 2022,
(i) the number of independent non-executive Directors of the Company
fell below the minimum number required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules; (ii) the Company did not meet the requirement under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules that at least one of the independent non-
executive Directors must have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise; and (iii) the
Company did not meet the composition requirements of the Audit
Committee under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules to comprise a majority of
independent non-executive Directors and with at least one independent
non-executive Director with appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required under
Rule 3.10(2).

Following the appointment of Mr. Hung Yuk Miu Jason as independent
non-executive Director and chairman of the Audit Committee on 1 March
2022, the Company has re-complied with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.10A,
3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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Non-compliance with Rules 3.10(1), 3.21, 3.25, 3.27A after the
Relevant Year

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17 November
2023, following the resignation of Mr. Ding Jiangang as independent non-
executive Director, chairman of the Remuneration Committee, member
of the Nomination Committee and member of the Audit Committee,
the composition of the Board comprises one executive Director and
two independent non-executive Directors and hence the number of the
independent non-executive Directors and the members of each of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
fell below the minimum number required under Rules 3.10(1), 3.21,
3.25 and 3.27A of the Listing Rules. On 11 December 2023, following
the appointment of Mr. Wang Guozhen as independent non-executive
Director, chairman of the Remuneration Committee, member of the
Nomination Committee and member of the Audit Committee, the
Company has re-complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.21,
3.25 and 3.27A of the Listing Rules.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
The late Mr. Chen Guoxiang
(passed away on 16 April 2023)
Mr. Chen Hongni (Acting Chairman)
Mr. Han Bo
(resigned on 14 November 2022)
Mr. Zhao Leiyi
(resigned on 14 November 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Kon Man Jason
(resigned on 31 January 2022)
Mr. Ding Jiangang
(resigned on 17 November 2023)
Mr. Ma Hongman
Mr. Hung Yuk Miu
(appointed on 1 March 2022)
Mr. Wang Guozhen
(appointed on 11 December 2023)
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Board composition

As at 31 December 2022, the Board consisted of two executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chen Guoxiang (Chairman) and Mr. Chen Hongni (Chief
Executive Officer) (Note: Mr. Chen Guoxiang passed away on 16 April
2023, with Mr. Chen Hongni serves as the Acting Chairman), and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ding Jiangang, Mr. Ma
Hongman, and Mr. Hung Yuk Miu (Note: Mr. Ding Jiangang resigned
on 17 November 2023 and Mr. Wang Guozhen was appointed on 11
December 2023). An updated list of the Directors and their roles and
functions is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and of the
Company from time to time, respectively. The overall management and
supervision of the Company’s operation and the function of formulating
overall business strategies are vested in the Board.

Mr. Chen Guoxiang was the father of Mr. Chen Hongni, the executive
Director, chief executive officer and president of the Company. Save as
disclosed above, there are no financial, business, family or other material
relationships among the members of the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, save for the period between
31 January 2022 and 1 March 2022, the Board has at all times met the
requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors with
at least one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The three independent non-executive Directors represent more
than one-third of the Board, complying with the requirement under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive directors
of a listed issuer must represent at least one-third of the board. The Board
believes there is sufficient independence element in the Board to safeguard
the interest of Shareholders.
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Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the
Board and senior management

The Board is the primary decision making body of the Company and takes
the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the Company, including
the formulation and approval of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal
control and risk management systems, and monitor the performance of
the senior executives. The Directors have to make decisions objectively in
the interests of the Company. The Board directly, and indirectly through
its committees, leads and provides direction to the management by laying
down strategies and overseeing their implementation, monitors the
Group's operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound
internal control and risk management systems are in place. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management and
operation of the Group to the senior management of the Group. Before
entering into any significant transactions or commitments on behalf of
the Company, members of the senior management should obtain prior
approval and authorization from the Board. In order to have a clear division
between the management of the Board and the day-to-day management
of the business operations of the Group, the role of the chairman is
separate from that of the chief executive officer. During the year ended
31 December 2022, Mr. Chen Guoxiang, the then executive Director
and chairman of the Board, was responsible for formulating the overall
business direction and strategic development of the Group. Mr. Chen
Hongni, executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company, was
responsible for overseeing the overall business management of the Group
and operations of the Group’s property projects.

Liability insurance for Directors and senior management of the Company
is maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage for certain legal
liabilities which may arise in the course of performing their duties.

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of executive Directors along with other senior
executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing the strategy
and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and conducting
the day-to-day management and operations of the Group. Executive
Directors and senior executives meet regularly to review the performance
of the businesses of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources
and make financial and operational decisions. The Board also gives clear
directions as to their powers of management including circumstances
where management should report back, and will review the delegation
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to
the needs of the Group.
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Directors” and auditor’s responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are published in a timely manner.

The statements by external auditor, Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai, about
their reporting responsibility on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group are set out in the section headed “INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S
REPORT" in this annual report.

Disclaimer of Opinion (the “Disclaimer of Opinion")

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai issued a disclaimer of opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, details of which are set out
in the independent auditor’s report.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern

As set out in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
incurred net loss of RMB3,926,577,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 and as at 31 December 2022, the Group’s liabilities include interest
bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes, corporate bonds
and interest payable on these payables with their carrying amounts
of RMB22,994,546,000, RMB5,049,837,000, RMB539,268,000 and
RMB1,077,297,000 respectively, out of RMB19,391,598,000 have
been due for settlement within the year after that date or repayable on
demand are included in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position, while its available cash and cash equivalent amounted to
RMB1,195,932,000.

In addition, the Group had default or cross default of principals on certain
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and corporate
bonds to the aggregate of RMB12,454,465,000 as at 31 December 2022
and RMB13,172,070,000 as at the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements. These conditions, together with other matters
disclosed in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate
the existence of material multiple uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Directors
of the Company on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends
upon the results of the successful implementation and outcome of the
measures, as detailed in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
to be undertaken by the Group. In view of the extent of the material
uncertainties relating to the results of those measures to be undertaken by
the Group which might cast a significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as going concern, we have disclaimed our audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying values of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Management'’s position, view and assessment on the disclaimer of
Opinion

The Directors of the Company have undertaken a number of plans and
measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, including
that the Group:

1. has been actively negotiating with a number of financial institutions
for renewal, extension and replacement of bank loans and other
borrowings;

2. will proactively communicate with relevant government departments

to secure bail-out funds for qualified project development;

3. will continue to actively communicate with banks to timely
secure relevant project development loans for qualified project
development;

4. will continue to seek for other alternative financing and borrowings
to finance the settlement of its existing financial obligations and
future operating and capital expenditures;

5. has prepared a business strategy plan mainly focusing on the
acceleration of the sales of properties;

6. has adopted measures to speed up the collection of outstanding

sales proceeds and effectively control costs and expenses; and

7. will continue to seek suitable opportunities to dispose of its equity
interest in certain project development companies in order to
generate additional cash inflows.
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The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into account
the above plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations. Accordingly, the Directors of the Company
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 on a going
concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above plans and measures, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether the Group will be able to implement them successfully.
Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments
may have to be made to write down the carrying values of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

As of the date of this report, the negotiations with the banks and
financial institutions and the restructuring plan are still ongoing. The
Company will publish an appropriate announcement when there is a
material development regarding its restructuring and re-financing plans in
accordance with the Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions (as
defined in the Listing Rules) under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Audit Committee’s view on the Disclaimer of Opinion

The Audit Committee of the Board has critically reviewed the disclaimer
of opinion of Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited (the “Disclaimer
of Opinion”), the management’s position concerning the Disclaimer of
Opinion (the “Management’s Position”) and measures taken by the Group
for addressing the Disclaimer of Opinion. The Audit Committee agreed
with the Management’s Position based on the reasons above. Moreover,
the Audit Committee has requested the management to take all necessary
actions to address the uncertainties regarding going concern underlying
the Disclaimer of Opinion. The Audit Committee had also discussed with
Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited regarding the financial position of
the Group, measures taken and to be taken by the Group, and considered
Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited’s rationale and understood their
consideration in arriving their opinion.
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Independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in the Board
by virtue of their independent judgment and their views carry significant
weight in the Board'’s decision. The functions of independent non-executive
Directors include bringing an impartial view and judgement on issues of
the Company’s strategies, performance and control; and scrutinising the
Company's performance and monitoring performance reporting.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management experience and have
made positive contributions to the development of the Company through
providing their professional advice to the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of three
years.

Confirmation of independence

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors has been
assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules and each of
the relevant independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
written confirmation of independence to the Company in relation
to the year ended 31 December 2022. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for
assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent.

Board diversity policy

To enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain the high
standard of corporate governance, the Company has adopted the
board diversity policy in October 2020, which sets out the objective and
approach to achieve and maintain diversity of the Board. Pursuant to
the board diversity policy, the Company seeks to achieve board diversity
by taking into consideration of various factors, including but not limited
to professional experience, skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and
education background, ethnicity and length of service with the Group.

The nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the
Company is responsible for ensuring the diversity of the Board members
and compliance with relevant codes governing board diversity under the
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity
policy and its diversity profile from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness.
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The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge, skills and experience,
including the areas of real estate, accounting, financial management,
education and manufacturing industries. They obtained academic diplomas
and degrees in various majors, including economics, business studies,
accounting and management science and engineering. The Company
has three independent non-executive Directors with different industry
backgrounds, representing more than one-third of the members of the
Board. Furthermore, the Board has a wide range of age, ranging from 41
years old to 66 years old.

As at 31 December 2022, Board diversification in terms of gender and age
group is set out below:

31-40
0%

The Company has also taken, and will continue to take steps to promote
gender diversity at all levels of the Company, including but not limited to
the Board and the management levels. In order to ensure gender diversity
at the Board level, the Nomination Committee is currently in the process
of identifying at least one suitable female candidate who has necessary
skills and experience to the Board for its consideration of Director. The
Board will use its best endeavor and aim to have at least one female board
representation by 31 December 2024. The Board will strive to achieve an
appropriate balance of gender diversity with reference to the stakeholders’
expectation and international and local recommended best practices, with
the ultimate goal of bringing the Board to gender parity. The Company
will also ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff at mid
to senior level so that it will have a pipeline of female senior management
and potential successors to the Board in a few years’ time. As female
representation in senior roles throughout the economy and the pool of
qualified females keeps growing, the Group expects to have more female
members in the Board from time to time.
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Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
has entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment with the
Company for a specific term. Such term is subject to his retirement by
rotation and re-election at an annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”). Pursuant to the Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association,
the Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director, there shall be no maximum number of Directors unless otherwise
determined from time to time by the Shareholders in general meeting.
Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to the Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest
to but not less that one-third), shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The
members of the Company may, at any general meetings convened and
held in accordance with the Articles of Association, remove a Director by
ordinary resolution at any time before the expiration of his period of office
notwithstanding anything contrary in the Articles of Association or in any
agreement between the Company and such Director and may by ordinary
resolution elect or appoint another person in his stead.

Directors’ training and professional development

Every newly appointed Director has been given a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on appointment. Subsequently, the Directors
will receive updates on the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the latest development of the Group's business and
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop their knowledge and skills. During the year ended 31 December
2022, all the Directors have attended continuous professional development
training sessions in compliance with code provision C.1.4 of the Corporate
Governance Code. Mr. Hung Yuk Miu was appointed as a Director on
1 March 2022 and has received and reviewed the relevant director’s
induction and training materials for his appointment.
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Board meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group.
Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means
of communications. The Board holds at least four meetings a year at
approximately quarterly intervals after Listing. Additional meetings would
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be arranged, if and when required. The date of each meeting is decided in

advance to enable the Directors to attend the meeting in person.

- RIREZ
IR EE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 11 Board meetings were held.
Two meetings of the Audit Committee, two meetings of the Remuneration
Committee and two meetings of the Nomination Committee were held.
The attendance records of each member of the Board is set out below:

FT
HEER HEHMH LERS
LEESE ZREeH/ ZEEe€E/ ZEEeE/
&3 /E28 EREEE ¥MzES REZE® HRBRAZ/
EERE RS EE VS SERE  RRAERY
Attendance/  Attendance/  Attendance/  Attendance/  Attendance/
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
BEzpg Name of Director Meetings ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
BREIH 72 4 Mr. Chen Guoxiang
(RZZ-=FWATXAF) (passed away on 16 April 2023) 1mm TEENA T NA 22 171
BoAfi ks Mr. Chen Hongni /11 TEENA 2 TEENA 17N
Y Mr. Han Bo
(RZZZZF+—-RTRAFL) (resigned on 14 November 2022) 1011 TEANA TEENA TEANA 17n
BEELE Mr. Zhao Leiyi
(RZZZZF+—-RTRAFL) (resigned on 14 November 2022) 1011 TEANA TEBENA TEANA 17n
R Mr. Wong Kon Man Jason
(R=Z-—F-A=+—-HED) (resigned on 31 January 2022) 211 0n TEBENA TEANA o1
TEREE Mr. Ding Jiangang
(RZZZ=F+—-A+AFHT) (resigned on 17 November 2023) 1011 20 20 20 17
BHEEE Mr. Ma Hongman 10M 22 22 20 171
HEEEE Mr. Hung Yuk Miu Jason
(R-Z--—%F=F-BEZHA) (appointed on 1 March 2022) 6/11 20 TEENA TEANA 17

HEZR(EE)ERLQT

R FFH



%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%%%%%
/\'

B LMK ARRIEHRA LEHARBMER0
(BEEFHmABMHEC B FE_=F+_
A=Z+—HEER B LTETAESE
TEFXSORESTA(MRETA D ELE
EFHEEARAESFNES - BAZTES(FL
ARENEK 2REEHRBE_FT_—
ToA=+t—BLEFE RESETEET
AIFTE AR EIRE o

ENEHREEE K S EM
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLFE =

mERERE EFHRI) 2 FHRARIHS)
mT

EEEREE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in Appendix 10 (which has been
renumbered to Appendix C3 with effect from 31 December 2023) to
the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the guidelines for the Directors’
dealings in the securities of the Company since the Listing. Following
specific enquiries to each of the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed
their compliance with the required standards set out in the Model Code for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO MEMBERS OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The annual remuneration of members of the senior management (other
than Directors) by band for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out
below:

SREEERE AR
Number of members of
senior management

AR 1,500,001 7.E A E# 2,000,000 7T
AR#2,000,001 7% A R# 2,500,000 7T
AR#2,500,001 7% A E# 3,000,000 7T
AR 4,000,001 7% AR % 4,500,000 7T

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000
RMB2,500,001 to RMB3,000,000
RMB4,000,001 to RMB4,500,000

O O O —
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the
Company may declare and distribute dividends to the Shareholders,
provided that the Group records a profit after tax and that the declaration
and distribution of dividends does not affect the normal operations of
the Group. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board would take into account (i) the Group’s
financial results; (ii) shareholders’ interests; (iii) general business conditions
and strategies; (iv) capital requirements; (v) taxation considerations; (vi)
contractual, statutory and regulatory restriction, if any; and any other
conditions that the Board may consider relevant. Whilst the Board will
review from time to time for determination on proposed dividend with the
above factors taken into account, there can be no assurance that dividends
will be declared or paid in any particular amount for any given period.

Dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board during a
financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to
Shareholders’ approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The Board had performed the above duties during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the positions of the chairman
and the chief executive officer were held separately. The role of chairman
was held by Mr. Chen Guoxiang, and the role of chief executive officer was
held by Mr. Chen Hongni. After the passing away of Mr. Chen Guoxiang
on 16 April 2023, Mr. Chen Hongni was appointed as acting chairman
with effect from 16 April 2023. The Board has been trying to identify a
suitable candidate for the role of chairman such that the two roles can be
separated since then. However, after Mr. Chen Hongni has assumed the
two roles, the Board considered that vesting the roles of both chairman and
chief executive officer in the same individual could provide the Group with
strong and consistent leadership in the development and execution of the
Group’s business strategies to achieve higher responsiveness and efficiency,
which is beneficial to the Group. The Board will continue to review the
effectiveness of the current structure and assess whether separation of the
roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer is necessary.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees with specific written terms of
reference to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs.

Audit committee

The Board established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee has been uploaded to the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.shinsunholdings.com).

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review, supervise and
approve the financial reporting process and internal control system and to
provide advice and comments to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to consider the independence and audit scope of the auditor,
review and discuss the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit and risk control
function, the Group’s consolidated interim and annual financial statements
and the opinion and report of the independent auditor before reporting
and submitting to the Board for their approval.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Ma Hongman, Mr. Hung Yuk Miu and Mr. Wang
Guozhen, each of them is an independent non-executive Director. The
chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Hung Yuk Miu, who possesses
appropriate professional qualifications.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules on 20 October 2020.
The Remuneration Committee reviews and recommends to the Board the
remuneration and other benefits paid by the Group to its Directors and
senior management. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include, but are not limited to (i) establishing, reviewing and providing
advices to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure concerning
remuneration of the Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policies
concerning such remuneration; (i) determining the terms of the specific
remuneration package of each Director and senior management member;
and (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Directors from
time to time.

The Remuneration Committee reviewed and passed the relevant resolutions
on 1 March 2022 in relation to the remuneration of Mr. Hung Yuk Miu
upon his appointment as independent non-executive Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, two meetings of the
Remuneration Committee were held for making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual Directors and the senior
management. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note
9 to the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee consists of
three members, two of whom are independent non-executive Directors.
The three members are Mr. Wang Guozhen (being the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Chen Hongni and Mr. Ma Hongman.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules on 20 October 2020.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are not
limited to, (i) reviewing the structure, size and composition of our Board
on a regular basis and making recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed changes to the composition of the Board; (ii) identifying,
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorship, and ensuring the diversity of our
Board members; (iii) assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and (iv) making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the Directors and succession planning for the Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviewed and passed the relevant resolutions
on 1 March 2022 in relation to the appointment of Mr. Hung Yuk Miu as
independent non-executive Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, two meetings of the
Nomination Committee were held to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board,
the board diversity policy, assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of the new Director in accordance with the Company’s
nomination policy including the nomination procedures and criteria listed
below and composition of the Board Committees.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee consists of
three members, two of whom are independent non-executive Directors.
The three members are Mr. Chen Hongni (being the chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. Wang Guozhen and Mr. Ma Hongman.
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Nomination policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the selection
criteria and procedures to nominate board candidates. The Nomination
Committee aims to nominate suitable candidates to the Board and advise
the Board on the appointment of directors and make recommendations to
the Board, after assessing a number of factors of a candidate as set out in
the nomination policy.

Pursuant to the nomination policy, the Nomination Committee shall identify
suitable board candidates and make recommendation to the Board, after
assessing a number of factors of a candidate, including, but not limited to:

o reputation for integrity

o accomplishment and experience

o compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

o commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest

o diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age

(18 years or above), cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service

The Nomination Committee may also consider such other factors as it may
deem are in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy at its
discretion, and recommend revision to the Board for consideration and
approval from time to time as appropriate.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Financial reporting system

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. In
preparation of the financial statements, International Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies
have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to present a
clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the annual
and interim reports to the Shareholders, and make appropriate disclosure
and announcements in a timely manner. Pursuant to the then applicable
code provision C.1.1 of the Code, the management would provide such
explanation and information to the Board as it will enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before the Board for approval.

The work scope and reporting responsibilities of Prism Hong Kong and
Shanghai, the Company’s external auditor, are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on page 96 of this report.

Risk management and internal control system

The Board confirms that it is responsible for maintaining adequate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the Group as
a going concern and reviews annually the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal controls and risk management systems to ensure the adequacy
of the internal controls and the risk management systems in place. These
systems are designed to manage, not eliminate, the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that there will be no material misstatement or loss.
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The Board and senior management are responsible for determining
the Group’s overall business and investment plans, formulating annual
financial budgets, proposals for final accounting and proposals for profit
distributions, and is in charge of the overall risk control of the Group.
The internal control system covers all major aspects of the Group's
operations, including, among others, property development, property
sales, investment property management, procurement, financial reporting,
asset management, budgeting and accounting processes. The Group also
has an internal audit and risk control function which primarily carries out
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness
of its risk management and internal control systems, and reports their
findings to the Board on, at least, an annual basis. The finance and fund
management center is primarily responsible for managing liquidity risks.
Also, the legal and risk management department is required to involve and
obtain inputs from the investment and development center with respect to
any investment plan, and is responsible for evaluating the investment plan
from the legal perspective and updating the internal departments if there
are relevant changes to the applicable laws relating to investment and
financing.

With respect to the Group's risk management and internal control
measures, the Group has a set of comprehensive policies and guidelines
which set out details regarding the internal control standards, segregation
of responsibilities, approval procedures and personnel accountability in
each aspect. The Group also carries out regular internal assessments and
training to ensure its employees are equipped with sufficient knowledge
on such policies and guidelines. In addition, the Group also implemented
risk management policies against corruption and fraudulent activities. The
Group's major anti-corruption and anti-fraud measures and procedures
include:

- the internal audit and risk control function shall be primarily
responsible for establishing, reviewing and evaluating the Group'’s
anti-corruption and anti-fraud policies and monitoring their
implementation;

- as specified in the Group’s staff handbooks, employees are explicitly
prohibited from taking/offering bribes or kickbacks from/to
suppliers or other third parties, manipulating bidding procedures,
misusing the Group’s assets, or providing improper hospitality and
entertainment to suppliers or other third parties;
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- all of the Directors and senior management are requested to
identify and make periodical reports to the headquarters about
conflicts of interest, including potential related party transactions,
the engagement of competing businesses, or the receipt of unjust
benefits or enrichment by using the Group’s assets or resources or
taking advantage of his or her position;

- the Group plans to provide anti-corruption and anti-fraud
compliance trainings periodically to the Directors, senior
management and employees to enhance their knowledge and
awareness of the relevant laws and regulations; and

- the Group undertakes rectification measures with respect to any
identified corruption or fraudulent activities, evaluating such
activities and proposing and establishing preventative measures to
avoid future non-compliances.

The Group also engaged an external consultant specialising in identifying
and evaluating significant risk of its business and operation. The external
consultant does not have any connection with the Group and the
Board believes that their involvement could enhance the objectivity and
transparency of evaluation process. In conjunction with the Group’s
internal audit and risk control function and senior management, the
external consultant conducts an annual assessment on risk management
and internal control systems of the Group to identify the major risk and
significant deficiencies and resolve any material internal control defects (as
appropriate), together with suggestion and solutions and submit to the
Board for their consideration.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has implemented
procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of
inside information. In particular, the Group:

- has conducted its affairs in compliance with the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published
by the Securities and Futures Commission in June 2012,

- has established its own disclosure obligation procedures, which set
out the procedures and controls for the assessment of potential
inside information and the handling and dissemination of inside
information. The procedures have been communicated to the senior
management and staff of the Company, and their implementation
was monitored by the Company; and
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- has made broad, non-exclusive disclosure of information to
the public through channels such as financial reports, public
announcements and its website.

The risk management and internal control systems are reviewed and
assessed on an on-going basis by the Audit Committee and the executive
Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed at least once
annually by the Board. During the year ended 31 December 2022, these
systems were reviewed, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls of the Group, and considered effective
and adequate.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit services provided by the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately as
follows:

2E(AR%E TR
R R Type of Services Amount (RMB’000)
ZEAR T Audit services 4,800
et Total 4,800
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong Willie as company
secretary. Mr. Cheung is a senior manager of an external service provider,
SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr. Cheung has
confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2022, he has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biography of Mr. Cheung is set out in the
“Biographies of Directors and senior management” section on pages 42
to 46 of this report. The primary contact person of Mr. Cheung is Mr. Qiu
Weijie from the finance department of the Company.
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DIVERSITY

The Group aims to create a comprehensive and collaborative workplace
environment and see great strength in the diversity of workforce, regardless
of the gender, age, sexual orientation or religious backgrounds. As at
31 December 2022, the Group has a total number of 1,256 employees
(including senior management), among them, 744 are male and 512 are
female.

The Board considers that there is an appropriate gender balance in the
Group’s workforce. The Group is committed to maintain at least the
current gender ratio. To achieve diversity at workforce level, the Group has
put in place appropriate recruitment and selection practices such that a
diverse range of candidates with different age, gender and experiences are
considered. The Group will continue to look for opportunities to increase
the proportion of female staff.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has not been made
aware of any factor or circumstance that make it more challenging or
less relevant for staff, including senior management, to achieve gender
diversity.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary general
meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit,
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association for the Shareholders
to put forward proposals at general meetings. Shareholders who wish
to put forward proposals may request the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out
in the above paragraph headed “Convening an extraordinary general
meeting”.
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Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal
with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to
the following:
Address: 40/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

E-mail address:  ir@xsjt.cn

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company has established
a shareholder’s communication policy to ensure that shareholders
have equal and timely access to corporate information. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings.
Corporate information will be communicated to the Shareholders through
the Company’s corporate communications and general meetings that may
be held, as well as publications on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.com) and the Company (www.shinsunholdings.com),
where Shareholders may access information about the Company.
Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Company and provide
comments and suggestions to the Board through the channels mentioned
above. The Company will respond to Shareholders’ enquiries as soon as
practicable upon receipt.

Based on the above, the Board considers that the Company’s shareholder
communication policy remained effective during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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POLICY ON INDEPENDENT VIEWS OF DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the following mechanisms are
in place and remain effective in ensuring that independent views and input
are available to the Board:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Maintaining a sufficient number of three independent non-
executive Directors (representing more than one third of the Board)
who have extensive experience and in-depth knowledge continuing
to provide independent views and input to the Board on the
business affairs of the Company;

Policy and procedures are in place to avoid any potential conflict of
interests. Any Director who has a material interest in any transaction
relating to the Company shall abstain from voting on any Board
resolution approving the same matter;

Each Director is required to contribute sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company and in particularly, to
the development of the Company’s strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and informed comments; and

The Board and its committees are entitled to seek independent
professional advice on issues relevant to the Company from external
professional consultants and advisors as deemed necessary from
time to time.

AMENDMENTS TO THE MEMORANDUM AND
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company’s Articles of Association has been amended and restated
with effect from the Listing Date, and are available on the respective
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company did not made any
significant changes to its constitutional documents.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.

71



72

EEgWRE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEMARINAKERE_T_—_F+=
A=t ALFREZFHRERAKLEZLGEAM
B -

FEXRHK

RARREREER AR REMB AR EEK
EENMTENRT RZR=ARIKHEMBH
MHRENEENE -AKBERE_T_—
ToAZ+T-BLEFERIZEBKID 2K
B REERBEZOMBNAREE 1742
REBER A EIMAMGES -

£

AEBHE-_T_—_F+-_A=1+—HLt*F
EMEEHFRAAIREMREBEFERE] -
AREFI0BEZAEBEGEBEEREME
AR ESK ©

E 3 JC)

—KREEH

FRAREE Z 5750 B R A SR B R R SR 3%
RZAWMDBIERAREL12AE4ER
FIEEMAEN[REIERS]I RIEE
BT BT | E AT -

gEoh c BEAEBBREBE KRB REE
B BF HEARIZEHEBEN®W
BHRTNAEETERER - FHEBE=ZT
T F A+ AU REELEFRIAK
BEFEREBNERNFEFBHRERE
FTEMEAMIBHREWNTAL7 - F 168
EMNEMEEETREIN] —f - AR
AIHEEES BPEMEAZIEBERERS
FLEARE(EEESwmEST—RE
FHBREEBI I REEeRE-TERP
RALFER | Z6 -

HEER(EB)ARRR T _FFRH

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in developing and selling properties in cities in Zhejiang
Province and other cities in the Pan-Yangtze River Delta Region in the PRC.
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating results for the year ended
31 December 2022 by its principal activities is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group on page 174 in this report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in the “Acting Chairman’s Statement” section of this report and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the Group on page 100 of this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

General

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion on the Group’s
future business development during the year are set out in the sections
headed “Acting Chairman’s statement” and “Management discussion
and analysis” on pages 12 to 14 and pages 16 to 41, respectively, of this
report.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental protection policies,
performance and relationships with employees, customers, suppliers and
major stakeholders are set out below in this directors’ report. Particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of
the financial year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 257 in this report. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is set out in the section headed “Management discussion and
analysis” on pages 16 to 41 of this report. An account of the Company’s
key relationships with its employees, customers and suppliers, please refer
to the sections headed “Management discussion and analysis — Employee,
Remuneration Policy and Training” and “Directors’ Report — Major
customers and suppliers” in this report.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s operations involve certain risks, some of which are beyond its
control. These risks can be broadly categorized into: (i) risks relating to its
business; (ii) risks relating to the industry; and (iii) risks relating to the PRC.

A discussion of certain principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s businesses
and other relevant information, can also be found in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this report. Such discussion
forms part of this “Directors’ Report”. The Directors believe that there are
certain risks and uncertainties involved in the operations, some of which
are beyond the Group’s control.

Some of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group include
the following:

- the Group’s business and prospects are susceptible to adverse
movements in the PRC real estate market, particularly in provinces
and cities where the Group has property projects;

- the Group generates a majority of its revenue from property
development and sales in the Zhejiang Province, and therefore is
susceptible to any significant decline in the economic condition of
Zhejiang Province;

- the Group may not have adequate financing to fund its future
property development, and capital resources may not be available
on favorable terms, or at all;

- the Group may not be able to identify desirable locations or acquire
land use rights for future property development on favorable terms,
or at all.

However, the above is not an exhaustive list. Investors are advised to
make their own judgment or consult their own investment advisors before

making any investment in the shares of the Company.

The Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Environmental policies and performance

It is the Group's corporate and social responsibility in promoting a
sustainable and environmental friendly environment, and the Group strives
to minimise its environmental impact and comply with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations.

The measures it takes to ensure its compliance with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations include:

(i) strictly selecting construction contractors and supervising the
process of construction;

(ii) applying for review by the relevant government authorities in a
timely manner after the project is completed; and

(iii) actively adopting environmentally friendly equipment and
designs. The Group also takes voluntary actions with respect to
environmental protection and make energy conservation and
emission reduction as primary considerations when designing its
property projects.

None of the Group's properties had received any material fines or penalties
associated with the breach of any environmental laws or regulations during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with the Shares listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Group’s subsidiaries are
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong and the PRC. The
Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Group’s subsidiaries in
China while the Group also has a corporate and administrative office in
Hong Kong.

Its establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant
laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands,
the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
Cayman lIslands, the British Virgin Islands, the PRC and Hong Kong that
have a significant impact on the Group.
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Relationship with employees

The Group places emphasis on human capital and strives to create an
environment that enables employees to develop their full potential
and assists them in their personal and professional development. The
Group provides a fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity among
its employees, offers competitive remuneration and benefits and career
development opportunities based on their achievements and performance,
and makes continuous efforts to provide employees with comprehensive
training and development resources to attract and retain skilled and
talented employees from reputable universities of PRC.

Relationship with suppliers

The Group is dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers as long-
term business partners to ensure stability of the Group’s businesses.

Relationship with customers

The Group’s customers are primarily individual buyers and corporate
entities. Customer satisfaction with our services and products has a
profound impact on our profitability. The Group values customer feedback
on its products, its dedicated sales team is in constant communication with
its customers and potential customers to identify customers’ pain points
alongside grasping the market trend, thus helping the Group to timely
adjust our operating strategies to fit the market requirement.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended not to declare a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s borrowings during the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SENIOR NOTES

Details of senior notes of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out on pages 103 and
104 of this report. In respect of Company, the amount of reserves available
for distribution under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands as at 31
December 2022 was RMB-996.5 million.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022
amounted to RMB0.04 million.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
state of the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 101 to 102 in this report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date
of this report were:

Name of director Position

Mr. Chen Guoxiang (Chairman) Executive Director
(passed away on
16 April 2023)

Mr. Chen Hongni Executive Director
(Acting Chairman)
Mr. Han Bo Executive Director

(resigned on
14 November 2022)
Mr. Zhao Leiyi Executive Director
(resigned on
14 November 2022)
Mr. Wong Kon Man Jason Independent non-executive Director
(resigned on
31 January 2022)
Mr. Ding Jiangang Independent non-executive Director
(resigned on
17 November 2023)
Mr. Ma Hongman Independent non-executive Director
Mr. Hung Yuk Miu Jason Independent non-executive Director
(appointed on
1 March 2022)
Mr. Wang Guozhen Independent non-executive Director
(appointed on
11 December 2023)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of 3 years.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors signed a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of 3 years.

The appointment of all the Directors is for a period of three years and shall
continue thereafter until being terminated by either party giving not less
than three months’ prior written notice.

None of the Directors has a service contract with members of the Group

that is not terminable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors, the
management or controlling shareholders of the Company nor their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a
business that competed or might compete with the business of the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company approved and adopted the Share Option Scheme on 20
October 2020. The Share Option Scheme is subject to the requirements
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Share Option Scheme
(1) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide selected participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company
and to encourage selected participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Company and
Shareholders as a whole. The Directors believe the Share Option Scheme
will enable the Group to reward its employees, the Directors and other
selected participants for their contributions to the Group. The Share
Option Scheme provides the Company with a flexible means of retaining,
incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to selected participants.

(2) Participants

Any individual, being an employee, director, officer, consultant, advisor,
distributor, contractor, customer, supplier, agent, business partner,
joint venture business partner or service provider of any member of the
Company or any affiliate who the Board or its delegate(s) considers, in
their sole discretion, to have contributed or will contribute to the Company
is entitled to be offered and granted options. However, no individual who
is resident in a place where the grant, acceptance or exercise of options
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme is not permitted under the laws
and regulations of such place or where, in the view of the Board or its
delegate(s), compliance with applicable laws and regulations in such place
makes it necessary or expedient to exclude such individual, is eligible to be
offered or granted options.
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(3) The maximum number of Shares available for issue

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue on the day
on which trading of the Shares commences on the Stock Exchange, and
such 10% limit represents 300,000,000 Shares, representing 9.86% of the
total Shares in issue as at the date of this report.

(4) The maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being.

(5) Time of acceptance and exercise of option

The Share Option Scheme does not specify any minimum vesting period,
but the Board has the authority to determine the period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. An option may, subject to
the terms and conditions upon which such option is granted, be exercised
in whole or in part by the grantee giving notice in writing to the Company
in such form as the Board may from time to time determine stating that the
option is thereby exercised and the number of Shares in respect of which
it is exercised. An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option
is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years
from that date. The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option
may be exercised more than 10 years after the Listing Date.

(6) Subscription price for Shares
The subscription price per Share under the Share Option Scheme will be a
price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which must
be a business day;

(ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.
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(7) Grant offer letter and notification of grant of options

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and the option to which
the offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted and to have taken
effect when the duplicate of the offer letter comprising acceptance of the
offer duly signed by the grantee with the number of Shares in respect of
which the offer is accepted clearly stated therein together with a remittance
in favor of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant
thereof is received by our Company on or before the date upon which an
offer of an option must be accepted by the relevant selected participants,
which must be received by the Company within ten business days from the
date on which the offer letter is delivered to the grantee. Such remittance
shall in no circumstances be refundable.

Any offer may be accepted in respect of less than the number of Shares
for which it is offered provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot
for dealing in Shares or a multiple thereof. To the extent that the offer is
not accepted within ten business days from the date on which the letter
containing the offer is delivered to that selected participant, it shall be
deemed to have been irrevocably declined.

(8) The duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for the period of
ten years commencing on the Listing (after which, no further options
shall be offered or granted under the Share Option Scheme), but in all
other respects the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in
full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in
accordance with the provisions of the rules of the Share Option Scheme. As
at the date of this report, the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is
approximately 6 years and 9 months.

For further details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the section
headed “Statutory and general information — D. Share incentive scheme”
in Appendix V to the Prospectus.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the date of
this report, no option was granted or agreed to be granted, exercised or
cancelled by the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. There
was no outstanding share option under the Share Option Scheme as at the
date of this report.

As at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022, the aggregate number
of options available for grant under the Share Option Scheme were
300,000,000 and 300,000,000, respectively. There was no service provider
sublimit set under the Share Option Scheme.
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BEERERETHRAERARQATH DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
HEEBELZENKRG  HEROR AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
BEEIZINEZRRE SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR

ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

RZBZZF+ZA=+—0 KXQFAE=SF As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
E&ESTBAERARLDRASEBEER (E and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
ERBHFRAEGRI(ESRBAEGMN])E and debentures of the Company or its associated corporation (within the
XVED) #I iR - ABRERR (D REEBZRHES L meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")
ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁ%&,ﬁﬂ%ﬂw J%BSZ BETHFE which were required to be entered in the register kept by the Company
AR FECMeEZR AR - IRBIZAE pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were otherwise required, to

SFRIZBRE AR A A &Hﬁ‘ﬁ?&ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ&*ﬁ?&&?ﬁ%ﬁﬂ be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

D Code, are set out below:

RAE R R B #E 2 INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

EE ERTBAEES EEME R3S ARRE R 7 BB e BARRE D™=

Name of Director/ Number of Shares or  Approximate percentage

chief executive Nature of interest underlying Shares Mot of shareholding Note »

PRI 55 4 ZrLAlIE A HE2) 2,376,000,000 (L) 78.07%

Mr. Chen Guoxiang Founder of a trust N2

B BA 172 55 A4 FEREZEEA 2,376,000,000 (L) 78.07%

Mr. Chen Hongni Beneficiary of a trust

Bt 5 Notes:

1) RZZE-_—F+=-A=+—8 AREIBE T (1) As at 31 December 2022, the Company issued 3,043,403,000 Shares. The letter (L) denotes
3,043,403,000 R & {9 o SF & [L] 8 5% B 88 48 the entity’s long position in the relevant Shares.

BRI EFE -

(2) Shinlight Limited #) 2 & 2 % 17 3% ZX B3 Shinfamily (2) The entire issued share capital of Shinlight Limited was held by Shinfamily Holdings Limited
Holdings Limited ([ Shinfamily Holdings ) # % - M ("Shinfamily Holdings"), which was the holding vehicle of TMF (Cayman) Ltd. TMF (Cayman)
Shinfamily Holdings £ TMF (Cayman) Ltd. #91Z f& 2~ Ltd. was the trustee of the CGX Family Trust (the “Family Trust”), a discretionary trust
&) o TMF (Cayman) Ltd. 7 CGX Family Trust ([ 5 i& established by Mr. Chen Guoxiang as settlor, the beneficiaries of which were Mr. Chen
B3] AREI R EERBZ AR RS Guoxiang and his family members including Mr. Chen Hongni. Accordingly, each of Mr.
EXm ARRBERLERERKKE (215 5A Chen Guoxiang and Mr. Chen Hongni was deemed under the SFO to be interested in the
REA))HIZFTA - Bt - RIEBFF REBEED - Shares held by Shinlight Limited.

Bek B 4 55 A Ko PR 54 15 28 £ & B 443 & 1A Shinlight
Limited 3 B &R 5 R HEH 2 ©
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16 B % B IR 17+ HE B Y i

INTERESTS IN SHARES OF ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

B YTESHS HEEE R EamE RGEE BAERBES L
Approximate
Name of Director/ Name of associated Number percentage of
Executive Directors corporation Nature of interest of shares shareholding
FR B #E 25 4 Shinlight Limited ERT-IEEYNGE s 100%
Mr. Chen Guoxiang Shinlight Limited Founder of a trustt 1 share
BR 54 {52 55 4 Shinlight Limited Btz Zam AW 1 100%
Mr. Chen Hongni Shinlight Limited Beneficiary of a trusto®© 1 share

Fff 5 : Shinlight Limited 8 2 30 B %% 17 B < 8 Shinfamily
Holdings#§ & - i Shinfamily Holdings A& TMF
(Cayman) Ltd. A9#5 f& A & ° TMF (Cayman) Ltd. &
Family Trust (FRFREIH EEERZTAR IS
HET EXHZARRBEHEERERERKE
(BIEFGAMREAE)) WA - Bt - RIEFH
REEGEN  REEEERKRLREES AR
18 AT Shinlight Limited B A% 17 o #E A 25 ©

BrEXHIEZREN RZEZ=_F+=A
=+—H BMEESEAAFRESTBRAER
RAA B S EAESEBE &R G, - HEERG &
BEREFREECENRIEES MBS KOS
32EB T HEENELMALRIFZELEST A
B RN R R ERSRE -

HEER(EE)ARAR —ZE-_FFH

Note: The entire issued share capital of Shinlight Limited was held by Shinfamily Holdings,
which was the holding vehicle of TMF (Cayman) Ltd. TMF (Cayman) Ltd. was the trustee
of the Family Trust, a discretionary trust established by Mr. Chen Guoxiang as settlor,
the beneficiaries of which were Mr. Chen Guoxiang and his family members including
Mr. Chen Hongni. Accordingly, each of Mr. Chen Guoxiang and Mr. Chen Hongni was
deemed under the SFO to be interested in the share of Shinlight Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations, recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS * AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 December 2022, the following
persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or
more of the Shares of the Company:

REDEERDEB W2
Number of Shares or
underlying Shares Mete

AR E D WD
Approximate percentage
of shareholding Mete "

TMF (Cayman) Ltd.
TMF (Cayman) Ltd.
Shinfamily Holdings
Shinfamily Holdings

Shinlight Limited
Shinlight Limited
KEW R+

Ms. Zhu Guoling

[EEE A A (H52)
Trustee of a trust Mote2
REfEE RS
Interest in a controlled
corporation
FAEG A WD
Beneficial owner (Note 2
Tic {8 42 25 (0T 3)
Interest of spouse Mo

2,376,000,000 (L) 78.07%
2,376,000,000 (L) 78.07%
2,376,000,000 (L) 78.07%
2,376,000,000 (L) 78.07%

GEE
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3,043,403,000 & B 1 « TR [L]IER 2 E BB
BRGETE ©

(2) Shinlight Limited 8 2 # 2 % 17 i% 4X B Shinfamily
Holdings# /& * M Shinfamily Holdings & TMF
(Cayman) Ltd. #9425 & A & © TMF (Cayman) Ltd.?%}
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TMF (Cayman) Ltd. % Shinfamily Holdings #3458 &7
Shinlight Limited 5 5 K iR fn P HE B #E 2w ©

() RERZLR/EHREHEENLE - RIEES
REIE RG] RER 2 TRE AR RE R LA
ERDH RO EAES

Notes:

(1) As at 31 December 2022, the Company issued 3,043,403,000 Shares. The letter (L) denotes
the entity’s long position in the relevant Shares.

(2) The entire issued share capital of Shinlight Limited was held by Shinfamily Holdings, which
was the holding vehicle of TMF (Cayman) Ltd.. TMF (Cayman) Ltd. was the trustee of
the Family Trust, a discretionary trust established by Mr. Chen Guoxiang as settlor, the
beneficiaries of which were Mr. Chen Guoxiang and his family members. Accordingly, each
of Mr. Chen Guoxiang, TMF (Cayman) Ltd. and Shinfamily Holdings was deemed under the
SFO to be interested in the Shares held by Shinlight Limited.

(3) Ms. Zhu Guoling is the spouse of the late Mr. Chen Guoxiang. Under the SFO, Ms. Zhu
Guoling was deemed to be interested in the same Shares in which Mr. Chen Guoxiang was
interested.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company had not
been notified of any persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more
of the Shares of the Company.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to which the Company, its holding company or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his connected entities
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts of significance (i) in relation to
the Group’s business; or (ii) for provision of services to the Company (or any
of its subsidiaries) by a controlling shareholder (or any of its subsidiaries)
between the Company (or any of its subsidiaries) and a controlling
shareholder (or any of its subsidiaries) subsisted during or at the end of the
year ended 31 December 2022.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's customers primarily consist of individual purchasers and
corporate entities.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue attributable to the
Group’s largest customer amounted to approximately 0.18% of the
Group’s total revenue and the Group five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for 0.5% of the Group’s revenue for the year.
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The Group’s suppliers primarily include construction contractors and
equipment suppliers.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier amounted to approximately 17.6% of the Group’s
total purchases and the Group five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted
for 30.0% of the Group’s total purchase for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, one of the Group’s five largest
suppliers, Zhejiang Xiangsheng Construction Co., Ltd. (“Xiangsheng
Construction”) was wholly-owned by Xiangsheng Industrial Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Xiangsheng Industrial”), which was owned as to 99% by Mr. Chen
Guoxiang, one of the controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules), the then executive Director and chairman of the Company, and
1% by Mr. Chen Hongni, Mr. Chen Guoxiang’s son and the executive
Director. Xiangsheng Construction was therefore an associate of both
Mr. Chen Guoxiang and Mr. Chen Hongni and thus a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. The purchase from Xiangsheng
Construction amounted to RMB1,010.9 million, which accounted for
17.6% of its total purchase for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders, which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued Shares, had an interest in the share capital of
any of the five largest suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered into the
following transactions as described below with persons who are regarded
as “connected persons” pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Continuing connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company conducted the
following transactions which constituted continuing connected transactions
(as defined in the Listing Rules), which are subject to the reporting and
annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:
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Property agency services

On 2 July 2021, the Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
and Shinsun Lifestyle Services Group Limited (the “Shinsun Services”,
together with its subsidiaries and their respective associates “Shinsun
Services Group”) (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into
the property agency service framework agreement (the “Property Agency
Service Framework Agreement”) pursuant to which Shinsun Services Group
has agreed to provide property agency services and other ancillary services
to the Group for unsold car parking spaces located in properties developed
by the Group for a period commencing from 2 July 2021 to 31 December
2023 (both days inclusive).

Shinsun Services is owned as to 98% by Top Honour Global Limited, a
company wholly owned by Shinlight Limited (the “Shinlight”), which is
wholly owned by Shinfamily Holdings Limited (the “Shinfamily Holdings”),
which is in turn wholly owned by TMF (Cayman) Ltd., the trustee of the
Family Trust. The Family Trust is a discretionary trust established by Mr.
Chen Guoxiang, the settlor, with Mr. Chen Guoxiang and his family
members as the beneficiaries. Accordingly, Shinsun Services is an associate
of Mr. Chen Guoxiang and a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As such, the transactions contemplated
under the Property Agency Service Framework Agreement shall constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios as defined under Rule
14.07 of the Listing Rules for the highest amount of the annual caps
under the Property Agency Service Framework Agreement exceed 0.1%
but all of which are less than 5%, the Property Agency Service Framework
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to
the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but exempt
from the circular and independent Shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Property Agency Service Framework Agreement, it
is proposed that the annual caps for the transactions contemplated
thereunder the three years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023
will not exceed RMB63.4 million, RMB122.4 million and RMB125.8 million,
respectively. No transactions were entered into under the Property Agency
Service Framework Agreement by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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Property management services

On 26 October 2020, the Company entered into a property management
service framework agreement (the “ Property Management Service
Framework Agreement”) with Zhejiang Xiangsheng Property Management
Service Co., Ltd. (“Xiangsheng Property Management”), pursuant to which
members of the Group could engage Xiangsheng Property Management
and its subsidiaries (“Xiangsheng Property Management Group”) to
provide property management services, including but not limited to (i) pre-
delivery services prior to the delivery of properties to property owners,
such as security, car park management, cleaning, gardening, repair,
maintenance and operation of common area and shared facilities; and (ii)
property management services for unsold property units held by the Group
(the “Property Management Services”). The Property Management Service
Framework Agreement has a term commencing from 18 November 2020
to 31 December 2022.

Xiangsheng Property Management is owned as to 98% by Xiangsheng
Industrial and 2% by Ms. Zhu Guoling, the spouse of Mr. Chen Guoxiang,
being the controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and executive Director. Xiangsheng Industrial is owned as to 99%
by Mr. Chen Guoxiang and 1% by Mr. Chen Hongni, the son of Mr. Chen
Guoxiang and the executive Director. Xiangsheng Property Management is
therefore an associate of both Mr. Chen Guoxiang and Mr. Chen Hongni
and thus a connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the Property
Management Service Framework Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions.

The transactions under the Property Management Service Framework
Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but exempt from circular and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of service fees payable by the Group to the
Xiangsheng Property Management Group in relation to the Property
Management Services for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and
2022 will not exceed RMB54.7 million, RMB59.4 million and RMB64.0
million, respectively. The amount of service fees paid/payable by the Group
to Xiangsheng Property Management Group in relation to the Property
Management Services for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to
RMB50.5 million.
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Sales management services

On 26 October 2020, the Company entered into a sales management
service framework agreement (the “Sales Management Service Framework
Agreement”) with Xiangsheng Property Management, pursuant to
which members of the Group could engage members of the Xiangsheng
Property Management Group to provide sales management and other
services, including but not limited to reception services, cleaning, car park
management, security and maintenance services in showrooms, display
units and sales offices for our property projects, as well as the commercial
properties occupied or operated by the Group (the “Sales Management
Services”). The Sales Management Service Framework Agreement has a
term commencing from the 18 November 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Xiangsheng Property Management is owned as to 98% by Xiangsheng
Industrial and 2% by Ms. Zhu Guoling, the spouse of Mr. Chen Guoxiang,
being the controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) and executive Director. Xiangsheng Industrial is owned as
to 99% by Mr. Chen Guoxiang and 1% by Mr. Chen Hongni, the son
of Mr. Chen Guoxiang and the executive Director. Xiangsheng Property
Management is therefore an associate of both Mr. Chen Guoxiang and Mr.
Chen Hongni and thus a connected person of the Company pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the
Sales Management Service Framework Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions.

The transactions under the Sales Management Service Framework
Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but exempt from circular and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of service fees payable by the Group to the
Xiangsheng Property Management Group in relation to the Sales
Management Services for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and
2022 will not exceed RMB134.9 million, RMB177.9 million and RMB216.2
million, respectively. The amount of service fees paid/payable by the
Group to Xiangsheng Property Management Group in relation to the Sales
Management Services for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to
RMB41.8 million.
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Hotel lease

On 26 October 2020, the Company entered into a master hotel lease
agreement (the “Master Hotel Lease Agreement”) with Zhuji Xiangsheng
Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (“Xiangsheng Hotel Management”),
pursuant to which the Group shall lease certain hotels to Xiangsheng Hotel
Management at an aggregate monthly rental of approximately RMB3.3
million, RMB3.4 million and RMB3.4 million for the years ending 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022. The Master Hotel Lease Agreement has a
term commencing from 18 November 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Xiangsheng Hotel Management is wholly owned by Zhejiang Xiangsheng
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.*, which is in turn wholly owned by
Xiangsheng Industrial. Xiangsheng Industrial is owned as to 99% by Mr.
Chen Guoxiang, the controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in
the Listing Rules) and executive Director, and 1% by Mr. Chen Hongni, the
son of Mr. Chen Guoxiang and the executive Director. Xiangsheng Hotel
Management is therefore an associate of both Mr. Chen Guoxiang and Mr.
Chen Hongni and thus a connected person of the Company pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the
Master Hotel Lease Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions.

The transactions under the Master Hotel Lease Agreement are subject to
the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but exempt
from circular and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of the amount of rentals payable by Xiangsheng
Hotel Management to the Group for the lease of hotels contemplated
under the Master Hotel Lease Agreement for the years ending 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022 will not exceed RMB39.0 million,
RMB39.8 million and RMB40.6 million, respectively. Such estimate of the
maximum amount is based on the fixed rentals for the hotels as set out
in the Master Hotel Lease Agreement. No transactions were entered into
under the Master Hotel Lease Agreement by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

* For identification purposes only
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Landscape engineering services

On 26 October 2020, the Company entered into a landscape engineering
service framework agreement (the “ Landscape Engineering Service
Framework Agreement”) with Zhuji Xiangsheng Landscape Engineering
Co., Ltd. (“Xiangsheng Landscape”), pursuant to which members of
the Group could engage Xiangsheng Landscape to provide landscape
engineering services, including but not limited to greening services,
landscaping services, and outdoor road and drainage engineering services
(the “Landscape Engineering Services”). The Landscape Engineering Service
Framework Agreement has a term commencing from 18 November 2020
to 31 December 2022.

Xiangsheng Landscape is owned as to 50% by Mr. Chen Guoging, the
brother of Mr. Chen Guoxiang, and 50% by Ms. Chen Zhiping, the sister
of Mr. Chen Guoxiang. Xiangsheng Landscape is therefore an associate
of Mr. Chen Guoxiang, the controlling shareholder of the Company (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and executive Director, and thus a connected
person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions under the Landscape Engineering Service
Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions.

The transactions under the Landscape Engineering Service Framework
Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but exempt from circular and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of service fees payable by the Group to Xiangsheng
Landscape in relation to the Landscape Engineering Services for the years
ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 will not exceed RMB414.9
million, RMB496.6 million and RMB619.2 million, respectively. The amount
of service fees paid/payable by the Group to Xiangsheng Landscape in
relation to the Landscape Engineering Services for the year ended 31
December 2022 amounted to RMB122.1 million.

Construction services

On 26 October 2020, the Company entered into a construction service
framework agreement (the “Construction Service Framework Agreement”)
with Zhejiang Xiangsheng Construction Co., Ltd. (“Xiangsheng
Construction™), pursuant to which members of the Group could engage
Xiangsheng Construction to provide construction and related services
as main contractor for the Group’s property development projects (the
“Construction Services”). The Construction Service Framework Agreement
has a term commencing from the 18 November 2020 to 31 December
2022.
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Xiangsheng Construction is wholly-owned by Xiangsheng Industrial,
which is in turn owned as to 99% by Mr. Chen Guoxiang, the controlling
shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) and executive
Director, and 1% by Mr. Chen Hongni, the son of Mr. Chen Guoxiang and
the executive Director. Xiangsheng Construction is therefore an associate
of both Mr. Chen Guoxiang and Mr. Chen Hongni and thus a connected
person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions under the Construction Service Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions.

The transactions under the Construction Service Framework Agreement
are subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of service fees payable by the Group to Xiangsheng
Construction in relation to the Construction Services for the years ending
31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 will not exceed RMB9,077.5 million,
RMB11,324.4 million and RMB13,401.7 million, respectively. The amount
of service fees paid/payable by the Group to Xiangsheng Construction in
relation to the Construction Services for the year ended 31 December 2022
amounted to RMB1,735.0 million.

Further details of Property Agency Service Framework Agreement are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 2 July 2021. Further
details of the Property Management Service Framework Agreement, the
Sales Management Service Framework Agreement, the Master Hotel Lease
Agreement, the Landscape Engineering Service Framework Agreement
and the Construction Service Framework Agreement are set out under the
section headed “Connected Transactions” in the Prospectus.

Except for the aforementioned continuing connected transactions stated
under this section which would fall within the definition of connected
transactions or continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules,
all other related party transactions taken place during the year ended
31 December 2022 which were disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements did not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with applicable disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
aforesaid transactions.
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Confirmation from Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing
connected transactions have been entered into in (i) the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms
or better; and (iii) according to the relevant agreements governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

Confirmations from the Company’s Independent Auditor

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, Prism Hong Kong and
Shanghai, the auditor of the Company, has provided a letter to the Board,
confirming that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the continuing connected transactions mentioned above (i)
have not been approved by the Board; (ii) were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group (for the Master Hotel
Lease Agreement); (iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and
(iv) have exceeded the respective annual cap.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company is incorporated under which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has been granted a waiver by the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Rule 8.08(1) of the Listing Rules and the Stock Exchange has accepted
the minimum public float of 20.8% of the total issued share capital of
the Company. Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the number of the
Shares held by the public for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
up to the date of this report has been in compliance with the minimum
percentage of public float prescribed by the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of opinion that the Company had adopted, applied and
complied with the then applicable code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code during the year under review. Principal
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” section of this report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out in the section headed “Five-year
financial summary” on page 260 of this report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are set
out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Articles of Association provide that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
he may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective
offices or trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through
their own fraud or dishonesty.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance for
the year ended 31 December 2022, which provides appropriate cover for
the Directors. The permitted indemnity provision was in force during the
year ended 31 December 2022 and remained in force as at the date of this
report for the benefit of the Directors.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

US$300,000,000 12.50% Senior Notes Due 2022

Reference is made to the 12.50% senior notes due 23 January 2022 (the
“January 2022 Notes”) issued by Xiang Sheng Holding Limited (£ 4 1%
% B MR 2 &]) on 23 January 2020 in an aggregate principal amount of
US$300,000,000. The ISIN and Common Code for the 2022 Notes are
XS2069303811 and 206930381, respectively.

On 18 January 2022, all conditions precedent to Xiang Sheng Overseas
Limited’s and the Company’s offer to exchange any and all of the
outstanding January 2022 Notes (the “Exchange Offer”) have been
fulfilled, and the Exchange Offer has been completed. US$134,472,500
Series A New Notes due January 2023 (“January 2023 Notes A", the
ISIN and Common Code of which are X52434191073 and 243419107,
respectively) and US$86,200,000 Series B New Notes due January 2023
("January 2023 Notes B”, the ISIN and Common Code of which are
XS2434191156 and 243419115, respectively) were issued. As a result, the
January 2022 Notes validly tendered for exchange and accepted pursuant
to the Exchange Offer have been cancelled. The remaining aggregate
principal amount of US$19,470,000 of the January 2022 Notes remains
outstanding.

Save as disclosed, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the above paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme”
in this section, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

AUDITOR

The Company has changed its auditor from Ernst & Young to Prism Hong
Kong and Shanghai with effect from 20 June 2023. The consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
have been reviewed by Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai.

By order of the Board

Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd.
Chen Hongni

Acting Chairman
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Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
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www.prism.com.hk

To the shareholders of Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) set out on pages 100 to 259, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. Because of the significant matters as described in the Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects,
in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern

As set out in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
incurred net loss of RMB3,926,577,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 and as at 31 December 2022, the Group’s liabilities include interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes, corporate bonds
and interest payable on these payables with their carrying amounts
of RMB22,994,546,000, RMB5,049,837,000, RMB539,268,000 and
RMB1,077,297,000 respectively, out of RMB19,391,598,000 have
been due for settlement within the year after that date or repayable on
demand are included in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position, while its available cash and cash equivalent amounted to
RMB1,195,932,000.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continuED)

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern (continued)

In addition, the Group had default or cross default of principals on certain
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and corporate
bonds to the aggregate of RMB12,454,465,000 as at 31 December 2022
and RMB13,172,070,000 as at the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements. These conditions, together with other matters
disclosed in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate
the existence of material multiple uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the directors
of the Company on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends
upon the results of the successful implementation and outcome of the
measures, as detailed in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
to be undertaken by the Group. In view of the extent of the material
uncertainties relating to the results of those measures to be undertaken by
the Group which might cast a significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as going concern, we have disclaimed our audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying values of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 were audited by another auditor who expressed a
disclaimer of opinion on those statements on 9 May 2022.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSO
LIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and to issue an auditor’s report. We report solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
However, because of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion section of our report, it is not possible for us to form an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Kwok Lun.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Kwok Lun

Practising Certificate Number: P06294
Hong Kong

31 January 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-ZT - —F+=HA=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2022

—E=-= —E-—F
Byt ARET T AREEF T
2022 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
(BE¥H%8)
(Reclassified)
W= REVENUE 5 19,701,040 43,719,028
S AR Cost of sales (17,963,839) (39,012,806)
EF GROSS PROFIT 1,737,201 4,706,222
Hoh g A Fe g Other income and gains 5 579,668 436,408
HERDHAT Selling and distribution expenses (625,220) (1,266,839)
THFAX Administrative expenses (505,837) (987,351)
Hx Other expenses (678,705) (306,661)
BEWMENAFE(BE),/ Fair value (loss)/gains on investment
W z5 properties 16 (46,397) 17,726
MORFEREMD B TWEM  Write-down of completed properties held
BRERPME for sale and properties under development (292,747) (134,611)
B 5 e W R IB AN Impairment of trade receivables and other
H {th e W SR IB B receivables (220,345) (12,403)
R U 4t B TR B 18k Loss on forfeited land development projects 6 (1,643,635) -
B 75 K AR Finance costs 7 (1,547,392) (1,257,317)
FEME TR RRIER R IBIE Share of profits and losses of:
BEDE Joint ventures (63,470) 349,184
iR l/N]| Associates 49,772 95,563
MBLAT (B518) RF (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8 (3,257,107) 1,639,921
TSR X Income tax expense 11 (669,470) (1,159,246)
ER(ER), BAIUARER (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AND
2 (EF8) WEEE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/
INCOME FOR THE YEAR (3,926,577) 480,675
AT & I8 FEAS ¢ Attributable to:
ISS/NETEFEWN Owners of the parent (3,878.628) (215,363)
FEFE AR HE = Non-controlling interests (47,949) 696,038
(3,926,577) 480,675
BATIEEESEE AL LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SREEA ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT
BREXRREEEE Basic and diluted loss per share 13 ARM127T  AR¥0.077T

RMB1.27 Yuan

RMB0.07 Yuan

HEZR(EE)BERLQAFT —T - —F1
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ZFZZF+=A=+—H 31 December 2022

—E=-= —E-—F
izt ARET T AREEF T
2022 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
kRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
=N L Property, plant and equipment 14 85,257 105,672
HAEEE Right-of-use assets 15 16,586 58,122
LEWE Investment properties 16 1,983,083 2,029,480
EBEEE Intangible assets 17 6,761 9,917
REBDLEMIRE Investments in joint ventures 18 702,371 1,467,007
REE R RRRE Investments in associates 19 1,354,055 1,399,643
BREFRIBEE Deferred tax assets 20 2,118,031 2,203,424
FRBEERE Total non-current assets 6,266,144 7,273,265
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
BRPYE Properties under development 21 79,130,686 96,433,665
RELEMND R ITME Completed properties held for sale 22 4,741,588 6,441,718
B S rElERE K e E Trade and bills receivables 23 69,475 13,281
BREE Contract assets 24 277,084 248,320
e UL Ba B 5 Fk0E Due from related parties 40 2,865,486 4,284,362
TERRIA - ke RHAD Prepayments, deposits and
FE W FRIE other receivables 25 16,537,342 19,103,774
AT Y B £ 1A Tax recoverable 2,194,899 2,656,552
BAFEE AEZ ([ AFME  Finandal assets at fair value through
SABRDHEREE profit or loss (“"FVTPL") 26 4,946 840,117
H& RIRTTHE S Cash and bank balances 27 4,645,193 8,448,078
MEBEERE Total current assets 110,466,699 138,469,867
RBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B 5 e A R EN R R Trade and bills payables 28 6,832,230 6,587,113
Hib T FRIE N ERTE A Other payables and accruals 29 10,387,495 11,238,515
AHaE Contract liabilities 30 59,196,853 70,018,866
FES AR 5 Fk0E Due to related parties 40 2,390,758 4,236,529
FTEBRITREMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 37 12,725,196 14,040,104
BERE Senior notes 32 5,049,837 3,204,513
NEEH Corporate bonds 33 539,268 3,267
FET R E Tax payable 1,839,578 2,044,991
HEaE Lease liabilities 15 21,725 32,332
mEBEES Total current liabilities 98,982,940 111,406,230
hEEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 11,483,759 27,063,637
EEHABERARBERS TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 17,749,903 34,336,902
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mEMBRR K

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ZFZZF+=A=+—H 31 December 2022

—E=-= —E-—F
izt ARBEF T AR®EF T
2022 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ERBARE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FTEBRITREMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 37 10,269,350 15,382,675
BEEE Senior notes 32 - 1,258,377
NREH Corporate bonds 33 - 497,500
HEBE Lease liabilities 15 15,903 35,343
FIERTBEE Deferred tax liabilities 20 216,861 210,651
JEMEBELRRE Total non-current liabilities 10,502,114 17,384,546
EEFE NET ASSETS 7,247,789 16,952,356
Exm EQUITY
BAREEABLESR Equity attributable to owners of
the parent
fi% 7K Share capital 34 199,616 199,616
e Reserves 35 3,668,876 7,518,097
3,868,492 7,717,713
FERER Non-controlling interests 3,379,297 9,234,643
A TOTAL EQUITY 7,247,789 16,952,356
FR 2L 157 BB
Chen Hongni Ma Hongman
EFE EE
Director Director

HEZR(EE)ERLQT
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REERSBR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-Z - —F+=A=+—HIEFJE Year ended 31 December 2022
BRTERAEL
Attributable to owners of the parent
EE Bz
RE RhEE  AAEE  BREE  BHEE  RBER B kERER  ERlE
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR AREfR ARETR
HiEn  Widse)  WEb)  HEB0
Statutory Asset Non-
Share Share Capital surplus  revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
RMB000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
Note34  MNote35@)  Mote 35b)  MNote 35c)
RZF--F-f-H Asat 1 January 2021 199616 4,147,720 (86,786) 818,837 2,047 3231121 8431555 7,605,481 16,037,036
ER(FE) /2HR2E  (Losslprofit and total comprehensive
(i) /g (loss)income for the year - - - - - (15363 (215363) 696,038 480,675
HEAAFER Capital contribution by the
RRLE non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 197801 197,801
Yl saRES Acquisition of non-controlling interests - - (107929 - - - (107928) (2016589 (2,124517)
WEMBAF(E37)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) - - - - - - - 169626 169,626
RERATK Dividends and distributions - (512,150) - - - - (512,150) - (512,150)
AETFHEAT Dividends distributed to the
SRR AR S non-controlling shareholder
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - (160,445)  (160,445)
HENBAR (M3E38)  Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) - - - - - - - (5690  (56,960)
BEiTRYHE Appropriations to statutory surplus
reserve - - - 127,065 - (127,065 - - -
HERKBLRER Disposal of partial interests in
BrEn subsicliaries without losing control - - 12159 - - - 121599 2799691 2,921,290
e As at 31 December 2021
T-E=1-8 199616 3,635570¢  (73,115)F  945902* 121,047 2,888693* 7717713 9234643 16,952,356
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RERRBHR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEZZ - —F+=-A=1+—HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

BRREEARL
Attributable to owners of the parent
REER/
Bx  ROEE ERRE tREHEE SEERRE (RAER) it FERER RREE
AE®TR ARETR ARMTR ARETr ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETn ARET:R
HEn  Wiise) M) K
Retained
Statutory Asset  profits/ Non-
Share Share Capital surplus  revaluation (accmulated controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve losses) Total interests equity
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Note 34 Note 35(a)  Note 35(b)  Note 35(c)
RZF--F-f-H Asat 1 January 2022 199,616 3,635,570 (73,115 945,902 121,047 2,888,693 7,117,713 9,234,643 16,952,356
FREERZE Loss and total comprehensive
FRER loss for the year - - - - - (3878,628) (3,878,628)  (47,949) (3,926,577)
—HRBAAN—% Capital contribution by a
FERRRLE non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - 1,266 1,266
Ik RER Acquisition of non-controlling interests - - BN - - - 3716 (4967,497) (4923,781)
WERAFERER Dividends distributed to the
EhRE non-controlling shareholder
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - (332329 (332329
HENBAR (M3E38)  Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) - - (14309) - - - (14309  (508,837)  (523,146)
BEirRaGE Appropriations to statutory surplus
reserve - - - 6,600 - (6,600) - - -
S As at 31 December 2022
T-A=1-8 199616  3,635570*  (43,708) 952,502  121,047%  (996,535)* 3868492 3379297 7,247,789

 ZERESEREGANBRARNEEER *
AR #3,668,876,000L (ZT=—F: ARM
7,518,097,0007T) °

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB3,668,876,000 (2021:
RMB7,518,097,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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mERENER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-Z - —F+=A=+—HIEFJE Year ended 31 December 2022

—E-= =
st AR®T ARMETTT
2022 2021
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
(EFHE)
(Reclassified)
RETHREBHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BB (B518) /5 F (Loss)/profit before tax (3,257,107) 1,639,921
AR Adjustments for:
mE - BE &K Depreciation of items of property, plant and
HEWE equipment 8 18,526 31,682
CREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 8 23,733 26,467
B EEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 8 3,269 3,370
HEWB N AEE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 38 179,638 39,577
EMFTELARN Gain on re-measurement of the previously
BRLEMBRENKE held equity interests in joint ventures - (55,914)
DMEAECERFNEE Share of profits and losses of joint ventures 63,470 (349,184)
DR R R I 1B Share of profits and losses of associates (49,772) (95,563)
BEMENRTEE Changes in fair value of investment properties 6 46,397 (17,726)
HEME  HERRFHEEDW Gain on disposal of items of property, lant and
Wz equipment 5 (1,819) (1,539)
HEZBEE/ (kD) Loss/(gain) on change of lease 13,221 (1,523)
HEEELENE Gain on disposal of joint ventures 5 (282,961) -
HERE R EEE Loss on disposal of associates 8 4,211 -
HERQAFEF ABRD Gain on disposal financial assets at FVTPL
SMEEATERE 5 (22,841) (6,040)
BReBEEN Impairment losses recognised for financial
REEE assets 220,345 12,403
MOREEREMD BT WEN  Write-down of completed properties held for
BRERPYE sale and properties under development 292,747 134,611
NEEDEMIRER Impairment of investments in joint ventures
RE 206,797 -
REEE R RIRIRENRE Impairment of investments in associates 2,463 -
RAFEFABSEHSRHEE Fair value loss/(gains) on
DNEEBE (W) financial assets at FVTPL 8 34,654 (1,436)
[ 5 Z 5 %58 Exchange difference, net 54,806 (87,523)
AR AR Finance costs 1,547,392 1,257,317
M EUA Interest income (60,047) (305,334)
(962,878) 2,223,566
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FERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-ZT - —F+=HA=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2022

—E-CF —E-—F
sz AR TR ARBFT
2022 2021
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
(BEFHE)
(Reclassified)
ERAMERFEELEDN Decrease in properties under development and
BERTIWERD completed properties held for sale 15,662,050 12,168,529
JFE Mz A B 5 R I E Increase in amounts due from related parties 1,711,748 588,815
BHEELMN Increase in contract assets (28,764) (20,350)
ZREES GEM W (Increase)/decrease in restricted cash (715,435) 157,450
THEFEZRD Decrease in time deposits 330,000 3,935,009
MEBEMGRERD Decrease in property pre-sale proceeds 1,327,174 3,440,576
BEATZRD, (M) Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits 322,041 (120,357)
B 5 R IE R EREE (Increase)/decrease in trade and bills receivables
() /R (650,307) 113,982
BRHIE  Ze REM Increase in prepayments, deposits and other
JE W RIS receivables (5,218,162) (7,705,970)
B SR FIER Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables
FEREEE M, (i) 599,943 (243,422)
Ho At BRI & Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals
et BN, ORd) 6,448,979 (490,548)
BHEERD Decrease in contract liabilities (8,571,739) (711,504)
JE 1~ BR B 5 ROBER A Decrease in amounts due to related parties (1,172,035) (1,759,171)
RETHMBRENE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
KEFEEFMEHRE Cash generated from operations 9,082,615 11,576,605
BFE Interest received 60,047 305,334
ERHIE Tax paid (449,213) (2,065,043)
RETHHBREREFE Net cash flows generated from operating
activities 8,693,449 9,816,896
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FERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-Z - —F+=A=+—HIEFJE Year ended 31 December 2022

—E-C —ZE-—F
st ARETR AREFT
2022 2021
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
(BEFHE)
(Reclassified)
RETHREBHRESRE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HENBQT Disposal of subsidiaries 38 (729,530) (42,206)
HEASRE Disposal of joint ventures 773,125 -
HEEATEFAERZN Disposal of financial assets at FVTPL
TREE 823,358 811,190
HEWE  BFE REE Disposal of property, plant and equipment 5,414 6,475
B —RE 2 AR MRS Dividend received from an associate - 4,017
BEWE BERRHBEEE Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment (2,713) (8,481)
BEEFEE Purchase of intangible assets (113) (2,455)
Uk b /a8 22 A) Acquisition of subsidiaries 37 (1,086) (803,210)
REBLENEKE Investments in joint ventures - (423,985)
REERRIRIRE Investments in associates - (342,490)
EIRAEE 7 Advances to related parties (761,917) (7,141,206)
A BB 7 R E K Repayment of advances to related parties 517,108 5,027,538
g 3N E N =Ea Acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL
TREE - (1,017,600)
REZEHRE,/ (FFA)EBES Net cash flows generated from/(used in)
WmEEHE investing activities 623,646 (3,932,413)
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FERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-ZT - —F+=HA=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2022

—E-C —ZE-—F
st AR®T AREFT
2022 2021
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
(BEFHE)
(Reclassified)
BETHRERESRE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
L =PNEIE IS Capital contribution by the non-controlling
EEREE shareholders of subsidiaries 1,266 197,801
BRI E Dividends paid - (506,556)
B F IR IR R A AR S Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders (332,329) -
U B IR IR hE 25 Acquisition of non-controlling interests - (62,602)
B ERBAT Proceeds from partial disposal of subsidiaries
(CREEEHIRE) EHIA without losing control - 2,265,670
A Es 5 R Advances from related parties 1,341,252 8,770,472
BEMY FEH0 Repayment of advances from related parties (6,938,769) (8,347,061)
BERFRER Repayment of pledged deposits 803,767 4,188,564
BT RUK Receipt of pledged deposits (653) (3,550,167)
BIEBAREMEIERE Net proceeds from the issuance of senior notes 32 - 2,554,313
BEEBLEE Repayment of senior notes 32 (116,775) (1,293,000)
BEOELEE Redemption of senior notes 32 (233,589) (116,039)
SRR REMBER Proceeds from interest-bearing bank and other
FTiS A borrowings 2,918,670 21,884,601
BB SHRITREMER Repayment of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings (7,153,743) (35,400,955)
HENRHEZEHND Principal portion of lease payments (27,633) (32,195)
ERFE Interest paid (1,314,550) (4,423,306)
BREZBMARSREFRE Net cash flows used in financing activities (11,053,086) (13,870,460)
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FERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-Z - —F+=A=+—HIEFJE Year ended 31 December 2022

—E-= —ZE-—F
Bzt ARMET ARBFT
2022 2021
Notes RMB'000 RMB’'000
(EFHE)
(Reclassified)
ReRB2EEY NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
WO FE EQUIVALENTS (1,735,991) (7,985,977)
FNRERRCEREY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,931,923 10,917,900
FRAESCRBALEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR 1,195,932 2,931,923
REeRBSEBYNEHIWT ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
B RIBITHES Cash and bank balances 27 4,645,193 8,448,078
W LR EIEE Less: Restricted cash 27 793,213 77,778
REMERERF Cash from property pre-sale proceeds
FERRE 27 2.413.981 3,741,155
EEFR Time deposits 27 - 330,000
[REER LR A Pledged deposits 27 242,067 1,367,222
BEeRERMVIEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS STATED
BeEEY IN THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 1,195,932 2,931,923

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.

109



110

e M RRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E - —F+=FA=+4+—H 31 December 2022

1. 2AREEER

RRAAR—REFRSHSEMK L E
BMEAR DA o ANQE)HY IS R At
& Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands °

RRARRREEBRRE - RNFAR - AEES
EYERE MEHEERREMEERRS -

RARAREE(BFDRE ARAWERRA
A) R B AR N B R 0 B R B A B S e A
3 &J Shinlight Limited ©

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year, the
Group was involved in property development, property leasing and the
provision of property management services.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), the
holding company and the ultimate holding company of the Company is
Shinlight Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

BB B L A& Information about subsidiaries
RAARIEEZMBARKFBEERIOT : Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
#/ ERTRA N
EMAY Rt HfE Eh
WRARAR i UREXMEH (f7) REBIE TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
E#RA:
Directly held:
Silver Rock Group Holdings Limited EBRAHE 50% (%)) 100% ®ERK
Silver Rock Group Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US dollar (“US$") 50 100%  Investment holding
Shinsun International Holdings Limited RERUES 50%T 100% REER
Shinsun International Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Us$50 100%  Investment holding
BERH:
Indirectly held:
Golden Stone Hong Kong Limited BE 1087 (TE7L]) 100% ®ERK
Golden Stone Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong dollar 100%  Investment holding
("HK$") 10
Shinsun Hong Kong Limited 0 1087 100% REER
Shinsun Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$10 100%  Investment holding
Xiang Sheng Overseas Limited EBRIHE 1% 100% H®ERK
Xiang Sheng Overseas Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100%  Investment holding
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REMBHRMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
=1l AT - AC ) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA N
HMERL KL HfE Eh
WERARAR M DREEE () REBIE TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERH: (H)
Indirectly held: (continued)
IR AEBAAERLA hE* /AR ARE 10,0007 100% HEER
Zhejiang Xiangshen Business Consulting PRC*/Mainland China RMB10,000 100%  Investment holding
Co., Ltd.
EEERPEERARAR RE*/E R AR 25,0007 100% REER
Zhuji Zhuojie Business Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB25,000 100%  Investment holding
HEDESBERAF hE* /AR AR 1,580,000 100% #EHRE
Shinsun Property Group Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,580,000 100%  Property development
BAREERERAA ) 1,000/ 7T 100% REER
Xiang Sheng Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%  Investment holding
HAERRERAR RERUES 200,000 T 100% REER
Xiang Sheng Holding Limited British Virgin Islands US$200,000 100%  Investment holding
HIFEERCEERERAT RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 100% REER
Zhejiang Shinsun Yiyue Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Investment holding
EERERSGEXARAA FE*/ER AR#70,0007C 51% MERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xianghe Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB70,000 51%  Property development
AEREHAEEERLA hE* /AR AR 130,000 100% #EHE
Zhuji Shinsun Xinhe Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB130,000 100%  Property development
RERERREFERLA hE* /AR AR 39,0007 100% #EHE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangan Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB39,000 100%  Property development
HERLRREXERAA hE* /AR AR 98,0397 100% #EHE
Zhuji Shinsun Yijing Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB98,039 100%  Property development
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mEMBHRMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E - —F+=FA=+4+—H 31 December 2022

1. 28 REEBE R @)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA N
HMERL KL HfE Ek
WERARAR M DREEE () REBAI TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERE (8
Indirectly held: (continued)
MMEELREHEREERAT RE*/E R ARE#100,0007 100% ¥EmE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BERERHEREARAA RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 60% MERE
Haining Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 60%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
MM EL R EREERAT RE*/E R ARE#100,0007 100% ¥EmE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
REFERREEERLA hE* /AR AR 80,0007 100% Mm%
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB80,000 100%  Property development
HNEEBSERAR hE* /AR ARE30,0007 100% Mm%
Huzhou Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
BN BBRNEREARAR hE* /AR AR 30,0007 100% Mm%
Huzhou Shinsun Yiyue Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
FREFERWERZERAA hE* /AR AR 30,0007 100% Mm%
Jiaxing Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
FRELARRHEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 43,0007 100% Mm%
Jiaxing Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB43,000 100%  Property development

Co., Ltd.
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REMBHRMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA NN
HMERL KL HfE Eh
WERARAR M DREEE () REBIE TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERH: (H)
Indirectly held: (continued)
REFELREHEREERAR RE*/ER AR#50,0007C 80% MERE
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
REFFLREHEREERAR RE*/ER AR#50,0007C 80% MERE
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RUFEBEARAR hE* /AR AR 30,0007 100% #EHRE
Zhoushan Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
RIBELERDEREARAR hE* /AR ARE100,0007C 100% #EHRE
Zhoushan Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
LERBRNEREERAA (1) RE*/REAN AR#7,200,0007C 825% WERE
Shanghai Jubo Real Estate Development (1) PRC*/Mainland China RMB7,200,000 82.5%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
ERTHHEXARLA hE* /AR ARE200,0007C 70% WERE
Taixing Xiangrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB200,000 70%  Property development
EERR A ERRNEREERAR RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 0% MERE
Lianyungang Shinsun Lianbao Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 90%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ERREFNARRERAT RE*/E R ARE#100,0007 100% #EHRE
Xuancheng Minsheng New Town Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development

Co., Ltd.
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mEMBHRMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E - —F+=FA=+4+—H 31 December 2022

1. 28 REEBE R @)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA NN
HMERL KL HfE Ek
WERARAR M DREEE () REBAI TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERE (8
Indirectly held: (continued)
REFEHBEXERAA hE* /AR ARE 56,0007 100% Mm%
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangrun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB56,000 100%  Property development
BTHERNEREERAA hE* /AR AR 100,0007C 100% Mm%
Nanping Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
REFEEHEXERAA hE* /AR AR 20,0007 0% HEFRE
Shaoxing Shinsun Jiyue Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 70%  Property development
LETFEEERAR hE* /AR AR 20,0007 678% WERE
Shanghai Yuanyu Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 67.8%  Property development
LERABEERAR hE* /AR ARE 10,0007 678% WERE
Shanghai Xiangdan Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB10,000 67.8%  Property development
REHEEXARAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 55%  MERE
Taixing Xiangyun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 55%  Property development
FMEEEZARAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Taizhou Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
RERERWERZERAA hE* /AR AR 100,0007C 100% Mm%
Wuhan Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
Ik REEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Xiantao Xiangrong Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Co., Ltd.
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REMBHRMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA N
HMERL KL HfE Eh
WERARAR M DREEE () REBIE TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERH: (H)
Indirectly held: (continued)
ERTHEEEARAR hE* /AR ARE30,0007 100% #EHRE
Honghu Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
BERLUHEEARAR RE*/E R AR#20,0007C 51% MERE
Liaoning Shinsun Yuedu Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 51%  Property development
hERBEHNEREERAT RE*/E R AR#20,0007C 51% MERE
Xiuyan Xiangyue Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 51%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
MIRERBREFRAA e/ hEA AR#50,0007 65%  MERERULKE
Zhejiang Xiangwei Tourism Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 65%  Property development
Co., Ltd. and cultural
tourism
nMEEREEEERAT hE* /AR ARE1,1007 100%  REER
Hangzhou Xiangdi Investment Management PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,100 100%  Investment holding
Co., Ltd.
ERFERNEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Ningbo Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
EEAREERLRRHEREARAA RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 100% W%
Lianyungang Shinsun Lianbao Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ERHAERNEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Xuancheng Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Co., Ltd.
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1. 28 REEBE R @)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA NN
HMERL KL HfE Ek
WERARAR M DREEE () REBAI TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERE (8
Indirectly held: (continued)
ERELRRNEREARAT hE* /AR ARE20,0007 100% Mm%
Haiyan Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
BMELLBEEERAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Chuzhou Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
BMEERHEREERAA RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 80% MERE
Quzhou Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
MIRERSEEERLA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% EEEE
Zhejiang Shinsun Plaza Trading Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Hotel management
REFERUEEERLA hE* /AR ARE 75,0007 53% MERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangqi Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB75,000 53%  Property development
REFEHBEXERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangyue Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
BEHERNEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 56,0007 100% Mm%
Taizhou Wenling Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB56,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
IR RREEZERERAA (1) RE*/RER ARE 56,0007 100% WEEBRXCHKE
Zhejiang Xiangjing Tourism Development (1) PRC*/Mainland China RMB56,000 100%  Property management
Co., Ltd. and cultural
tourism
REREEEERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Aniji Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
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1. 2RI REEER (2 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA N
HMERL KL HfE Eh
WERARAR M DREEE () REBIE TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERE (8
Indirectly held: (continued)
BMEELREHEREERAT RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 80% MERE
Quzhou Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
REFEHBEXERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangpeng Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
MIAMEERHEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Zhejiang Taizhou Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
AMEELREHEREERAT RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 100% ¥EmE
Huzhou Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
EREALRRHEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Nantong Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BMEELERHEREERAT RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 80% MERE
Quzhou Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ERHAARRHEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Xuancheng Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
PEIRAERHEREERAT RE*/E R AR#30,0007C 100% W%
Zoucheng Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
PR LEHEREERAT RE*/E R AR#20,0007C 100% W%
Zoucheng Xianghong Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development

Co., Ltd.
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1. 28 REEBE R @)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA NN
HMERL KL HfE Ek
WERARAR M DREEE () REBAI TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERE (8
Indirectly held: (continued)
BREELERNEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Nantong Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RREELERNEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Longyou Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BMEEHEEBERAT hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Wenzhou Shinsun Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
FREAEREHEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Sugian Shinsun Lianbao Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
EEHERNEREERAA hE* /AR AR 98,0397 51%  MERE
Guangde Xiangyuan Real Estate Development Co., PRC*/Mainland China RMB98,039 51%  Property development
Ltd.
ARERMEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Tiantai Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
REFERREEERLA hE* /AR AR 30,0007 100% Mm%
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangtai Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
REREARRHEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Cixi Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
REFELERBEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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1. 2RI REEER (2 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA NN
HMERL KL HfE Ek
WERARAR M DREEE () REBAI TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERH: (H)
Indirectly held: (continued)
AMTRERERREREERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Taizhou Lugiao Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
FMEERGEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Suzhou Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
REFEELGEHEREERAT RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 80% MERE
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
RERELREHEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Aniji Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
EREREXERAR hE* /AR AR 48,2357 100% #EHE
Yueyang Xiongcheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB48,235 100%  Property development
GER ERNEREERAT hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Linhai Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
FERERIEHEREERAA hE* /AR AR 30,0007 100% #EHE
Changde Shinsun Shuguang Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
SR AELERHEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Xuancheng Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA NN
HMERL KL HfE Ek
WERARAR M DREEE () REBAI TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERE (8
Indirectly held: (continued)
RRBRELERRHEREARAA RE*/E R AR#20,0007C 100% ¥EmE
Zhangjiagang Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BNSHELEEERARA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 51%  MERE
Wenzhou Duofu Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 51%  Property development
EEEALRRHERE AR AR hE* /AR AR1828,0007C 51%  MERE
Longyou Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB828,000 51%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
RBHERNEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 1,240,000 51%  MERE
Tongxiang Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,240,000 51%  Property development
Ltd.
MMEELEREREERAT RE*/E R AR#2,200,0007¢ 100% ¥EmE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongda Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB2,200,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
TRERELRRHEREARAA RE*/E R AR#20,0007C 51% MERE
Dingyuan Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 51%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
IR AN EREERAF hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 60% MEFE
Jiangxi Zhongcheng Shinsun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 60%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
MMEELEEHEREER AR (1) RE*/ER AE#1,076,923 ¢ 100% W%
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongcheng Real Estate (1) PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,076,923 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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1. 2RI REEER (2 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA NN
HMERL KL HfE Eh
WERARAR M DREEE () REBIE TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERH: (H)
Indirectly held: (continued)
RETFREXARLA hE* /AR ARE592,8757 100% #EHRE
Taixing Tairui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB592,875 100%  Property development
ENEERHEREERAA hE* /AR AR 530,000 51% MERE
Fuzhou Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB530,000 51%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
BMEELREHEREERAT RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 100% ¥EmE
Yangzhou Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
EERERBEEEARAR RE*/E R AR#50,5057C 51% MERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangyun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,505 51%  Property development
REFERHEXERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHRE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangkun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
EERERBEEARAR RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 0% WERE
Zhuji Shinsun Jinghui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 70%  Property development
REFEARBEFERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Zhuji Shinsun Future City Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
ATRELRRHEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Dongtai Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
AREURRHEREARAR (1) RE*/RER ARE 153,061 7T 100% #EHE
Tiantai Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate Development (1) PRC*/Mainland China RMB153,061 100%  Property development

Co., Ltd.
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA N
HMERL KL HfE Ek
WERARAR M DREEE () REBAI TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERE (8
Indirectly held: (continued)
ARTHEEHEREERAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Tianchang Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Ltd.
FMEEAREHEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Suzhou Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
BT ERHEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Liaocheng Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Ltd.
REFEABRHEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 51%  MERE
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongyue Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 51%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BRHLRHEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Jinan Xianghong Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
EEHERNEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Guangde Xiangsheng Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
ENRLAREHEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Quzhou Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
MMEEL BRI EREERAT (1) FE*/ER AR#1,180,0007 100% W%
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongyue Real Estate (1) PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,180,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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1. 2RI REEER (2 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA N
HMERL KL HfE Ek
WERARAR M DREEE () REBAI TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERH: (H)
Indirectly held: (continued)
ARMEREHEREERAT RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 51% MERE
Tianchang Xiangrui Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 51%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
BEREEHERZERAA hE* /AR AR1283,0007C 51% MERE
Langxi Xiangsheng Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB283,000 51%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
REHELEEHEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Aniji Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
REFEIHEXERAA hE* /AR AR 20,0007 100% #EHE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongkun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
B ERHEREARAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Lishui Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
BKEEARBHEREARAR (1) RE*/RER ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Lishui Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate Development (1) PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
BKEELERDEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Lishui Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
WREREEEHEREARAA hE* /AR AR 6150007 51% MERE
Huhehaote Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB615,000 51%  Property development

Co., Ltd.
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA NN
HMERL KL HfE Ek
WERARAR M DREEE () REBAI TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERE (8
Indirectly held: (continued)
REHEIEEXERAA hE* /AR AR 558,000 70 51%  MERE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongda Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB558,000 51%  Property development
RIBEAERDEREARAR hE* /AR ARK 58,8247 100% Mm%
Zhoushan Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB58,824 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ARt LR EREARAR hE* /AR AR 92,0007 100% Mm%
Nanjing Shinsun Century Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB92,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
EHRERHEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Wuhu Xiangjun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
HLREFERECEREBR AR (1) RE*/ER AR#112,5007¢ 100% WEERRCIKE
Zhejiang Zhuiji Shinsun Tourism Cultural (1) PRC*/Mainland China RMB112,500 100%  Property management
Development Co., Ltd. and cultural
tourism
RERELREHEREARAA RE*/E R AR#35,0007C 73.01% MERE
Linhai Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB35,000 73.01%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
AEMEREHEREERAA RE*/E R AR#35,0007C 0% WERE
Zhuji Wanyu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB35,000 70%  Property development
REFEIBEXERAA hE* /AR AR 422,000 100% Mm%
Zhuji Shinsun Hongrun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB422,000 100%  Property development
BEREEZARAA hE* /AR AR 70,0007 60% MEFE
Deqing Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB70,000 60%  Property development
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA NN
HMERL KL HfE Ek
WERARAR M DREEE () REBAI TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERH: (H)
Indirectly held: (continued)
AEFERREEERLA hE* /AR ARE20,0007 100% #EHE
Zhuji Shinsun Yirui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
BMTRARRNEARHEREERAA RE*/E R ARES5,0007 100% ¥EmE
Quzhou Kecheng Jiulonggu Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMBS5,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
EEHLRHEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 70,0007 100% #EHE
Guangde Xianghong Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB70,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
ERHAETRRHEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Xuancheng Shinsun Yunjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RERALEEEERDA hE* /AR ARE30,0007 100% #EHE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongze Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
EEFUEHEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Guangde Xiangyue Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
MNFEERGRHEREERAR RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 100% W%
Hangzhou Shinsun Yixin Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
MMEELERHEREERAT RE*/E R AR#30,0007C 100% W%
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA NN
HMERL KL HfE Ek
WERARAR M DREEE () REBAI TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERE (8
Indirectly held: (continued)
BNEERRERARAR RE*/E R AR#30,0007C 62.5% MEERRULKE
Fuzhou Shinsun Construction Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 62.5%  Property development
Co., Ltd. and cultural
tourism
IEHERSEREERAA hE* /AR AR 98,0397 100% Mm%
Xianju Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB98,039 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
REFELERHEREARAR hE* /AR AR 1,600,000 80% MEFE
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongfeng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,600,000 80%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
MMNEEL R HEREERAR RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 100% ¥EmE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongteng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BETHERHEREARAR hE* /AR AR 887,000 100% Mm%
Zoucheng Xiangyi Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB&87,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
BNEEENELERARA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 51%  MERE
Wenzhou Shinsun Guanghe Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 51%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
BERERNWEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 60% MEFE
Suichang Shinsun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 60%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
CICIZZ S e 1N hE* /AR AR 60,0007 100% Mm%
Hengyang Shanshan Outlets Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB60,000 100%  Property development

Co., Ltd.
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA N
HMERL KL HfE Ek
WERARAR M DREEE () REBAI TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERH: (H)
Indirectly held: (continued)
WA ERNEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Huhehaote Xiangyuan Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
WA EREREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Huhehaote Xiangxin Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
WAERE R EREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% #EHE
Hohhot Xiang'an Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
WREREBEEREERAT RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 100% #EHRE
Huhehaote Xiangbo Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
MEEL BRI EREERAT RE*/E R AEH2,095,880 7T 80% MERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongtu Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB2,095,880 80%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
HMEELARLEREARAR (1) RE*/RER AR#1,200,0007C 100% #EHE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongzhi Real Estate (1) PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,200,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ARMEEBEHEREERAT RE*/E R AR#20,0007C 60% MERE
Tianchang Xiangchang Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 60%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
MMNEBEABERERAR RE*/E R AR#20,0007C 51% MERE
Hangzhou Xiangyi Apartment Management PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 51%  Property leasing

Co., Ltd.
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1. 28 REEBE R @)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA NN
HMERL KL HfE Ek
WERARAR M DREEE () REBAI TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERE (8
Indirectly held: (continued)
ERTHAEHERZERAF hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Nantong Xiangqi Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
ERFALABRBEREARAR (1) RE*/REAN AR 100,0007C 100% Mm%
Ningbo Shinsun Honghui Development (1) PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
HEHARNEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Nanchang Xianghe Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
TERERHEREERAA hE* /AR AR 20,0007 100% Mm%
Dingyuan Xiangjun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
EREELBEHEREARAA 2)  RE*/REA ARE100,0007C 50% MERE
E3eN:)) (2)  PRC*Mainland China RMB100,000 50%  Property development
Ningbo Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Ningbo Shinsun Hongsheng”)
BMFEEBREXERAA hE* /AR ARE200,0007C 0% HEFE
Wenzhou Shinsun Guangou Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB200,000 70%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
BEARLRERERLA hE* /AR ARE1,0007T 100%  REER
Nanchang Bintai Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
REFEABEEERLA hE* /AR ARE1,0007T 100% Mm%
Zhuji Shinsun Hongyun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Property development

HEER(KE)ARAFE - —FFH
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA N
HMERL KL HfE Ek
WERARAR M DREEE () REBAI TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERE (8
Indirectly held: (continued)
MNEEEREHEREER AR RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 100% ¥EmE
Hangzhou Shinsun Yiyuan Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
REFEIBEXERAA hE* /AR ARE1,0007T 100% Mm%
Zhuji Shinsun Honghui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Property development
AEHREXERAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Hefei Xiangwan Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
HEHARNEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Nanchang Xianghe Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
TERERHEREERAA hE* /AR AR 20,0007 100% Mm%
Dingyuan Xiangjun Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
MMNEELBEHEREERAR RE*/E R AR#872,1007T 100% W%
Hangzhou Shinshun Hongli Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB872,100 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
FEHHENEREERAA hE* /AR ARE300,0007C 100% Mm%
Sugian Xiangyue Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB300,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
AREHEIBXERAR hE* /AR AR 80,0007 100% Mm%
Hefei Xiangchuang Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB80,000 100%  Property development
REFELARBEREARAR hE* /AR AR 500,0007C 100% Mm%
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongxing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB500,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.

129



130

mEMBHRMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E - —F+=FA=+4+—H 31 December 2022

1. 28 REEBE R @)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
BB E L AER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
2/ ERTRA N
HMERL KL HfE Ek
WERARAR M DREEE () REBAI TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ of registered/ equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERE (8
Indirectly held: (continued)
REFEAARBEREARAR (1) RE*/REAN AR 1,200,000 100% Mm%
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate (1) PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,200,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
GER LR HEREERAT hE* /AR ARE30,0007 100% Mm%
Linhai Xianghong Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.
RUBEAERDEREARAR hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 100% Mm%
Zhoushan Shinsun Hongrun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RERLLHEEERDA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 51%  MERE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongyi Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 51%  Property development
BEHAEHEREERAA hE* /AR ARE 10,0007 100% Mm%
Wenling Xianghe Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB10,000 100%  Property development
Co. Ltd.
MMNEELEEHEREERAR (1) FE*/ER AE#2,690,0007 100% W%
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongde Real Estate (1) PRC*/Mainland China RMB2,690,000 100%  Property development
Development Co. Ltd.
REFEIBEXERAA hE* /AR ARE 50,0007 51%  MERE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongyue Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 51%  Property development
BMEELEREREERAT RE*/E R AR#50,0007C 100% W%
Quzhou Shinsun Hongbo Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Co. Ltd.
MNEENERHEREERAR RE*/E R AR#10,0007C 0% WERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Jiuhe Real Estate Development PRC*/Mainland China RMB10,000 70%  Property development

Co. Ltd.
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REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT - —%F+= F=+—H 31 December 2022

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Notes:

*

M

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC")

The equity interests in these entities legally held by the Group are less than the beneficiary
interests which are attributable to the trust financing arrangements with the third
party financing institutes. The Group legally transferred partial equity interests of these
subsidiaries as collateral as at the date of this report to the trust financing institutes. Under
such trust financing arrangements, the Group was obliged to purchase the equity interests
at a fixed amount on a future date upon repayment of the borrowings from the trust
financing institutes.

Meanwhile, the Group retains the power to operate and manage these entities in the
ordinary course of business. In this regard, considering the facts that the substance of the
arrangements is to collateralise some equity interests in these entities for the borrowings
for project development and the Group retains the practical ability to govern the financial
and operating policies of these project entities so as to obtain benefits from the operating
activities of these project entities, the Directors are of the view that the financial position
and operating results of these entities should be combined into the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, irrespective of the equity transfers from the legal perspective.

Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has been delegated to combine the
financial position and operating results of Ningbo Shinsun Hongsheng from the other equity
holder, and thus, Ningbo Shinsun Hongsheng is accounted as a subsidiary of the Group.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

The English names of the companies registered in the PRC referred to
above in this note represent management’s best efforts in translating
the Chinese names of those companies as no English names have been
registered or are available. The legal forms of all the above disclosed
principal subsidiaries are limited liability companies.
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2.1BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Group incurred net loss of RMB3,926,577,000 for the year ended
31 December 2022 and as at 31 December 2022, the Group’s liabilities
include interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes,
corporate bonds and interest payable on these payables with their carrying
amounts of RMB22,994,546,000, RMB5,049,837,000, RMB539,268,000
and RMB1,077,297,000 respectively, out of RMB19,391,598,000 have
been due for settlement within the year after that date or repayable on
demand are included in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position, while its available cash and cash equivalent amounted to
RMB1,195,932,000.

In addition, the Group had default or cross default of principals on certain
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and corporate
bonds to the aggregate of RMB12,454,465,000 as at 31 December 2022
and RMB13,172,070,000 as at the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements.

The above conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. In view of such circumstances, the Directors have undertaken
a number of plans and measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and
financial position, including:

(i) The Group has been actively negotiating with a number of financial
institutions for renewal, extension and replacement of bank loans and
other borrowings;

(i) The Group will actively communicate with the governance department
to secure rescue funds for qualified project development;

(ii) The Group will continue to actively communicate with banks to
timely secure relevant project development loans for qualified project
development;

(iv) The Group will continue to seek for other alternative financing and
borrowings to finance the settlement of its existing financial obligations
and future operating and capital expenditures;
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REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z - —#F+ = F=+—H 31 December 2022
2.1BASIS OF PRESENTATION (conTinUED)

(v) The Group has prepared a business operating strategy plan mainly
focusing on the acceleration of the sales of properties;

(vi) The Group has implemented measures to speed up the collection of
outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control costs and expenses;
and

(vi)The Group will continue to seek suitable opportunities to dispose its
equity interest in certain project development companies in order to
generate additional cash inflows.

The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the above plans
and measures, the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
within the next eighteen months from 31 December 2022. Accordingly,
the Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to whether the
management of the Group will be able to implement the aforementioned
plans and measures, whether the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern will depend upon the Group’s ability to generate adequate
financing and operating cash flows through the following:

(i) successfully completing the restructuring of its senior notes;
(i) successfully negotiating with the Group’s existing lenders for the
renewal or extension for repayment of the Group’s interest-bearing

bank and other borrowings;

(iii) successfully securing project development loans for qualified project
development timely;

(iv) successfully obtaining additional new sources of financing as and when
needed;
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2.1BASIS OF PRESENTATION (conTinUED)

(v) successfully carrying out the Group’s business strategy plan including
the acceleration of the sales of properties;

(vi) successfully implementing measures to speed up the collection of
outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control costs and expenses;
and

(visuccessfully disposing the Group’s equity interest in project
development companies when suitable.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments
may have to be made to write down the carrying values of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

2.2BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all
standards and interpretations, International Accounting Standards (“1ASs")
and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations) approved by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and financial assets at FVTPL which have been measured at fair
value. These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z - —#F+ = F=+—H 31 December 2022
2.2BASIS OF PREPARATION (conTinuED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

General, there is a presumption that a majority of voting right results in
control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(i) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(i) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(iii) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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2.2BASIS OF PREPARATION (conTinuED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

2.3CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for the
current year's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying

IFRS 16, and IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 37

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020
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REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

2.3CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (conTivuED)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described below:

(@) Amendments to IFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous Framework

for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements with
a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
(the "Conceptual Framework”) issued in 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3
Business Combinations an exception to its recognition principle for
an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC
21 Levies if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a
business combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS
37 or IFRIC 21, respectively, instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to business combinations that occurred
on or after 1 January 2022. As there were no contingent assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities within the scope of the amendments
arising in the business combinations that occurred during the year, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

(b) Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost

of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling
any such items, and the cost of those items as determined by IAS 2
Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there was no sale
of items produced prior to the property, plant and equipment being
available for use, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.3CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

(0)

DISCLOSURES (conTivuED)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative costs
do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively to contracts for which it has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations as at 1 January 2022 and no onerous
contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

(d) Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets out

amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards, |FRS 9 Financial Instruments, llustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16 Leases, and IAS 41 Agriculture. Details of the
amendments that are applicable to the Group are as follows:

IFRS 9: clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf. The Group had applied the amendment
prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there was no modification
or exchange of the Group’s financial liabilities during the year, the
amendment did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZZ - -F+=A=+—H 31 December 2022
2.4ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs
The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

and IAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendment to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’®

Amendments to IFRS 17 Initial Application of IFRS 17 and
IFRS 9 — Comparative Information®

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of liabilities as Current or Non-
current (the “2020 Amendments”) %4

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
“2022 Amendments”)?

Amendments to IAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2020 Amendments
was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

> As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020, IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement rather than IFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023

6 An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the classification overlay set
out in this amendment shall apply it on initial application of IFRS 17
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2.4ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (conTinUED)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be applicable to
the Group is described below:

(@) Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and in IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
joint venture or associate. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its joint
venture or associate constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from
the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that joint venture
or associate. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS
28 was removed by the IASB and a new mandatory effective date will
be determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting
for joint ventures and associates. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

(b) Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-lessee
uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback
transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount
of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial application of IFRS 16
(i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

2.4ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (conTinUED)

() Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-

current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current, in particular the determination over whether an entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the IASB issued the 2022
Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a liability
arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity must
comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of that
liability as current or non-current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments
require additional disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising
from loan arrangements as non-current when it has a right to defer
settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity complying
with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early is
required to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice
versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments
and whether existing loan agreements my require revision. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(d) Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities

to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to
IFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since
the guidance provided in the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement
2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments is not
necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the accounting policy
disclosures to ensure consistency with the amendments.
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2.4ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (conTinUED)

(e) Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in

accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes
in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur
on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in IAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations as at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated losses or
other component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition,
the amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other
than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included in the
consolidated profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, respectively, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates
or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associate or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments
in associate or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence
or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations other than those under common control are
accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the
acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation
of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity
interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Business combination and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets at FVTPL
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.

145



146

mEMBHRMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E - —F+=FA=+4+—H 31 December 2022

LSERETBERE »)

N FEFE B

FeRMEEATENRAZETS28EE
ARERZEERINES M&RERA - i
EZEEE TS AREAZREERIIR

RREBANTISS EE FTEENL BN o

AEBERERRTRBANMGESE M
HAERHMEMGERFE  UEEN AR
ARG ABEBEREERD ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ
ABUE -

RSB RED i B HE AT BOH
AERAR  HREHATETBERN S
%iﬁ%?ﬁﬂﬂﬁk%ﬁET AT
BRETHE
—ER - ERAREEREENER
5 TR G (RIGBR)
“Ef - ERYATEHEMEZBE
AMTER (EERHE) S
AR 3188\ B 10 5 7
EZER - ERYATEHEMZES
AT TERRERABA
BIE R 15 %

IREEEERNGAVBHRRTHEANEE
RBEMS @ AEERSHERARSEHT
BOETE(REEBREBAVEFEMS B
ERNKEBERBARE)  UEETEEE
BERSERZMEL -

—T__FFH

HEZR(KE)BERLQF

2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.



LSERETBERE »)

FEREERE

HWEFERETR  HEAGFREELETR
Biel (EREE ANWEE BREMBEE
REFYE BELENTINERREY
X&) RIebsrEEMATREHE &
ENARESRNIZEERREELEMDN
EREEAAFERLEXNAMENRSE
AEMENEEASHAE  BRIFEEEY
TELERBBINEMEENEEARMNNIR
ERARUERT - A KSR REE
FERTELSEMN A MO BREAE - £
ReELBMETRENAR HMAREE
(Blgn - BERE) WARE B — 880 a5
ERER—HHER AR AESEE
BERRETELSEMN KR DEER/NHR
TEEBMME -

EEEERAESNETBEHBENERT -
TEERBERER - FEEREER A5
PRRERER T RMREERHEEREER
ERBREIRE ISR AT AR KR E
HiE - BEBRZEZBEEENEHETH
FXENRELHMEBEPME -

AEBSESREMRFERDEEATR
8 DA A1 P 58 B RR (B 5 1R 17 1 3 A E
B e R ERR - MG FHrRES
B EERANEEEENRESRENMGTE
B TERETAERNEERERE (7
BN BT FHEARKNBEFELE
MR RERRREBEMNEETENRAE
CHBRERIITE, #H) < REBRED S5
AELHRNELG  RFBEAEGBZEA
R EWBRAT  MEBERDRESEGHE
ENARES BRI -

REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than financial assets, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, properties under development, completed properties
held for sale and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In
testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating
units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that
person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of
a parent of the Group;

or
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in

(a);

(vii)a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); and

(vii)the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Group or to the parent
of the Group.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTiNUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

3.33-5.00%
25.00-33.33%
20.00-33.33%

Buildings

Motor vehicles

Office equipment and
electronic devices

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms

and useful lives

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress mainly represents equipment under installation
and car campaign under construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and installation. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
leasehold property interests held as right-of-use assets which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of each reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property
are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties
or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the
Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned
property and/or accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset
up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that date between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as
a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from inventories
to investment properties, any difference between the fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Intangible assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is
the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is amortised on the
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 2 to 10 years, which is
based on the expected period of usage and economic benefits brought by
the software.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the
period when the asset is derecognised.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost comprising
land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless those
will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On completion, the
properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the statement of financial
position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
by an apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings attributable
to the unsold properties. Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less estimated costs to be incurred in
selling the properties.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Allocation of property development costs

Land costs are allocated to each unit according to their respective saleable
gross floor areas (“GFA") to the total saleable GFA. Construction costs
relating to units were identified and allocated specifically. Common
construction costs have been allocated according to the saleable GFA
similar to land costs.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the lease
(that is the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Office buildings
Motor vehicles

2 to 6 years
5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold land held as
inventories, they are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value in accordance with the Group’s policy for “properties under
development” or “completed properties held for sale”. When a right-
of-use asset meets the definition of investment property, it is included
in investment properties. The corresponding right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, and subsequently measured at fair value, in accordance
with the Group’s policy for “investment properties”.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement date of the lease
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.
The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group
and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying
asset.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-
term leases of office equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of
low-value assets to leases of office equipment that is considered to be of
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease
or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue
in profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in
the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as finance
leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and FVTPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade and bills
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
FVTPL, transaction costs. Trade and bills receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on
the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business
model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial
assets which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at FVTPL.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
FVTPL are also recognised as other income in profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for the expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information. The group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contracted payment are over than 30 days past
due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade and bills receivables and contract
assest which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage2 -

Stage3 -  Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at

an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that contain a significant
financing component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with
policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include lease liabilities, interest-bearing

bank and other borrowings, senior notes, corporate bonds, trade and bills
payables, other payables and amounts due to related parties.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment
of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in profit or loss.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.

a. Sale of properties

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is transferred to
the customer.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of a financing component if it is
significant.

For a property development and sales contract for which the control of
the property is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised when
the customer obtains the physical possession, or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group has the present right to payment and
the collection of the consideration is probable.

b. Property management services

Property management service income derived from the provision of
property maintenance and management services is recognised when the
relevant services are rendered, and the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
¢. Management consulting services

Consulting service income derived from the provision of support services
in connection with the development of property projects is recognised
when the relevant services are rendered, and the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs.

d. Hotel services

Hotel revenue is recognised when the services have been rendered.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument of the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or
services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring
goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting policies for
impairment of financial assets.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received, or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers
the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract with
a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that
the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be used
in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in the
future.

() The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to profit or loss
on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to
which the asset related is recognised. Other contract costs are expensed as
incurred.

Employee retirement benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Employee retirement benefits (continued)
Pension scheme (continued)

The employees of the Company and its subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain proportion of these payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The only obligation of the Company with respect
to the central pension scheme is to make the required contributions. No
forfeited contribution under the central pension scheme is available to
reduce the contribution payable in future years. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

No forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme or the central pension
scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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2.5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Foreign currencies

[tems included in the financial information of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements is presented in RMB, which is the Company'’s
functional currency, because the Group’s principal operations are carried
out in the PRC. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, apart from those
involving estimations, management has prepared the consolidated financial
statements on the assumption that the Group will be able to operate as a
going concern in the coming year, which is a critical judgement that has
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. The assessment of the going concern assumption
involves making a judgement by the directors, at a particular point of time,
about the future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. The Directors consider that the Group has the capability to
continue as a going concern and the major events or conditions, which
may give rise to business risks, that may individually or collectively cast a
significant doubt upon the going concern assumption are set out in note 2.1
to the consolidated financial statements.

Classification between investment properties and completed
properties held for sale

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement. Investment
property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (conTiNUED)

Judgements (continued)
Significant financing component

In determining the transaction price of property sales, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of the timing value
of money if the timing of payments agreed by the parties to the contract
provides the Group with a significant benefit of financing.

Certain advance payments received from customers provide a significant
financing benefit to the Group. Although the Group is required by the
government to place all deposits and periodic payments received from
the pre-completion sales in a stakeholder’s account, the Group is able to
benefit from those advance payments as it can withdraw money from
that account to pay for construction costs on the project. The advance
payments received in effect reduce the Group’s need to rely on other
sources of financing.

The amount of the financing component is estimated at the inception of
the contract. After contract inception, the discount rate is not updated for
changes in interest rates or other circumstances, such as a change in credit
risk. The period of financing is from the time that the payment is received
until the transfer of goods to the customers is completed.

Classification of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

The classification of an investment as a subsidiary, a joint venture or an
associate is based on whether the Group is determined to have control,
joint control or significant influence over the investee, which involves
judgements through the analysis of various factors, including the Group’s
representation on the chief decision-making authorities of an investee,
such as the board of directors’ meetings and shareholders’ meetings, as
well as other facts and circumstances.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (conTiNUED)

Judgements (continued)
Classification of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (continued)

The Group has entered into voting right entrustment agreements or articles
of association with the equity holders of some entities, pursuant to which
the equity holders have agreed to entrust their voting rights attached to
certain equity interests in these entities to the Group. Consequently, the
Group considers that it controls these entities, notwithstanding the fact
that it does not hold the majority equity interest. Accordingly, these entities
have been accounted for as subsidiaries during the year. As disclosed
in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group legally
transferred partial interests of some entities as collateral to independent
trust financing institutes under financing arrangements, pursuant to which
the Group was obliged to repurchase the equity interests held by trust
companies at a fixed amount upon repayment of the borrowings. The
Group is exposed to variable returns from its involvement and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the relevant activities
of these entities in the ordinary course of business. The trust financing
institutes earn fixed returns from their investments and their rights in these
entities are considered protective in nature. In this regard, the investments
from trust financing institutes are treated as liabilities of the Group and
these investees are considered as subsidiaries.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are disclosed below:

Net realisable value of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale

The Group's properties under development and completed properties held
for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Based on
the Group’s historical experience and the nature of the subject properties,
the Group makes estimates of the selling prices, the costs of completion of
properties under development, and the costs to be incurred in selling the
properties based on prevailing market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net sales
value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may result in a
provision for properties under development and completed properties
held for sale. Such provision requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, the carrying
value and provision for properties in the periods in which such estimate is
changed will be adjusted accordingly.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (conTiNUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. As a result of
the fact that certain matters relating to the income taxes have not been
confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimates and judgement
based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies
are required in determining the provision for income taxes to be made.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
originally recorded, the differences will impact on the income tax and tax
provisions in the period in which the differences realise.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based
on management’s best estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The
actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax authorities
upon the completion of the property development projects. The Group has
not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with the tax authorities for
certain of its property development projects. The final outcome could be
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, and any differences
will impact on the LAT expenses and the related provision in the period in
which the differences realise.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties carried at fair value were revalued at each reporting
date based on the appraised market value provided by independent
professional valuers. Such valuations were based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the estimation, the Group considers information
from current prices in an active market for similar properties and uses
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further details are
included in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has four reportable operating
segments which are property development, property leasing, hotel
operations and the provision of property management services. The
property leasing segment, hotel operations segment and the provision of
property management services segment have no significant contribution to
the revenue and net assets. The Group’s chief operating decision maker, for
the purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment, focuses
on the operating results of the Group as a whole, and accordingly, no
further operating segment analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

No geographical information by segment is presented as the Group'’s
revenue from the external customers is derived solely from its operation
in Mainland China and no non-current assets of the Group are located
outside Mainland China.

Information about major customers

No revenue from sales to a single customer or a group of customers under
common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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5. Wz - Hatl A R s 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
R AT An analysis of revenue is as follows:
—E-C—F B —4F
AR¥TR ARBTT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EHEFE WG Revenue from contract customers 19,662,683 43,642,561
H At 3R I 2% Revenue from other sources
YEME WA Property lease income 38,357 76,467
19,701,040 43,719,028
(a) i 7 W 25 E #Y (a) Disaggregated revenue information
eS8 —E-—4F
AR¥TR ARBT T
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EFEHWE Revenue from contracts with customers
YIEHEE Sale of properties 19,577,073 43,560,590
MEE RS Property management services 20,752 17,323
ERFHARS Management consulting services 64,858 64,648
19,662,683 43,642,561
Wy 2 TR R Timing of revenue recognition:
RE R ER R Properties transferred at a point
in time 19,577,073 43,560,590
BiE FF ) 8 58 AR 7S Services transferred over time 85,610 81,971

BEFPAMBYK

np
Bk

Total revenue from contracts with customers 19,662,683 43,642,561
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

—E-= —E-—4F

ARBT ARBTIT

2022 2021

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

R EEBIF A G B ED Revenue recognised that was included in
BRI contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

VI HE Sale of properties 19,187,415 42,527,785

(b) BHE1F (b) Performance obligations

FRASENBOETHERBANT

MREE

BHEEDRINDERERT MAKE
2 WER A5 SR 3k BT BE A A YRER AN 3K

MEEERHK

AMEEERBMS  AEETERERZA
AEERELRASEAEMLHEDTRKREE
BEEREENBERRER NS - AEEDE
BYBRITHREAM A REZXFHRES
KM RIBRBROEE - KA D WEE B RBER
BEAOWEBE EFH - INFIRYEEER
BREANFHATREAREF IS
SETBEZARRGEEE®

EEBHRE

ARERBARBMS  AEBRBEENES
NS SRR - MBERFEREN AR
SELZSRIBENHEFNEBERYE -
AEEDERYBEATOEE AN T HE
ZERIWANNRSRBHOEE - AEDEE
ARG A KN R B FE FH o A AT R RE R
RESNFHRERE/SREF IHELRE
BT HBEEAEREEER

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is summarised
below:

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the properties and
the Group has already received the payment or has the right to receive the
payment probably.

Property management services

For property management services, the Group recognises revenue when
the services are provided on a monthly basis and the Group has a right
to invoice which corresponds directly with the value of performance
completed. The Group has elected the practical expedient not to disclose
the remaining performance obligations for these types of contracts. The
majority of the property management service contracts do not have a fixed
term. The term of the contracts for pre-delivery and property management
services is generally set to expire when the counterparties notify the Group
that the services are no longer required.

Management consulting services

For management consulting services, the Group recognises revenue in
the amount that equals to the right to invoice which corresponds directly
with the value to the customer of the Group’s performance to date. The
Group has elected the practical expedient not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations for these types of contracts. The majority of the
management consulting service contracts do not have a fixed term. The
term of the contracts for pre-delivery and consulting services is generally
set to expire when the counterparties notify the Group that the services are
no longer required.
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5. W - H AW A R W @) 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (conTinueD)
(b) BRI E A (&) (b) Performance obligations (continued)
RTZA=+—HOBRESRTROEME K The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
BITEBORBIT)ORSEBRSEAT obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as
follows:
—EC-CH T
AR¥TR AR¥ETTT
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
TREER BRGNS - Amounts expected to be recognised as revenue:
R—FR Within one year 41,363,199 41,834,067
R—F1%& After one year 35,618,606 35,289,725
76,981,805 77,123,792
H AR =A T An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:
—E-—f —E-—F
ARBT AREFTT
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB'000
H g A\ & Other income and gains
7 RL U A Subsidy income 140,498 41,364
HERAFEFAEZD Gains on disposal of financial assets at FVTPL
TR EERN KR 22,841 6,040
HE& &P ERE Gain on disposal of joint ventures 282,961 55,914
RURE Deposit forfeiture - 10,025
HEWE - BFER&E Gain on disposal of items of property, plant and
18 B Mk e equipment 1,819 1,539
FEWA Interest income 60,047 305,334
HAth Others 71,502 16,192
579,668 436,408
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6. LOSS ON FORFEITED LAND DEVELOPMENT
PROJECTS

On 29 March 2021, Shaoxing Xiangsheng Hongsheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd (“Shaoxing Hongsheng”, a subsidiary of the Group)
entered into a land grant contract for acquiring a piece of state-owned
land with approximately 106,509 square meters which located at Shaoxing,
Zhejiang, from the Shaoxing Natural Resources and Planning Bureau of the
PRC Government (the “Shaoxing Land Bureau”). The acquisition was made
as part of the Group’s strategy to expand its business for development
and operation of real estate for sales. The purchase consideration for the
acquisition was in the form of cash, with RMB1,555,500,000 (represented
RMB467,000,000 non-refundable deposit) paid on 23 April 2021 and the
remaining RMB1,555,500,000 to be paid on 1 July 2021. The aforesaid
land use right with leasehold periods granted to the Group was 70 years
starting from 29 March 2021. However, the Shaoxing Land Bureau might
not refund the deposit to Shaoxing Hongsheng if they proposes to the
Shaoxing Land Bureau to suspend and cease the development project and
request for return of land due to their own reasons according to the terms
of the land grant contract.

Due to the changes on the strategy of operaton and the downturn of the
PRC’s residential market, in the opinion of the Directors, they decided to
suspend and cease the development. Consequently, the Shaoxing Land
Bureau forfeited the land in respect of which Shaoxing Hongsheng did
not perform the land grant contract and did not refund the deposit. On 4
November 2022, a termination agreement was signed between Shaoxing
Hongsheng and the Shaoxing Land Bureau in respect of the relinquishing
the foregoing land due to a failure to comply with the terms of land
grant contract, the resulting the Group recognised a loss on forfeited
land premium with related foundation development cost in total of
RMB890,711,000 during the year.
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6. R HhBIEXIE B B X (@)

R_ZE-_—FRA=+—8  MMNEELE
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6. LOSS ON FORFEITED LAND DEVELOPMENT
PROJECTS (conTINUED)

On 31 May 2021, Hangzhou Xiangsheng Hongde Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd ("Hangzhou Hongde”, a subsidiary of the Group) entered into
a land grant contract for acquiring a piece of state-owned land with
approximately 52,412 square meters which located at Hangzhou, Zhejiang,
from the Hangzhou Natural Resources and Planning Bureau of the PRC
Government (the “Hangzhou Land Bureau”). The acquisition was made
as part of the Group’s strategy to expand its business for development
and operation of real estate for sales. The purchase consideration for the
acquisition was in the form of cash, with RMB522,370,000 (represented
RMB522,370,000 non-refundable deposit) paid on 21 May 2021 and the
remaining RMB783,560,000 to be paid on 4 August 2021. The aforesaid
land use right with leasehold periods granted to the Group was 70 years
starting from land delivery date. however, the Hangzhou Land Bureau
might not refund the deposit to Hangzhou Hongde if they fail to pay the
consideration according to the terms of the land grant contract.

Due to the changes on the strategy of operation and downturn of the
PRC's residential property market, in the opinion of the Directors, they
decided to suspend and cease the development. On 21 December 2022,
Hangzhou Hongde and the Hangzhou Land Bureau have reached an
agreement through consultation to conclude a termination agreement
that the Hangzhou Land Bureau forfeited the land in respect of which
Hangzhou Hongde did not pay the consideration and did not refund
the deposit, which resulting the Group recognised a loss on forfeited
land premium with related foundation development cost in total of
RMB752,924,000 during the year.
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7. AR R AR 7. FINANCE COSTS
MR AB DT - An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
—E-—F —T-—4F
AR®T T ARBTT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BERRETNFE Interest on loans and borrowings 2,248,328 3,683,091
BREENFE Interest on senior notes 572,679 461,827
hEEFNTE Interest on corporate bonds 38,501 38,605
HERBENFE Interest on lease liabilities 3,541 6,601
W EHEENT SRS Interest expense arising from revenue contracts 341,411 722,530
W IR A FETABED Total interest expense on financial liabilities
TREBENETERX not at FVTPL 3,204,460 4,912,654
W BRMEF R Less: Interest capitalised (1,657,068) (3,655,337)
1,547,392 1,257,317
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8. BRBiAT (B518) s F

AEE BB (B8R) aFemkr,/ (G

8. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

A) T3 &IE -
S8 —EF-—4F
Bt AR¥T T AREETF T
2022 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
EETFEKA Cost of inventories sold 17,879,185 38,984,995
B iR AR SRR Cost of services provided 84,654 27,811
mE - WERREITE Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 4 18,526 31,682
FRHEEERE Depreciation of right-of-use asset 15(a) 23,733 26,467
T E R Amortisation of intangible assets 17 3,269 3,370
Rt AHEE BT =M Lease payments not included in the
HERRK measurement of lease liabilities 342 5,517
A HHE A R & E Loss on disposal of subsidiaries* 38 179,638 39,577
BEbERERE Impairment of investments in joint
ventures* 206,797 -
REEE R EIRE ZRE > Impairment of investments in
associates™ 2,463 -
Z 5 PR IE & YRR Impairment of trade and bills
B FEE receivables, net* 23 18,081 (162)
H b & WK IE R (B Impairment of
other receivables* 25 199,884 12,565
JRE s B B 5 ROBDRUE Impairment of amount due from
related parties” 40(c) 2,380 -
HEREEARIRE 2 BB~ Loss on disposal of investments in
associates™* 4,211 -
BE 5, 2= FHFEE Exchange difference, net* 54,806 98,480
2 G Auditor’s remuneration 4,800 8,800
REBNAXZ (BHEEER Employee benefit expense
H=ITBABHM) (including directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration):
ITERF® Wages and salaries 340,508 763,868
RIRE TSR Pension scheme contributions 15,495 76,128
* ZEEAFAGRGEZREMEEREROE *  These items are included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
A - and other comprehensive income.
fOREHEAAGEBERREMEEKRERN[E #  These items are included “Impairment of trade receivables and other receivables” in the

ZIEMGRIE K E A MR E ] A ©

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

=== T4

AR®T AREETF T

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

e Fees - _

H A HREN - Other emoluments:

e RUREYMN = Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 8,838 10,023

BB IEAT Discretionary bonus 209 =
EW%#*‘ R Pension scheme contributions and social

ZEF welfare 288 408

9,335 10,431

9,335 10,431

(@) BLHHTEE
FAXNTFBIURTEZTNBRSNT ¢

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were

as follows:
—E-CF —E-—4F
AR®BT T ARBTT
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
BEBEE Mr. Ma Hongman 200 200
B HTE* Mr. Hung Yuk Miu* 206 =
TR A Mr. Ding Jiangang** 200 200
F B e Mr. Wong Kon Man*** - 240
606 640

* HABEAEN-T-__F=-A-REZEREA
BB IEMITES -

* TEBEER-ZE_=F+—ATtHBEELRR
BB IEMITES

e FRXAER T _F-A=+—BEELRR
RN IEHITES ©

FRIEABIIEATES I EMEE
(ZZ=—F :48) -

*  Mr. Hung Yuk Miu was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 1 March 2022.

** Mr. Ding Jiangang resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company on
17 November 2023.

**% Mr. Wong Kon Man resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company on
31 January 2022

There was no other emolument payable to the independent non-executive
directors during the year (2021: Nil).
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9 . EERESITTHAEHMH 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
(%) REMUNERATION (conTiINUED)
(b) BITEER THAER (b) Executive directors and the chief executive

ETEERHEZTREFAXANSEAM Certain of the Directors received remuneration from the subsidiaries
BARIESNZEME R RIWEE B - && now comprising the Group for their appointment as directors of these
EMBRARIMNPISMETLE  ZEESS subsidiaries. The remuneration of each of these directors as recorded in the

BEEHMEII AT financial statements of the subsidiaries is set out below:
e 2K
EEnd BEWA= B4 BRESHER “ame
ARET R AR¥ET R AR¥ET T ARET T ARET R
Salaries,
allowances Pension
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary fund Total
fees in kind bonus contributions remuneration
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
“T-—F 2022
WITESE: Executive directors:
— Bk — Mr. Han Bo* - 2,180 209 131 2,520
- WRERELE — Mr. Zhao Leiyi** - - _ _ _
— PREIRE ST A **x ~ Mr. Chen Guoxiang*** - 1,352 - 2 1,354
— RoAfR 4 — Mr. Chen Hongni - 4,700 - 155 4,855
s 8,232 209 288 8,729
BUFHTES Independent Non-Executive
directors:
BB %E - Mr. Ma Hongman - 200 - - 200
- HEEBEE — Mr. Hung Yuk Miu - 206 - - 206
- TER%E — Mr. Ding Jiangang = 200 - - 200
—EBXEE - Mr. Wong Kon Man - - - = =
= 8,838 209 288 9,335
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(%)

(b) BITEERTHAE (#)
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REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION (conTiINUED)

(b) Executive directors and the chief executive (continued)

e RER
ESHE EMAER IEIEAL RREHH Y o
ARBFT ARBEFTT ARETT ARBETT ARBFT
Salaries,
allowances Pension
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary fund Total
fees in kind bonus  contributions  remuneration
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—E-—fF 2021
WITES: Executive Directors:
—BK* - Han Bo* - 2,500 - 240 2,740
—HEE - Zhao Leiyi** - 833 - 65 898
—BREIRE % %> — Chen Guoxiang*** - 1,350 - - 1,350
—BR3AR - Chen Hongni - 4,700 - 103 4,803
= 9,383 - 408 9,791
BIUFMTES - Independent Non-Executive
Directors:
—Big - Ma Hongman - 200 - - 200
—H#EH - Hung Yuk Miu = = - - -
—T 2Rl - Ding Jiangang - 200 - - 200
—FHX - Wong Kon Man - 240 - - 240
- 10,023 - 408 10,431

* ERAEER T _F+—-ATHAREARLQR

WITEF -

* RERAAR T —_F+—A+HBABREERR

AMITES -

*ox [PREIRE S AR ZE - = A+ N A B o

FA MEBEESHTBTHRABTLNER
Al B R A #r BN A0 159 5% o

*  Mr. Han Bo resigned as Executive Directors of the Company on 14 November 2022.

** Mr. Zhao Leiyi resigned as Executive Directors of the Company on 14 November 2022.

**% Mr. Chen Guoxiang was deceased on 16 April 2023.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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NEERSHHES

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLEFE & The five highest paid employees for the year ended 31 December 2022

10.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

UE=HEEBERE (ZE_—F MA) included 2 (2021: 2) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in
B AFMEFBERR EXHFI - BHEZ note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year ended 31 December

T _FF+ZA=T—HIEFE Hff=4% 2022 of the remaining 3 (2021: 3) highest paid employees who are neither
(ZZ2=—F: =F)MFEARREZNFE a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:
EITHRABNSESEHBIESOHMFENT

S8 —EF-—4F

ARBET T ARBFIT

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’'000

e EMEREYRER Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,000 6,400
BAREEEIHR R REF Pension scheme contributions and social welfare 447 666
TEAT Bonus 35 =
5,482 7,066

FMNFTIRENFFEZNIERSITEA
BENREHMEEABT

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:
—E=-= —E-—4F
ARET T AREF T
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
1,500,001 /& 7T £ 2,000,000 7 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

2,500,001 % 7T £ 3,000,000 % 7T HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1
3,000,001 % 7T £ 3,500,000 % 7T HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 - 1
3 3

HEZR(KE)BERLQF

—EC_FFR
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ERBERAERELESREENEFIZES
BEEGMEFEH - RERSHEREBER
HEMBRARRY  AEBRFASHERE
BEZES MK ANE AR EBEZRT
RER AEEREBTMAZOMEA
RIEBRMATER  RAZELARREEZ
T —F+ A=+ HUIEFEENTER
ERELENTAERBEN (T =—F:
fE) ©

REERPEARLME ([ E ) Abg e
BB R BN FERNRR25% (ZE - —F:
25%) KB R BN Bl DK FR ISR

TR E T TIHE IR F30% E 60% B R
BRI EREY DB ERRYE
HE PSSR A HR R X (B MR
ERRAREMMERERT) - ARER
BABTBEMBERREARORE BT IHIE
ERfAET - (FHREHER B - T E
BB EAR SN REREETREEZRI
i

REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022
11.INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of the Group
are domiciled and operating. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of
the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands, the Group’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands are not
subject to any income tax. The Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong were not liable for income tax as they did not have any assessable
profits currently arising in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China were subject to
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") corporate income tax with a tax
rate of 25% (2021: 25%) for the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale of properties
less deductible expenditures, including land costs, borrowing costs and
other property development expenditures. The Group has estimated,
made and included in taxation a provision for the LAT according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The
LAT provision is subject to the final review and approval by the local tax
bureau.

—E-CF —E-—4F
ARMT T ARBT T
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BREARH IR - Current tax:
TSR T
- FREZH — Charge for the year 414,205 936,645
— AAFEBEEE — Qverprovision in prior years (227,117) -
T Hb AT LAT 465,943 343,261
RAEFRIE (K15E20) Deferred tax (note 20) 16,439 (120,660)
FRABESZ L BT Total tax charge for the year 669,470 1,159,246
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—E - —F+=FA=+4+—H 31 December 2022

M.FEH =2

BARB REREB B R B ZEMAERDE
REZEEVEAENRTIA (B1R) (8ME
RS A IR BRI SN Rt E O
SRAHRERERRE (AAERX) Sk

11.INCOME TAX (conTINUED)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to (loss)/profit before tax
at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax expense at the
effective income tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e.,

LI

the statutory tax rate) are as follows:

S8 —EF-—4F
ARET T ARETTT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
BELRT(BE) R (Loss)/profit before tax (3,257,107) 1,639,921
BEEMBMENE At the statutory income tax rate (678,593) 498,699
BRARTAAMBNEARI TE 2 AR Adjustments in respect of current tax of
previous periods (227,117) -
AT 0% B 32 Expenses not deductible for tax 461,365 102,736
SEhEREBE QA Profits and losses attributable to joint ventures
e % A R & 18 and associates 3,425 (111,187)
KRR IEE R Tax losses not recognised 485,792 295,731
RERAT A EREZRE Unrecognised deductible temporary differences 275,141 115,821
T M B (E T B Provision for LAT 465,943 343,261
THIRER B R E Tax effect on LAT (116,486) (85,815)
FRIEZ Tax charge 669,470 1,159,246

HE—_ T+ -_A=+—HIFE"
APHEELCERBERAEEHEAA
R#¥64,621,000c (ZE=—F: ARK
148,249,0007T) - ZE £ BT A G KB
mER N[ DIEA B D R E R BE ) &E

BIAET -

HEER(EB)ARAR T _FFR

profit or loss.

The share of tax attributable to joint ventures and associates amounted
to RMB64,621,000 (2021: RMB148,249,000) for the year ended 31
December 2022. These amounts are included in “Share of profits and
losses of joint ventures and associates” in the consolidated statements of



12.KRE

EEfEBRINBE_E_—FKr_T——
F+-_A=t+—HIFEZRHARE -

BEAREEEERAAERLE
IR & 18

BREABESBIREIAR L BESE
BAEEFABERTEAC TN
7 19 213,043,403,000 % (— 8 = — 4 -
3,043,403,000 %) 54 -

HRAEEREE TR _T-—F
T Z A=+ HUEFEUEDEHTELE
SBERER RUBEREE T _—_FR=-F
T+ A=t HLEFERINERE
AEBESHEELEERE -

BREARBEERSBENAEER

REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022
12.DIVIDENDS

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

13.LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on the loss
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 3,043,403,000 (2021:
3,043,403,000) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts
presented for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 in respect of
a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The calculations of the basic and diluted loss per share amounts are based
on:

eS8 —E-—4F
AR®T R ARBT T
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
&8 Loss
BRAREBEREE ARGER Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent 3,878,628 215,363
SvE 4]
Number of Shares
—E=-= T —4F
2022 2021
idvi) Shares
FABBTEBERME T Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year 3,043,403,000 3,043,403,000

BREE
EXRK Y

Loss per share
Basic and diluted

AR#¥ RMB1.27 AKR% RMB0.07
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—T - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

UWYE BERRE 14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BRRER

[ &4 RE ETHE ERIE HELE a3t

ARETTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETT ARETT
Office
equipment
and

Motor electronic  Construction Leasehold
Buildings vehicles devices in progress  improvements Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R=E--%-f-R: At 1 January 2022:

A Cost 180,659 55,442 70,124 3,537 88,874 398,636

ZitNE Accumulated depreciation (109,403) (46,464) (58,448) S (78,649) (292,964)
BEZE Net carrying amount 71,256 8,978 11,676 3,537 10,225 105,672
R=Z==f-f-R" At 1 January 2022, net of

R ZatHE accumulated depreciation 71,256 8,978 11,676 3,537 10,225 105,672
NE Additions - 1,255 37 1421 - 2,713
WEEHB A A (3 37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) - 74 1M1 = = 185
HESH Disposals = (3,510) (85) = = (3,595)
HERB A (H538) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) - - (1,192) S = (1,192
EnirERRE (fze) Depreciation provided during

the year (note 8) (8,146) (2,628) (2,650) - (5,102) (18,526)

R-Z-—&+-f=+-H" At 31 December 2022, net of
NRZHHE accumulated depreciation 63,110 4,169 7,807 4,958 5123 85,257

WoE-—E+-A=1+-8: At 31 December 2022

A& Cost 180,659 33,767 68,995 4,958 88,874 377,253
ZiHiE Accumulated depreciation (117,549) (29,598) (61,098) S (83,751) (291,996)
REAE Net carrying amount 63,110 4,169 7,897 4,958 5123 85,257
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—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTinvED)

BoRER
BT B ETRE ERIR REXB &t
ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Office
equipment
and
Motor electronic ~ Construction Leasehold
Buildings vehicles devices in progress  improvements Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZZB-_-§-A-R: At 1 January 2021;
A Cost 173,859 64,297 75,545 4,344 87,117 405,162
ZiiE Accumulated depreciation (105,463) (51,736) (54,866) = (65,965) (278,030)
RRFE Net carrying amount 68,396 12,561 20,679 4,344 21,152 127132
RZE=-%-f-R" At 1 January 2021, net of
Nk ZitieE accumulated depreciation 68,39 12,561 20,679 4344 21,152 127,132
RE Additions - 2,11 491 1,017 342 8431
BEBRANZ (WiT16) Transferred from investment
properties (note 16) 6,800 - - - - 6,800
[ Transfers = - = (1,824) 1824 -
WEEHB A A (F3E37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) = 57 = = = 57
HMEFIE (f13538) Disposals (note 38) - (454) (4127) - (355) (4,936)
LENHBAR Disposal of subsidiaries - (180) = = = (180)
EnirERE (fzs) Depreciation provided during
the year (note 8) (3,940) (5,217) (9,787) - (12,738) (31,682)
R-Z--f+-f=+-H" At 31 December 2021, net of
Nk 2itiE accumulated depreciation 71,256 8,978 11,676 3,537 10,225 105,672
R-B--£+-f=t-R: At 31 December 2021:
A Cost 180,659 55,442 70,124 3,537 88874 398,636
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (109,403) (46,464) (58,448) - (78,649) (292,964)
ERFE Net carrying amount 71,256 8978 11,676 3,537 10,225 105,672

R-EBE-_—HF+-F=+—8 AEEE@
SREA A ANREES, 260,000 (Z B = —F
AR#6,030,00070) WA TEFELHR - A
AEBEREMIRIT R H A5 ZEE R (M

31)

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s buildings with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB5,260,000 (2021: RMB6,030,000) were
pledged to secure bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note

31).
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—E - —F+=FA=+4+—H 31 December 2022
15. &

EEEESABEA

AEBRSFEMIEINAHESR - BF
Efﬁ WEMBER2E6F  ARAEM
EMAH-RASF -PARBHEAER
RBIRZBEASIARR,HERRENEER
Ko —RME  NEBAARAEEIAINA
THEEEOHHEEESE -

15.LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office buildings and motor vehicles.
Leases of office buildings generally have lease terms between 2 and 6
years, and leases of motor vehicles generally have lease terms of 5 years.
Office equipment generally has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is
individually of low value. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning
and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(Q)FERAEEE (a) Right-of-use assets
REBEFEAREENRAERNERNNE D The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the
UNNE movements during the year are as follows:
BFE RE My
AR®T T ARBT T ARBT
Office Motor
buildings vehicles Total
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
R—ZE-_—F—H—H As at 1 January 2021 73,929 135 74,064
NE Additions 15,062 - 15,062
Ia"ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁTTﬁY%Zﬂ“Eﬂﬁﬁ Revision of a lease term arising from
By HEEE a change in the non-cancellable
period of a lease (4,537) - (4,537)
EBH (MES) Depreciation charge (note 8) (26,372) (95) (26,467)
RZFT=Z—F+=ZHA=+—H Asat31 December 2021 and
NZTEZ—F—H—H 1 January 2022 58,082 40 58,122
NE Additions 4,349 129 4,478
I%ﬁf%ﬁf&ﬁ?‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁzk‘@ﬁﬁ Revision of a lease term arising from
B A a change in the non-cancellable
period of a lease (22,281) - (22,281)
EER (K:E8) Depreciation charge (note 8) (23,652) (81) (23,733)
RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H Asat 31 December 2022 16,498 88 16,586
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REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z - —#F+ = F=+—H 31 December 2022
15.LEASES (conTinUED)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the

year are as follows:

—E-CH T4
ARBT ARBTIT
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
R—A—BXEEE Carrying amount at 1 January 67,675 86,117
MEE New leases 3,105 13,212
EHAE AR HEE 2 Revision of a lease term arising from a change
A E in the non-cancellable period of a lease (9,060) (6,060)
FREER SIEIE Accretion of interest recognised during the year 3,541 6,601
3% Payments (27,633) (32,195)
R+ZA=+—HZKAE Carrying amount at 31 December 37,628 67,675
—E-C—F —E-—4F
ARBT ARBTIT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
DA Analysed into:
MENER D Current portion 21,725 32,332
EmEE S Non-current portion 15,903 35,343

HE BB DD EMERRH T35

B -

financial statements.
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—E - —F+=FA=+4+—H 31 December 2022

15.38E @) 15.LEASES (CONTINUED)
AEBERABA (#) The Group as a lessee (continued)
() NEEERNEHREENSENT : () The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as
follows:
—E-= —E-—%F
ARBT ARBTIT
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
HEGENE Interest on lease liabilities 3,541 6,601
CTRAEEENEER (WE8) Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets (note 8) 23,733 26,467
MEHEEMARERZ Expense relating to short-term leases 266 4,607
KEEEERENEBAMY Expense relating to leases of low-value assets 76 910
REZERANESHE Total amount recognised in profit or loss 27,616 38,585

(d) LR B BTSSR KRB 5E36(c) 439D R & (d) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows relating to

THERE R L A5 R FEA leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in notes 36(c) and
HEBBANRKRRESRE 43, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.
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FEEESHBA

AEBRBLLHE R HHEEREYZE (K
FE16) - HAMEFE T ERAP X HERER
SWREZRARTSRIHESETE
R - NEERAFERIANHEEUAL
AR#38,357,000 L (ZE=—%: AR¥K
76,467,0007T) © B B 715 800 B 7% K M
5

RZEZZF+ZA=+—H  AEERK
REARRE T BELZE A E R8P WE

REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z - —#F+ = F=+—H 31 December 2022
15.LEASES (conTinUED)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16) under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group
during the year was RMB38,357,000 (2021: RMB76,467,000), details of
which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the
Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its

AR IREERNKAT - tenants are as follows:
—E-= —E-—4F
AR®T T AR®EF T
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
—F R Within one year 53,189 94,905
—FLAEERMFA After one year but within two years 52,079 46,894
MFELAEEBR=FA After two years but within three years 45,581 45,720
ZFAFEREFER After three years but within four years 38,654 39,271
MENAEERAFA After four years but within five years 37,017 34,051
FFLAE After five years 112,332 83,246
338,852 344,087
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—E - —F+=FA=+4+—H 31 December 2022

16. 1R E W% 16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—E-= —E-—4F
AR®T T ARBTIT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
R—A—HZEHE Carrying amount at 1 January 2,029,480 2,018,554
EEEQAmE (MiE14) Transfer to owner-occupied property (note 14) - (6,800)
D ERAEME (BE) L FEE Net (loss)/gain from a fair value adjustment (46,397) 17,726
R+-ZA=+—HZKHE Carrying amount at 31 December 1,983,083 2,029,480

NEEZIREMEMP R E AL o RIEEBL
BEABRGEEMEEFTE (LS EEFT
HAERDRFTETZHE  AREZEREY
¥R B —F+_A=+—BRREH
H1E A AR ®1,983,083,000 T (=T = —
F£: AR%2,029,480,0007T) - NEEE
NG ERMBEREEMEMNINIBEE -
FREREEMSNG B8 BUMEE2
CHEZEZE - AEENR RV BHLEER
MR RETHEREGEMS RGHE
BERGELER -

NR-BE-—F+_A=+—0 K&EEKEH
HE#) AR 765,387,000 (= F = —4 :
AR¥240,500,00070) & EMEDEH
BAEERERRITREAERER R
5¥31)

HEER(EB)ARAR T _FFR

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China. The
Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2022
based on valuations performed by Hanhua Appraisal (Shanghai) Asset
Appraisal Co., Ltd, an independent professionally qualified valuer, at
RMB1,983,083,000 (2021: RMB2,029,480,000). The Group appoints an
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
The Group's chief financial officer has discussion with the valuer on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed for financial reporting.

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s investment properties with a carrying
amount of approximately RMB765,387,000 (2021: RMB240,500,000) were
pledged to secure bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note
31).
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—Z - —#F+ = F=+—H 31 December 2022
16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTinuED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
Group's investment properties:

RZBZZE+ZAZ+-ARAUTHRETNATERNE
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022 using

WERT S EXTEE EXTABE

HH&E BARE AARE
(£-%) (E=8) (E=8) -
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

FATERETHEREATEE Recurring fair value measurement for.
BRTIEENE Commercial properties completed - - 1,983,083 1,983,083
RIZZ-FT-A=T-HEANTAREANATERZ
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using

REETS EXAHE EXTAHE

MEE BARE BARE
(F-#) (F=H) (F=R&) &t
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTL

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RATERETNEENATEE Recurring fair value measurement for:

BRTIEENE Commercial properties completed S = 2,029,480 2,029,480

RER - E—REE —F 2 ELEDFET
ENER TEBRESHEBEAFE=R -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.
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—E - —F+=FA=+4+—H 31 December 2022
16.REME @)

RFEERE)

NTAREMEREMBAERTREEZE
ABERE

16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTinuED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key inputs to
the valuation of investment properties:

BEXMEFHT-A=1—H

Range or weighted average 31 December

fhERM ERTABREAZE —E-Cf —ECF
Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs 2022 2021
BERIEEDE Wk BHAEER AR¥14-1278 ARE13-14171T
(BFAREEA)
Completed commercial properties Income approach Expected rental value RMB14-127 RMB13-141
(per square metre and per day)
BRI b
Capitalisation rate 1%-6% 3%-6%

ERTEEMENRTETEBRREET -
HERBBAANREEERSRRER
BEms EAIREBNmER S WA - BEE3E
ENERBANENFEEMRE  YEREER
MERMEEETERMCABE R FE - £
EBERAT  TEEESEREATHAIELR
HHER S °

At EEREEN CRD) BEHRE
WMENRTEREEZN ORD) « ERIEER
Rigig,/ Ofd) B EHREMEN A FE
RiEmD,/ (8) -

—E_FER

HEZR(KE)BERLQF

The fair value of completed commercial properties is determined using
the income approach by taking into account the rental income of the
properties derived from the existing leases and/or achievable in the existing
market with due allowance for the reversionary income potential of the
leases, which have been then capitalised to determine the fair value at
an appropriate capitalisation rate. Where appropriate, reference to the
comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant market has also
been considered.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental value would result
in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties. A significant increase/(decrease) in the capitalisation rate would
result in a significant decrease/(increase) in the fair value of the investment
properties.



MNERXEE

REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

—E-= T —fF
AR®T T AREETF T
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
B4 Software
R—H—H At 1 January

B AR Cost 20,997 18,542

ZET Accumulated amortisation (11,080) (7,710)
R—HA— B8R - Mk Rat# Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated

amortisation 9,917 10,832
INE Additions 113 2,455
FNGTHREH (IFE8) Amortisation provided during the year (note 8) (3,269) (3,370)
Rt+t-—A=+—8H At 31 December 6,761 9,917
BN Cost 21,110 20,997
REFTH#E Accumulated amortisation (14,349) (11,080)
BREFE Net carrying amount 6,761 9,917
BRAEELENRE 18.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
—E-C8F —E-—4F
AR¥T AREET T
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE KA Cost of investments 804,719 1,249,091
FEMR U &R A - Share of post-acquisition profits,

MERE AR S net of dividend received 104,449 217,916
B BEERBEEE Less: Impairment loss recognised (206,797) =
DIEEEFE Share of net assets 702,371 1,467,007
2 55 [ B A i 1 2R 1) B UK K B T SR IB A A IR The Group's receivable and payable balances with joint ventures are
BN E M IR KM FEL0 © disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
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—E - —F+=FA=+4+—H 31 December 2022
BRELELENEE @)

(a) FEEFELL ¥ (EBEIENTER
ML) BT

18.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (conTivuED)

(a) Particulars of the Group's principal joint ventures, all of which principally
operate in Mainland China, are as follows:

198

REEELR
i/ BRIRAE FERERN
8 BREEYES WEE (Fr) ARl TEED
Percentage
Nominal value of of ownership
registered/issued interest
Place of registration share capital attributable
Name and business ('000) to the Group Principal activities
ML EREHEREARAR hE/HEA AR#50,0007T 60% MERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Yijing Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 60% Property development
WNCERREREERAR hE/HEA AR#50,0007T 49% WER%
Hangzhou Renyuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 49% Property development
ARTEEEFERAR (HREE]) mE/ R E R AR#500,0007T 30% MER#E
Nanjing Yihui Real Estate Co., Ltd. ("Nanjing Yihui") PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 30% Property development
AERELREEERAR mE/ R E R AR20,0007 51% WERE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000 51% Property development
AERERRERERAT hE/HEA ARH400,0007T 3% NERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangjun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB400,000 31% Property development
ZERECEANERERAA mE/ R E R AR4,000,0007 51% REHER
Anging Xiangwan Enterprise Consulting Management Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB4,000,000 51% Investment holding
AETERRHEREERAA hE/HEA AR#20,0007T 35% NERE
Zhuji Wanxiang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000 35% Property development
RESHHRHEREERAA hE/HEA AK#100,0007T 3% NEFHE
Anging Jinshixiang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 33% Property development
AR EHEREERAR hE/HEA AK#300,0007T 49% WER%
Hubei Kaixiang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB300,000 49% Property development
REEREXERAMAT hE/HEA AR 200,000,007 51% HERE
Anging Wanxing Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 51% Property development
FERRERREREERAT mE/ R E R AR#200,0007T 51% WERERLKE
Zhuji Xianglv Yunlu Tourism Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000 51% Property development and
cultural tourism
RN 2R HEREERAR hE/HEA AR#%10,0007T 3% NERE
Hangzhou Yuekun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000 34% Property development
BMTEREZERAR hE/HEA ARH100,0007T 3% NERE
Wenzhou Yayue Real Estate Co. Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 34% Property development
RE(HB)EXARAT hE/HEAL AR#10,0007T 40% WERE
Yuchang (Zibo) Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000 40% Property development
REHELEAAEEERAT hE/HEA AR%4,000,0007T 51% RERR
Anging Xiangyi Enterprise Consulting Management Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB4,000,000 51% Investment holding

HEER(EB)ARAR T _FFR
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REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022
18.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continuED)

(a) (continued)

Pursuant to the investment framework agreement and the articles of
association of these companies, all shareholders’ resolutions of these
companies shall be resolved by all shareholders on a unanimous basis.
Therefore, these companies were accounted for as joint ventures of the
Group during the year.

The English names of the companies registered in the PRC referred to
above in this note represent management's best efforts in translating
the Chinese names of those companies as no English names have been

(b)R =%

|11 5%
=+

P RAERIARE

TRIREREENT B E RS

T FRZEFEZ—
H EREBEHAASLASEMNE
REELE TERFREAHAEYE

F+ = A

registered or are available.

the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of

(b) Nanjing Yihui was considered as material a joint venture of the Group
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021, which is principally engaged in
property development in Mainland China and is accounted for using

Nanjing Yihui:
—E__F T4
AR¥T T ARBT T
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
HeRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 41,529 15,885
Bt mE&EE Other current assets 1,326,014 1,265,251
REEE Current assets 1,367,543 1,281,136
FEREEE Non-current assets 13,395 13,408
ViR Current liabilities (287,690) (171,832)
BEFHE Net assets 1,093,248 1,122,712
HAEERGEPFERER Recondiliation to the Group’s interest in the
2 HBR - joint venture:
REEEAREZ LA Proportion of the Group’s ownership 30% 30%
AEESIEEERECEEFE Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture 327,974 336,814
Wz Revenue 1,734 3,090,193
F Expenses (31,211) (2,200,777)
DAL Tax - (204,102)
FN(BE) = F (Loss)/profit for the year (29,477) 685,314
FANEHE (EBB) g5 Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (29,477) 685,314
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—E - —F+=FA=+4+—H 31 December 2022
BRELELENEE @)

() TRINFAEBMAFEMANBEAMNE L
TENEHUBHER

18.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (conTivuED)

(c) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of
the Group’s joint ventures that are not individually material:

S8 —EF-—4F
ARBT ARBTT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
DIEEEREF NEN KEE Share of the joint ventures’ profits and
losses for the year (54,627) 143,590
DMEEERELE WAL Share of the joint ventures’ total
comprehensive income (54,627) 143,590
AEBRAGECERENEIREE Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
investments in the joint ventures 374,397 1,130,193

BELENZFMBRRANEREALR

AEERREARTEREELENRER
EREREDRR -ASBEHAEECENATK
Bl SREETTHEBRFRERREARE
206,797,000 L (ZE=—F : &) o

DREBEQATNRE

The joint ventures have been accounted for using the equity method in
these financial statements.

The Group assessed at the end of the reporting period whether there was
any indication that investments in joint ventures may be impaired. The
Group assessed the recoverable amount of the joint ventures and led to the
recognition of an impairment of RMB206,797,000 during the year (2021:
Nil).

19.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

—E-= —E-—fF

AR®T AR®EF T

2022 2021

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

RE KA Cost of investments 1,357,477 1,367,278
FEREZERT - IBRERRE Share of post-acquisition profits, net of dividend

received (959) 32,365

B BERBEEE Less: Impairment loss recognised (2,463) -

DIHEEFE Share of net assets 1,354,055 1,399,643

7N £2 [ L EgE 2 O ) A K B A SRR A BRI
BNER A M IS MR FE40 -

HEER(EB)ARAR T _FFR

The Group’s receivable and payable balances with associates are disclosed
in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
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—Z - _—F+=A=+—H 31 December 2022
VD REELNTINERE 2) 19.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

(a) REEFE BHE AR (2 E9 R FE R (a) Particulars of the Group’s principal associates, all of which principally

LE)NFEBWT

operate in Mainland China, are as follows:

i/ BRIRA REEELR
WEE FrERERN
8 BIEE eSS (F7) Bl TEEER
Percentage of
Nominal value of ownership
registered/issued interest
Place of registration share capital attributable
Name and business ('000) tothe Group  Principal activities
B LBt EREBRAR E/RER AR%50,0007 49% MERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 49%  Property development
FERE K NAREBRAR E/RER ARH100,0007T 40% ik
Zhuji Xiyuan Cultural Tourism Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 40%  Cultural tourism
ERGEERHERLERAR HE/PEAR AR 600,000 9% ERE
Dingyuan Yuanbi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB600,000 49%  Property development
ERRREXARLT HE/PEAR AR 580,000 50% MERE
Ningbo Jingyao Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB580,000 50%  Property development
wMFE EEHESAAERAR E/RER AR 700,000,000 26% REER
Wenzhou New City Hengjia Business Information Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB700,000,000 26%  Investment holding
AETHERHERLERAR HE/PEAR AR 120,000 9% NERE
Tianchang Xinbi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB120,000 49%  Property development
ERHELEEHEREERAA hE/PEAR AR 400,007 9% NERE
Ningbo Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB400,000 49%  Property development
ERRECXEEFAERAT hE/PEAR AR612,0007 9% BEER
Ningbo Yuansheng Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB612,000 49%  Investment holding
ETHARREREERAR HE/PEAR AR 2550107 0% NERE
Zhenjiang Kesheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB255,010 40%  Property development
MNRRAEEEERAT E/RER AE#1,0007 49%  REER
Hangzhou Dongliang Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000 49%  Investment holding
MNEREXERBRAR E/RER ARH600,0007T 5%  REER
Hangzhou Binwen Enterprise Management Co. Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB600,000 25%  Investment holding
REREERXERLT hE/PEAR AR%20,0007T 0% NERE
Taixing Xiangsheng Real Estate Co. Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000 20%  Property development
AERIEERNERLERAR hE/PEAR AR 600,000 5%  XeiEE
Yiwu Cuiyu Huating Real Estate Development Co. Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB600,000 25%  Cultural tourism
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NVRABERARNNRE &)

(a) (#&)
RAMFS - Fll AP BE ARz
AMNRNEBAEEER NEHZEAR
AXEEzES RERYERE XL
EEfMeAT A -

(b) T 2R 51 7R A< 5= B 30 3 {6 51 /8§ B A KO B 2
REINBHIIEER :

19.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (conTINUED)

(a) (continued)

The English names of the companies registered in Mainland China
referred to above in this note represent management’s best efforts in
translating the Chinese names of those companies as no English names
have been registered or are available.

(b) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of
the Group’s associates that are not individually material:

—E-= —E-—4F
ARBT ARBTIT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
DA E N EFE R s R E R Share of the associates’ profits and losses
for the year 49,772 95,563
DIGEE AT R E WS AR Share of the associates’ total comprehensive
income or losses 49,772 95,563
AEBEREE ATIRENBIRAEMAE Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
investments in the associates 1,354,055 1,399,643
BERANZEGRETBRERAAEREA The associates have been accounted for using the equity method in these
R - consolidated financial statements.

REBRBEHRTERELELENKRER
EHEEREDSR - AEBHALDENAT Y
Bl BEETTHEFRNFRNBRRREARE
2,463,000 T (=B = —4F : &) o

HEER(EB)ARAR T _FFR

The Group assessed at the end of the reporting period whether there was
any indication that investments in joint ventures may be impaired. The
Group assessed the recoverable amount of the joint ventures and led to
the recognition of an impairment of RMB2,463,000 during the year (2021:
Nil).
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—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

W.ELEHEBEEERERE 20.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FRNEEREEERBENEFHOT The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as
follows:

BEEFHIEELEE Deferred tax assets

THEHRK if 7

ERbH ERbaR R Bttt
HEE 53 BENE RERNE BEH it
AR®TR ARBTR AR®T T AR®T R ARBTTR ARBTR
Losses available  Expenses for Unrealised
for offsetting offsetting revenue
against future ~ against future  Impairment in contract Accrued
taxable profits ~taxable profits of assets liabilities LAT Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

At 1 January 2021 195,140 45,855 4,456 1,6354% 226476 2107423
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) - - - 31,59 - 31,590
Disposal of subsidiares (note 38) (13) - - - = (73
Deferred tax credited(charged) to

profit or loss during the year (note 11) 120348 (21,870) (1.49) 111,195 (112,982) 95,197

RZBZ-Ft-A=t-BR

At 31 Decernber 2021 and 1 January 2022

“E--%-f-H 315,415 23,985 2,962 1,778,281 113,494 2,234,137
WEMB AR (H37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) 8,665 - = 081 4,657 36,143
HERBA (H338) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) (27,275) - (929) (83,103) - (11,307)
EREA/ (MBAE) BiH Deferred tax credited(charged) to

BERAMN) profitor loss during the year (note 11) 291,026 (20512) (203) (299,012) (6,231) (36,762)
RZE-_E+-A=1-H At 31 December 2022 587,831 3473 - 1,418,987 111,920 212,211
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—T - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

WEEHBEEREE @) 20.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)
EEHIEEE Deferred tax liabilities
BAYE
FTABREN RENE £BAH
SHEEEL BEM BEM
MATERZ ATERR NERZ @t
ARBTR AR®TT N S ARBTR
Fair value Fair value Fair value
adjustments adjustments adjustments
arising from arising from arising from
financial assets investment business
at FVTPL properties combinations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W-2-—4-F-A At 1 January 2021 3 151,499 87,910 239,442
WEEHB A A (Fi3E37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) = = 27,385 27,385
ERBRAE/ GHA)BES Deferred tax charged/(credited) to profit o loss
EREHE (1) during the year (note 11) 359 15,201 (41,023) (25,463)
RZF--F+-A=1-H At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022
k=E-—%-p-H 392 166,700 74212 241,364
it NBRMETHE (1) Deferred tax credited to profit or loss
during the year (note 11) (380) (10,470) (9,473) (20,323
RZE-—F+-f=1-H At 31 December 2022 12 156,230 64,799 221,041

204 HAZER(EE)ARAT —T - —FFR
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REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

20.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

For presentation purpose, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for
financial reporting purposes:

S8 —EF-—4F
ARBT AREFTT
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
RERE AR R AR Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
ﬁk%ﬁlﬁéf‘%@@ consolidated statement of financial position 2,118,031 2,203,424
RERE AR R AR Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
RIET IR & E)F5 consolidated statement of financial position (216,861) (210,651)
EETRIEE EFE Net deferred tax assets 1,901,170 1,992,773

REBCPEARKMBEEEMREBE) - £
BRI EIRECERBIMNIEES
TR EY B B BRI 10% B TR B © 3% 4R € B
“EENF-A-BRARILBEANR _-_ZTZ
TtFT_A=T—"HRELENRAH - P EH
M S EZ SN % B P B Rl A RE R AT B K
HE - ATRARERORE - NEBEHER
MER10% - Fit  AEBARZEETE
MR B ARRE —TEN\F—A—R
FEEE A H) BRI PR 0 IR B9 BB BUAR TR N A

RZZF-_—F+_A=+—H TERELE

B 70 Fh B P 3 B SZ Y Y B R ] ZR A TR AT
T 1 AR B 2 ) 8 A 9 TR 40 B¢ B SR ) IR

ERIE -EBEZRA  AEENESSAR
AEFBNREMATEAFRE  BZF
MEBARRABRERKRTAEDIKE @A
ﬂ o B 488 fie SR R A TR B A AP R P9 3 B

AFNREHENEREZLFHOR/A
Eﬁ%439751 000 (ZEZ—F: AREK
816,905,0007T) °

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2022, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that
are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group’s fund
will be retained in Mainland China for the expansion of the Group’s
operation, so it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amounts of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China
for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised amounted to
approximately RMB439,751,000 (2021: RMB816,905,000).
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—E - —F+=FA=+4+—H 31 December 2022

0. EEREBEEREE @)

20.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(CONTINUED)

w R ERIRIETR IR B E ¢ Deferred tax assets have not been recognised:
S8 —EF-—4F
ARBT AREFTT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
TIEE 1A Tax losses 1,048,414 562,622
AR E RS Z 5 Deductible temporary differences 594,092 318,951
1,642,506 881,573

7 45 3 BT /BB 2 1A 2 BR R Rl 70 B X S R AR
EENEBRERELHBEE YRS TA
BE B R B AIAE AT A e TR IRE 1B -

BEREFBER THEENEE - ERF AN
RIRERBAA ©

1. h Y E

RZZTE-_—_F+-A=+—8 KEBHAK
HEA A R#31,985,839,000 0 (=& = —
4 AR#37,881,847,0007T) MR Y
¥0EH AASEHERNRITREMER
YEH IR (BIFE31) ©

HEER(EB)ARAR T _FFR

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

The relevant tax losses can be carried forward to offset against future
taxable income in one to five years.

21.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s properties under development with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB31,985,839,000 (2021:
RMB37,881,847,000) were pledged to secure bank and other borrowings
granted to the Group (note 31).
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—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

REFEFHENER I 22.COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

FERENERIYENEERNSRERE The value of completed properties held for sale was assessed at the end
REERT A o fin AR E B R @ H AT #3535 E - A of each reporting period. An impairment exists when the carrying value
FERME - I#RFE2EERRITMEN exceeds its net realisable value. The net realisable value is determined by
EERBEAHEERIETE - reference to the selling price based on the prevailing market price less

applicable selling expenses.

BEFERRERERRE 23.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
—E-_F T4
ARET R AREFTT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
5 EERE & E R E S Trade and bills receivables 88,869 14,594
A Impairment (19,394) (1,313)
69,475 13,281

REENEZEZRRFEREBREEEEDE The Group’s trade and bills receivables primarily consist of receivables
AEPRENYEEERY  ERERRE from its property management services, management consulting services
VI E R IEE YA EWRIE - provided to its customers, property leasing and sale of properties.

REREARARENEZABNE 5 BIHK An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of each
1B R RN E R R BRI 2T (R E 18 HE) 10 reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as
T follows:

S8 —E-—4F

ARET R AREET T

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

—F R Within 1 year 60,192 12,768
— 2= 1 to 3 years 9,283 513
69,475 13,281
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—T - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

BVESEWRFEREREE @)

TREINEBEAKELE ZREFAREEE
BRABBEENEERBRBAONER

23.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (conTinUED)

The following table sets out the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade and bills receivables using a provision matrix:

RZB-Z5+-A=1-H bl
As at 31 December 2022 Past due
—ER —E=F% BB=F wct
Less than 1 year 1 to 3 years Over 3 years Total
BHEEBEX Expected credit loss rate 19.24% 26.96% 100% 21.82%
BEEEARETT) Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) 74,529 12,709 1,631 88,869
BHEEER(ARET ) Expected credit losses (RMB'000) 14,337 3,426 1,631 19,394
RZZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H e
As at 31 December 2021 Past due
—FR —B=F HB=F @
Less than 1 year 1to 3 years Over 3 years Total
BB EEHRE Expected credit loss rate 0.1% 0.0% 100.0% 9.0%
ZEEENRETT) Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) 12,781 513 1,300 14,594
BHEEERB(ARET L) Expected credit losses (RMB'000) 13 = 1,300 1,313

MERE A RRABEERETRES T
NFtERBESEE - AHRESBEEDER
BYRXRGE MBBXRDENE S EKFIA
MEREENREOBERIELEEEH R
HIEHEL -

BHREFERERRENREBRREE
BT

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The expected credit
losses are calculated based on the migration rate, which is based on the
historical data of payments of trade and bills receivables and management’s
expectation of bad debt.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade and bills
receivables are as follows:

—E-—F —E-—4F

AR¥T AR®ETF T

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

REAT At the beginning of the year 1,313 1,475
REEEFEE (F:E8) Impairment losses, net (note 8) 18,081 (162)
RER At the end of the year 19,394 1,313

HEER (RE)BRAE —T-—FFRH
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—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

UWENEE 24.CONTRACT ASSETS
—E-= —E-—4F
AR¥F T AR®EF T
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
HEMEEERNE LKA Contract costs arising from the sale
of properties 277,084 248,320

BEEEEFEGARA (EEREERYEHEE
EHMEERS) TRE ANEEETEHT
NEIE - REREAREERESEREBER
HE -MZEZ—F—H—8  &6HEE (0
BEERE) @B AARM 227,970,000 7T °
R=ZZF-_=—F+=_A=+—H BEHHEITH
B NBRMEIE A ARY 92,482,000t (=
T—-—F: AR¥149,917,0007T) * B#
mEBTFGESRNBERBE -

25.%;1#%‘5 CEBERHE MR R
I

Management expected that the contract costs, which represented primarily
sales commission for obtaining property sale contracts, are recoverable.
The Group has deferred the amounts paid and will charge them to profit or
loss when the related revenue is recognised. As at 1 January 2021, contract
assets (net of loss allowance) amounted to RMB227,970,000. As at 31
December 2022, the amounts amortised and charged to profit or loss were
RMB92,482,000 (2021: RMB149,917,000), and there was no impairment
loss in relation to the remaining balance.

25.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

—E-C8F —E-—4F
AR¥T T ARBTT
gz 2022 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
TR A 18 K2 H b ] Ui [B] 7 18 Prepaid taxes and other tax
recoverables 622,231 3,465,082
P LT BT /B8 2 B ) SE 45 IR AR SR R IE Due from non-controlling
shareholders of the subsidiaries @) 8,663,774 7,801,856
e B8 R 1E R 3 R0 b R HE Y Progress prepayments for acquisition
HEETENR of land use rights for development - 2,907,951
Hhizs Other deposits 1,645,862 1,174,724
THIREERS Deposits for land auction 10,000 321,987
BEERCRTAR RIA Prepayments for construction cost 1,411,280 258,663
8 5 AR E A Y R 18 R FE R IE Outstanding receivables arising from
the sale of equity interests b) 1,800 21,800
B 4 3 30 B AR R Y (R 55 = 5 BVR Advance to third parties related to
land auction 15,369 74,167
H b U 3k T8 Other receivables (b) 4,413,147 3,123,781
16,783,463 19,150,011
BB Impairment (246,121) (46,237)
16,537,342 19,103,774
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BAEMRE BRERHEMERRK

5 (&)

GEX

(a)

(b)

HRERMHE AR MIEERRERIE - AEEY
BRMTBR R D RIEITRET G - R E R
EHEXNEL  FEIAEEETHEARN
MBRBARMEL  BRAEERBRE-_T_=
FT_A=+—ALFERRBHEEFBAR
#4,368,000T  HIE SN BEGEHELRE
BEENSEFE (ST =—F &) -

S0 85 65 AR A B AE O R (8B R R GR B LA e Ho i
WFBERREMEEELNEERR AEBRE
BHEEBEEERERD JETRERNRE 7
BEREBRAVSERIAKE AR M B REE
FREEEANBBERABEMEREERME -
BE-_T-_—F+-_A=+—RHULFE KAE£H
HRAEHEEFEE AR 195,516,0007T © Hik
HERBREGELESREEBEENSETE (=
T=—4F: ARM12,565,0007T) °

ST AA EREERRER T & B & A& BT I3 MR8 M0 R
SREEE BN RKKIABR  mEBRBHLHT
BT E -

25.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (conTtinUED)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

For receivables from non-controlling shareholders of the subsidiaries, the Group performed
impairment assessment on each subsidiary individually. Due to the deterioration of the real
estate industry in Mainland China which affecting certain of the Group’s subsidiaries were
not satisfied their financial performance and lead to the Group recognised the ECLs of
RMB4,368,000 which are measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs during the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

With respect of credit risk arising from outstanding receivables arising from the sale of
equity interests and other receivables and other assets, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL with significant balances individually. The credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but not credit-impaired due to the deterioration
of the financial position of some particular debtor. The Group recognised the ECLs of
RMB195,516,000 which are measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs during the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB12,565,000).

The remaining financial assets included in the above balance related to receivables for
which was no recent history of default and past due amounts, and the loss allowance was
assessed to be minimal.

FEWFIBERERENSESH T The movements in provision for impairment of receivables are as follows:
—sg=-= —E-—4F
ARETT ARBTT

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH) At the beginning of the year 46,237 33,672
REEIEFERE (HE8) Impairment losses, net (note 8) 199,884 12,565
RER At the end of the year 246,121 46,237

HEER (K@) BRAT T -__—FF3#H
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26.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

=== —E-—4F

ARMT T ARBTTT

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

JELETIRE (R AFE) Unlisted investments, at fair value 4,946 840,117

EAFEETRESTESRHBBEEITHIEY
EmMERETR ZFREWRARGOES
BAFEFABGNEREE  RESEA
HWRERETRARINAERFE -

1. R RBITHEER

The above unlisted investments were wealth management products and
structure deposits issued by financial institutions in the PRC. They were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at FVTPL as their contractual cash
flows are not solely payments of principal and interest.

27.CASH AND BANK BALANCES

—E-F —E-—4F

AR¥T T AREET T

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’'000

e MIRITHE S Cash and bank balances 4,645,193 8,448,078
B XRHIE e Less: Restricted cash (793,213) (77,778)
MEREMRBRER S Cash from property pre-sale proceeds (2,413,981) (3,741,155)
TE HATE 3K Time deposits - (330,000)
BT R Pledged deposits (242,067) (1,367,222)
HeEkREeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,195,932 2,931,923

RIBEBETBER  NEEME TYERE
AEABETREFATENIEERITER
ERER®R -RZT__F+=A=+—8 "
ZYEBEEFIEAARY2,413,981,000
TT(ZZE=—%F: AR¥3,741,155,0007T) °
RZZEZZF+ZA=+—H ZRHIR
& BESE A ARK325546,000T (= F
——%: AR¥77,778,0007T) ELEE
BB RZTEZ—F+ZA=1+—H ' 4&&%
5] B 1 %7 B 52 #E 09 )& 12 5 7A 1 4 R I 5 A
RITHERAB AR 467,667,000 (=
—FER)

Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property development
companies of the Group are required to place certain amounts of cash
in designated bank accounts for specified use. As at 31 December 2022,
such property pre-sale proceeds amounted to RMB2,413,981,000 (2021:
RMB3,741,155,000). As at 31 December 2022, the restricted cash
included construction loan mortgages amounted to RMB325,546,000
(2021: RMB77,778,000). As at 31 December 2022, bank deposits of
RMB467,667,000 (2021: Nil) were restricted as to use by the Group due to
legal actions against the Group.
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7. B e RBITESR )

R—ZZE-_—_F£+-_A=+—8B ' AE
33,355,000t (ZE=-—F: AR¥
836,468,0007T) MERTTIF R E &G - {E
RBITREMEROERRE (BHFE31) -
RZB-ZF+-_A=1+—8B ' AREK
208,712,000t (ZE2E=——F : ARK
530,754,0007T) B RITIFREER - ER
B RBER B ERRENERAERG

27.CASH AND BANK BALANCES (conTinUED)

Bank deposits of RMB33,355,000 (2021: RMB836,468,000) were pledged
as security for bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2022 (note
31). Bank deposits of RMB208,712,000 (2021: RMB530,754,000) were
pledged as security for purchasers’ mortgage loans, construction of projects
and notes payable as at 31 December 2022.

S8 —EF-—4F
AR¥T T AREET T
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

RERREFEY Cash and cash equivalents
AR E Denominated in R\VB 1,195,520 2,905,952
LAZETTEHAE Denominated in US$ 250 2,075
LA TTEHAE Denominated in HK$ 162 23,896
1,195,932 2,931,923

ARBISERLAREMER - BRES
B A m) KON B IR AR D) R CHETE - BE I
NEEERE)  AEEBBEREETT
SMNERXBHRITEARB LB SEMER

RITRSBETRRTHERNRRFH X
R RITEBRTREOMEBOCENEE
ASEMRT A RRSEEYNRmER
HRTEBE -

HERHRE  EERER  MERERF
FERE  EHMFEFALRERREFEY
ETAMERATRBEELSREER - AEE
ERFEXREEE EERFERARRE R
BeSEWNEERR B 116 02 AR &
RIEHE I AR 1218 AR EE BB
BRE AEFEESEEBRELTERX -

HEER(EB)ARAR T _FFR

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents approximated to their fair values.

The internal credit rating of restricted cash, pledged deposits, cash from
property pre-sale proceeds, time deposits and cash and cash equivalents
was regarded as the grade of performing. The Group has assessed that
the credit risk of restricted cash, pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents has not increased significantly since initial recognition and it
has measured the impairment based on 12-month expected credit losses,
and has assessed that the expected credit losses are immaterial.
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—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022
28.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of each
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

S8 —EF-—4F

AR T ARBFIT

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’'000

—F LA Less than 1 year 3,401,893 6,284,308
—F LA E Over 1 year 3,430,337 302,805
6,832,230 6,587,113

BHRNFERENRBELAERRS 28 -
BERREIEEHS

RBEHER AR BEZENTBERENE

EOERRBSEEE  EAFEREEAE
BREEMRS -

WHEHMENREREFER

Trade and bills payables are unsecured and interest-free and are normally
settled based on the progress of construction.

The fair values of trade and bills payables as at the end of the reporting

period approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts due to their
relatively short maturity terms.

29.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

—EC-_F —T-—F
ARBT ARETTT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEAT B /B8 X B ) FEHE AR AR 3R Due to non-controlling shareholders and
T A B BR FRIE predecessor shareholders of the subsidiaries 1,520,693 1,722,914
HIEEMEREANES Deposits related to sales of properties 524,848 277,711
W RR EEE = R R BB Outstanding payables arising from the
FERTFRIE acquisition of equity interests 172,134 140,411
HEZFENRES Retention deposits related to construction 634,208 567,506
B TE RIEAR Payroll and welfare payable 66,764 117,456
B+ E AR E Prepayments from third parties related to land
E=FEMNK auction 100,000 110,000
H b %18 M B b0 Other tax and surcharges 4,885,640 6,351,292
H Others 2,483,208 1,951,225
10,387,495 11,238,515

H A [ A< SRR K B A R FE R AR AR BR K BT AR
RBRAEEM R BRERER - RFR
Hib A FRIEN A EREEEREERS

Other payables and advances from non-controlling shareholders and
predecessor shareholders of subsidiaries are unsecured and repayable on
demand. The fair values of other payables at the end of year approximated
to their corresponding carrying amounts.
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30.EMAE
BHEAHAENRBENT

30.CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

—E-—F B —4F

ARET T ARBFIT

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

EHaE Contract liabilities 59,196,853 70,018,866

ARBERBYEHECNMBRRHRERRA
BEPEENR AREBATRBESLO (X
EREMEFERIFE) L AT BT RER
HR_TF_—F—A—H AaHNEESHE
A AR 68,791,434,000 7T °

JMLEFERITREMER

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing schedules as
established in the property sales contracts. Payments are usually received
in advance of the performance under the contracts which are mainly from
property development and sales. As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities
amounted to RMB68,791,434,000.

31.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

—E-CE —E-F
2022 2021
BEBRHZ(%) ER  ARETR  EEFE(%) ER ARETR
Effective Effective
interest interest

rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000

B Current
RTEN- BEA Bank loans - secured

EEH- 5EA Other loans - secured

HEpES - EE A Other loans - unsecured

RERTERN Current portion of long term

AL H-FEH bank loans - secured

REEETH Current portion of long term
H#ASH- HEA other loans - secured

3.70-15.00  on demand 580,220 3.70-7.50 2022 650,000
or 2023
it 3

7.00-15.00  on demand 1,395,900  6.50-15.00 2022 3,004,327
or 2023
it S 3

125  ondemand 66,166 - 2022 -
or 2023
“BC=E

5.20-9.50  on demand 2,774,539 5.61-15.00 2022 1,617,230
or 2023
REXY
“EC=E

6.8-15.00  on demand 7,908,371 6.8-15.00 2022 8,708,547
or 2023
RERY
ZEC=E

12,725,196 14,040,104

HEER (RE)BRAE —T-—FFRH
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REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (conTinuED)

—E-CF —E--%
2022 2021
BRFIE(%) ER  ARETR  EEFE(%) ER  ARBTE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
£k Non-current
ROEH- BER Bank loans - secured 5.15-8.64 202425 8055491 515780  2023-24 10326475
ZE_MEE
“ECHE
HipEH - 5HEA Other loans - secured 3.20-12.00 2024-25 2,063,859  6.80-13.50 2023-24 5,056,200
ZE_MEE
“ECHE
LS5 EEH Other loans - unsecured 4.60 2024 150,000 = = =
ZEmE
10,269,350 15,382,675
22,994,546 29,422,779
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NFERBITREMMER 2

31.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (conTinUED)

—E-= —E-—4F
AR¥F T AR®EF T
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
DR Analysed into:
AR THRERNRITER Bank loans repayable
—FRIZENX Within one year or on demand 3,354,759 2,267,230
E_F In the second year 7,855,491 2,718,300
FEEFAF(HEMEBELN) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 200,000 7,608,175
11,410,250 12,593,705
AR AT ERPR (B AR A E b & 3K Other borrowings repayable
—FRHIZER Within one year or on demand 9,370,437 11,772,874
F_F In the second year 2,172,199 4,160,200
FoEFAF(HEEMERIELN) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 41,660 896,000
11,584,296 16,829,074
22,994,546 29,422,779

RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H AEEDHE
TAARMEHE -

BEASENE TERGZ  ~&EELE
B ERNEMENSBRERINEL B
EEEREREREBE RZTZZF+=
A=+—H ' AEEBETHERITREME
FHAESENSEAARY3,764,978,000
T B EN AEENETELRELR
BH - BHGTERITREMEREEARE
3,731,137,000 7T H 38 2 B 4 ([ R XEH
B - BREREE - FTERXXELNERK
EIRAEBR T _F+=_A=+—H
HiRE MBI ARREBEET -

HEER(EB)ARAR T _FFR

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2022.

Pursuant to some of the Group’s borrowings’ agreements, any default
under the Group’s senior notes or borrowings will trigger the cross-default
resulting in the relevant borrowings becoming repayable on demand. As at
31 December 2022, the Group had default of principals on certain interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings of RMB3,764,978,000, meanwhile
the Group was in default of certain senior notes, causing a total amount
of RMB3,731,137,000 interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have
become cross-defaulted (the “cross-default borrowings”) and repayable
on demand. All cross-default borrowings are presented under current
liabilities in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022.
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AEEE TRTREMETATINEEFR
o ZEEERRSHEROREENT
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31.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (conTinUED)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured by the
pledges of the following assets with carrying values at the end of the
reporting period:

S8 —EF-—4F

ARBT ARBTT

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’'000

M - BB K& (fiEE14) Property, plant and equipment (note 14) 5,260 6,030
REME (M 16) Investment properties (note 16) 765,387 240,500
AR Y (K1E21) Properties under development (note 21) 31,985,839 37,881,847
BRER (FH5E27) Pledged deposits (note 27) 33,355 836,468

ARBEEBEFERS  GTERITREAM
fERH A FEERREERS  RARBEL
EHRZEERAAEERBYE =%
BB IRBITM SN EIEDL -

R-ZTE-_—F+_-_A=+—8 FTEEM
ERAKR®6,089,908,000 A EEE T
B ARMEBRERER(ZZEZ—F: A
R #334,636,000T) ' WHAEESE T4
B R A D R R AR AR o

R-EBE-—F+-A=+—0 ERIRFEMRE
BEfHLERRESE AARES 196,224,000 T
(ZE=——%: ARK#¥09,161,132,0007T) #J
ETRITREMETIRERER -

The management of the Company has assessed that the fair values of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the fact that such borrowings were made between
the Group and independent third party financial institutions based on
prevailing market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2022, bank and other borrowings of
RMB6,089,908,000 was guaranteed by the pledged equity interests
of certain subsidiaries of the Group (2021: RMB334,636,000) and was
guaranteed by the pledged equity interests of certain joint ventures and
associates of the Group.

The Controlling Shareholder, Mr. Chen Guoxiang, has guaranteed certain

of the bank and other borrowings of up to RMB 8,196,224,000 as at 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB9,161,132,000).
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NFERBITREMMER 2

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H ZEKRKBE
NRERKEFBEZLIARZAARE
8,062,675,000 T (—ZE=— —4F : AR¥
8,075,801,0007T) ®) & T #R1T R H b & 5K IR
HIER o

R-ZT-_—F+_A=+—8 ' EIRKEERE
BN ARFEEXEBRBRATAREAA
R #¥888,900,000c (ZE=-—F : ARK
359,000,0007T) M & F R 17 & H fib f& 542
FHIELR o

R-Z-_—F+—_A=+—8 HBAFHN
HFERBRR LGB EER AR AREZ A
AR# 795000000 (T = —F: AR
# 795,000,000 7T) #) & T R 17 K& E {85 3K
REPELR -

R-IEBE-_—F+-A=+—0 4401 %8
TRBREREIEEHE (E8) ERAF AR
% & AR 140,600,000 T Y & TR 1T R H
B IR MR - FMRTREMERER
—E-—F—REE-

R-EBE-—F+-F=+—8 A40EN
TIRBERFEEXRREARAAARSA
AR #140,600,000 TH & FIR1T R H A {E
IRMER - PRI REMERER T
——HFHAEE-

R-ZTB-_—F+-A=+—8 A% EHN
TR RERPRBEEERAAAERE S
AR #98,970,000 c K & F iR 17 & E fth (&
FIREIER - FHRITREMERER=-Z
——F—REE-

HEER(EB)ARAR T _FFR

31.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (conTinUED)

A family member of the Controlling Shareholder, Ms. Zhu Guoling,
has guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to
RMB8,062,675,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB8,075,801,000).

A company controlled by controlling shareholder, Shinsun Industrial Group
Co., Ltd. has guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of up
to RMB888,900,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB359,000,000).

A non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries, Shanghai Julian Investment
Co., Ltd. has guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of up
to RMB795,000,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB795,000,000).

A controlling shareholder of joint venture, Agribusiness Real Estate (Group)
Co., Ltd. had guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of
up to RMB140,600,000 as at 31 December 2021. The bank and other
borrowings mentioned above had been repaid on January 2022.

A joint venture, Zhejiang Sunflower Health Industry Development Co.,
Ltd. had guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of up
to RMB140,600,000 as at 31 December 2021. The bank and other
borrowings mentioned above had been repaid on May 2022.

A controlling shareholder of joint venture, Ningbo Zhongjing Real Estate
Co., Ltd. had guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of
up to RMB98,970,000 as at 31 December 2021. The bank and other
borrowings mentioned above had been repaid on January 2022.
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NEERE 32.SENIOR NOTES
RZB--fF WIB--% RZB-Z%
-A-H HRRELD EREE FEHX UES FEB t+t=A=t-H
ARBTR ARETTR ARBTR ARBT R ARBTR ARETR ARETTR
Exchange
At 1 January offer in Exchange Interest At 31 December
ZBER Name of notes 2022 2022 loss expense Payment  Redemption 2022

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

“ECFEZR1(ME) 2020 Notes 1 (note 1) 1,870,275 (1,446,691) 12,114 29,893 (9,903) (233,589) 222,099
“E--FEZE1(ME2) 2021 Notes 1 (note 2) 1,274,891 - 126,286 148,156 - - 1,549,333
ZEC-EZRI(MHEH3) 2021 Notes2 (note 3) 1,317,724 - 127,488 175,969 - - 1,621,181
TR CEAZII(MEA) 2022 Series A (note 4) - 899,140 57,392 133,672 (106,872) - 983,332
“E--EBZH(MFES) 2022 Series B (note 5) - 547,551 41,352 84,989 - - 673,892
5,049,837

LR Analysed into:
naHs Current portion 5,049,837
R=Z=—F  R=Z=—£F R=Z=—F
—A-H 36 e HERE O Bl +-A=1-H
AEBTTR ARETT AR AEBTT AEBTTR AEBTT ARETT
At 1 January Issued in Exchange Interest At 31 December
ZELR Name of notes 2021 2021 gains expense Payment  Redemption 2021
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
“E-TEZR1(MET) 2020 Notes 1 (note 1) 2,031,651 - (44,656) 242,507 (243,188) (116,039) 1,870,275
ZEIRERR) 2020 Notes 2 1,358,336 - (5,129) 81,987 (1,435,194) - -
“E--EZR1(ME2) 2021 Notes 1 (note 2) - 1,272,229 (8,437) 77,986 (66,887) - 1,274,891
“E--EZRI(ME3) 2021 Notes 2 (note 3) - 1,282,084 (23,707) 59,347 - - 1,317,724
4,462,890

AR Analysed into:
EiEILS) Non-current portion 1258377
ok Current portion 3,204,513
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32.

=~ — 4% +=F=-+—H 31 December 2022

BEREE #)

st

(1

#HE

R=ZZT=-TF—A=+=H =—ZT=TF=A
+/\EI& T-EFRAA-+AH HFEERER
N B FL S TN & 48 % A 300,000,000 € TR =
T _F-ANSNELER (2T FR
1) e ZZE=ZTFERVIRFMNE125%ETE - I
REEESEER AR RIERBRRKARHER 21
ER (FREIFE S BRIERA) ©

R-B-_—FR-_F__F ARBEREMS
FEEBARGHE52,780,000 X TR T _FTF
&1

R=ZZ==F—H+/\A - Xiang Sheng Overseas
Limited R A R A RB A R 2B REE-_T=
ZEZREINEN ((RBRELN]) WAE SRKE
HEEER EXBRENEZK -HBTA2A
134,472,500 X TR T = =F — A FHHA
RIFER ((ZT=Z=FAZR%|]) %86,200,000
ETHR -_ZE_=F—AIHNBRIIFRIE
(ZZE=—=FBRID BT - Al BIEXE
ENABRRIERRREEMN T —_F—
AEBROWFESE RO ARABAPA=T ==
F—R+N\AMNAEMBERE #$fTASESH
19,470,000 T =T - F — AZBRERFET
TESh o

T oTEZRIZBTASLEERHEEMNF
£5.31,890,000 % 7T (15 M AR # 222,099,000 7T)
RZE-——F—A-+=HEHRIEEHE -

KRB —FXANR ARAEETAEAE
200,000,000 T =B = —F XA MNER

ERTZF=_—FFK1]) - —F=—F 5K
REFIEI05% 8 TAKARE THBAR
R

T FERIZBTASLFEREEMNF
£8.222,458,000 % 7T (FHE M AR 1,549,333,000
TR ZZEZ=F R ALAEBHERITEEE -

BUOARRBRA-—S-_—_FOANBHQE
Fﬁ?ﬁ&& TECFEBR2NRBACDEE T

imTFﬁM’JIETE’JQXE%’J& AR
g:ﬁ —FEEIBER_ZT-__FWMAX
ElLtFﬂEq‘J—.E»iL}EAHﬁ?"FﬁﬁTTEE BEES{TE
AL

RZZZZFXAEA  AQFELAE BRI
T FRAERINER T _FE85%
T?EE’JFEErﬁﬂﬂa@$ﬁﬁﬁ3§ﬁﬁﬁ§%ﬂ§ﬁéﬂ
HE-ZE-—FA+tHRHEN KW 2D
AT ER-T_—FXALtHRBTHREER
% %¥8200,000,000 3% T AN & 2 H R BAEH 3K o
R CFBEAZEBRER T -_—_FAtHA
BEEBMARSARAR ([HRAT])BRE

SE SRR ZRTIAG AR HEF
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32.SENIOR NOTES (conTinUED)

Notes:

M

On 23 January 2020, 16 March 2020 and 20 May 2020, Xiang Sheng Holding Limited
privately issued US$300,000,000 aggregate principal amount of senior notes due in January
2022 (the “2020 Notes 1”). The 2020 Notes 1 bear interest at the rate of 12.5% per
annum, and are guaranteed by Shinsun Property Group Co., Ltd. and Mrs. Zhu Guoling (Mr.
Chen Guoxiang as the original guarantor), the Controlling Shareholder.

The Company redeemed the 2020 Notes 1 in the open market in an aggregate principal
amount of US$52,780,000 in 2021 and 2022.

On 18 January 2022, all conditions precedent to Xiang Sheng Overseas Limited's and the
Company’s offer to exchange any and all of the outstanding 2020 Notes 1 (the “Exchange
Offer”) have been fulfilled, and the Exchange Offer has been completed. The remaining
principal US$134,472,500 Series A New Notes due January 2023 (the “2022 Series A”) and
US$86,200,000 Series B New Notes due January 2023 (the “2022 Series B”) were issued.
As a result, the January 2022 Notes validly tendered for exchange and accepted pursuant
to the Exchange Offer have been cancelled. The remaining aggregate principal amount
of US$19,470,000 of the January 2022 Notes remains outstanding, as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 18 January 2022.

The remaining aggregate principal with interest payable thereon of 2020 Note 1 in amount
of US$31,890,000 (equivalent to RMB222,099,000) matured on 23 January 2022 without
any settlement.

On 8 June 2021, the Company issued senior notes with an aggregate principal amount
of US$200,000,000 due in June 2022 (the “2021 Notes 1”). The 2021 Notes 1 bears
interest at the rate of 10.5% per annum, and are guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

The remaining aggregate principal with interest payable thereon of 2021 Note 1 in amount
of US$222,458,000 (equivalent to RMB1,549,333,000) matured on 7 June 2022 without
any settlement.

The notice of acceleration of the 2021 Notes 2 had triggered a cross-default under the
2021 Notes 1 Indenture and that, at the request of the company, trading in the 2021 Notes
2 on the Stock Exchange would be suspended from 9:00 a.m. on 6 April 2022 until further
notice, as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 4 April 2022.

On 7 June 2022, the Company made an announcement that pursuant to the terms of the
2021 Senior Notes 1, all outstanding principal amount of the 2022 Senior Notes together
with the accrued interest thereon became due and payable on the maturity date of 7 June
2022, however, no payment was made by the Company in respect of the principal amount
of the remaining outstanding principal amount of US$ 200,000,000 on 7 June 2022,
together with the interest thereon. The 2022 Senior Notes has been delisted from The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (the “Stock Exchange”) on 7 June 2022.

The remaining aggregate principal with interest payable thereon of 2021 Note 1 in amount
of US$222,458,000 (equivalent to RMB 1,549,333,000) matured on 7 June 2022 without
any settlement.
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32.SENIOR NOTES (conminuED)

Notes: (continued)

(3) The 2021 Notes 2 bear interest at a rate of 12% per annum, and are guaranteed by certain

subsidiaries of the Company.

The Company did not make the interest payment under the 2021 Notes 2 amounting to
US$12,000,000 (equivalent to RMB83,575,000) before the expiry of the grace period,
resulting in the default of the 2021 Notes 2 with an aggregate principal amounting of
US$200,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,392,920,000), as disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 21 March 2022.

In addition, the Company received a notice of acceleration from the holders of
the 2021 Notes 2 on 1 April 2022, resulting in the principal of the 2021 Notes 2,
amounting to US$200,000,000 becoming immediately due and payable. The events
of default as mentioned above resulted in the cross-default of borrowings amounting
to RMB2,273,000,000, and the cross-default of 2021 Note 1 with principal amount
of US$200,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,392,920,000) also the cross-default of 2022
Series A and 2022 Series B with principal amount of US$220,673,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,481,025,000) as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 4 April 2022.

Pursuant to the 2021 Note 2 Indenture, $200,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,392,920,000)
principal amount and unpaid interest payable thereon became due and payable in April
2022. As the Notes matured on August 18, 2023, the Notes has been delisted from The
Stock Exchange upon maturity, as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 18
August 2023.

The remaining aggregate principal with interest payable thereon of 2021 Note 2 in amount
of US$232,774,000 (equivalent to RMB1,621,181,000) matured in acceleration on 1 April
2022 without any settlement.
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RZ=ZZT==F—H+/\A  Xiang Sheng Overseas
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32.SENIOR NOTES (conminuED)

Notes: (continued)

@)

On 18 January 2022, Xiang Sheng Overseas Limited issued 2022 Series A, exchanged from
2020 Note 1 with an aggregate principal amount of US$141,550,000 due in January 2023.
The 2022 Series A bear interest at a rate of 13% per annum, and are guaranteed by the
company also pledged by certain subsidiaries of the Company which is supervised by Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited as Assets Administrative Agent.

In addition, the Company received a notice of acceleration from the holders of the July
2020 Notes on 1 April 2022, resulting in the principal of the 2021 Notes 2, amounting
to US$200,000,000 becoming immediately due and payable. This event triggered the
cross-default of the 2022 Series A with a remaining principal amount of US$134,472,500
(equivalent to RMB 936,547,000), as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
4 April 2022.

The remaining aggregate principal with interest payable thereon of 2022 Series A in amount
of US$ 141,190,000 (equivalent to RMB 983,332,000) matured on 17 January 2023.

After the matured date, January 18, 2023, the remaining principal amount with interest
payable of US$142,207,000 (equivalent to RMB961,348,000) of the 2022 Series A and
interest thereon remained outstanding.

On 18 January 2022, the Company issued 2022 Series B, exchanged from 2020 Note 1 with
an aggregate principal amount of US$86,200,000 due in January 2023. The 2022 Series B
bears interest at a rate of 13% per annum which is unsecure.

In addition, the Company received a notice of acceleration from the holders of the 2021
Notes 2 on 1 April 2022, resulting in the principal of the 2021 Notes 2, amounting to
US$200,000,000 becoming immediately due and payable. This event triggered the cross-
default of the 2022 Series B with a principal amount of US$86,200,000 (equivalent to RMB
600,348,500), as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 4 April 2022.

The remaining aggregate principal with interest payable thereon of 2022 Series B in amount
of US$96,760,000 (equivalent to RMB673,892,000) matured on 17 January 2023.

After the matured date, January 18, 2023, the remaining principal amount of
US$97,406,000 (equivalent to RMB658,484,000) of the 2022 Series B and interest thereon
remained outstanding.
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33.CORPORATE BONDS

RZB-ZF R-B-ZF

-A-H HEBX I +ZA=t-H

ARBT R ARBT R ARET T ARBT R

At 1 January Interest At 31 December

EFEH Name of bonds 2022 expense Payment 2022
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ZZTERS () 2020 Bonds (note) 500,767 38,501 - 539,268
R=Z=—¢ RZIB_-%

-A—-H MER% ES TZR=t-H

ARETT NS AREFT ARETTL

At 1 January Interest At 31 December

BHAH Name of bonds 2021 expense Payment 2021
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

T ERF () 2020 Bonds (note) 500,664 38,605 (38,502) 500,767

RIMERR  AREREENEEESNT

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s corporate bonds were

repayable as follows:

eS8 —E-—4F

AR¥F T AREFTT

2022 2021

RMB’'000 RMB'000

R—FERNER Repayable within one year 539,268 3,267
R-ZENFAER Repayable within two to four years - 497,500
539,268 500,767

fix: R-ZZB-_ZHE+-F—B XEEWBELRQ
RINEMESBEERAALEETASE
A AR ¥500,000,000R =T === A
=t+—RIHHRARELS ([T _ZFF
51)  c —E_TEEHEREMNETTI0%E -

EBEEAR T -_—_F+_-_A A& BENEST
F B AR #38,501,0007T °

WRZTE-_—F+-A=+—R#% —T=
TFEEHA S ARIES500,000000TTR =T
“EH=A—RIHRTEEE " BEFS
TMDARIEE -

Note:  On 1 December 2020, a subsidiary of the Group, Shinsun Property Group Co., Ltd.
privately issued corporate bonds due on 31 March 2023 with a principal amount of
RMB500,000,000 (the “2020 Bonds”). The 2020 Bonds bear interest at a rate of 7.70%
per annum. As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not repay accrued interest of
RMB38,501,000 which was required to be settled on 2 December 2022.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the principal of the 2020 Bonds in the amount
of RMB500,000,000 matured on 1 March 2023 without any settlement and interest
thereon remained outstanding also.
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34. g A 34.SHARE CAPITAL
) 37ia Shares
—E=-= —E-—4F
ARB T AR¥EFTT
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ERITREBHAR Issued and fully paid:
3,043,403,000 (8 F & EE0.013c  3,043,403,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each
FORERELS 199,616 199,616

FAARBIMBARGERE  HEXE
BERIARAR ETHES °

35. & 15

BE-_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HItFE XK
SEFESBREZPNGEARSETH KT
/_j’\o

(a) R 7518

Bt B HE HO 2 B T At B B2 2 U EREY
REZHRERR -

HEER(KE)ARAFE - —FFH

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year.

35.RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
year ended 31 December 2022 are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

(a) Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par value of the
shares issued and the consideration received.
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(b) & A fi#

B B R IR R R S B
S5 45 B 2 0 SR AR A RS B ST AR
ENATEZ AOEALE RANERR
SRR AR R R A R E 1 A
B 2 B B BT IR B K B SR A A S
B T U B A T MRS A A - I 6E
16 T I 2 B M A M B
DRIEE R HATE - BAREN BB
HRGARBEDE -

() ZEREGRE

IRIE R B2 RDE KA B AL H B B8 A B
ABERAR - AEBARBE S M F
10% IREVATE BERFEE - WIHRETE S
ERETE  BEREHREBEEIHEIMEARN
50% ° XAEREF BB AEE TR kALK
BHESSRANNKRR ZERBRFEETR
RIBFEE BB S INERAR - BRI
BHRBITIBIRAEEEMEARN25% °
FRETEHANERY BN EMBE
BRABERREBRENIK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z - —#F+ = F=+—H 31 December 2022
35.RESERVES (conTinUED)

(b) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received for acquisition or disposal of non-
controlling interests in subsidiaries, the issued capital of the then
holding company of the companies now comprising the Group and the
capital contributions from the equity holders of certain subsidiaries now
comprising the Group before the completion of the corporate restructuring
and the reorganisation. This reserve also included gain or loss arising from
acquisition of subsidiaries from the equity holders of the subsidiaries.
Details of the movements in the capital reserve are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(c) Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of association of
the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Group is required to appropriate
10% of its net profits after tax, as determined under PRC GAAP, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its
registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations and in the articles of association of the Group, the statutory
surplus reserve may be used either to offset losses, or to be converted to
increase share capital, provided that the balance after such conversion
is not less than 25% of the registered capital of the Group. The reserve
cannot be used for purposes other than those for which it is created and is
not distributable as cash dividends.
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.S HERERME 36.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
@) EAHELXE (a) Major non-cash transactions

RER  AEERXRPHAEFRAENHESR During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets
B EAREENEEAGBNIIEREARES and lease liabilities of RMB3,105,000 (2021: RMB13,212,000) in respect of
ARM3,105000c (ZE=—F: AR¥ lease arrangements for office buildings and motor vehicles.

13,212,0007T) °

b)BETEHELHNEEZE (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

FERTR BERER EAEYS MERHEL

HfBfER L%ES HE HEEE HakeR

ARBTR ARETR ARBTTR ARBTR ARET T

Interest-bearing  Senior notes Total liabilities

bank and other  and corporate  Due to related Lease  from financing

borrowings bonds parties liabilities activities

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AZZ--F—-f—H As at 1 January 2021 42,285,907 3,890,651 5,809,050 86,117 52,071,725
RETH(FR) /FiE Cash flows (used in)ffrom

RERE financing activities (13,516,354) 2,356,345 423,411 (32,195) (10,615,567)

Eainyiko) New lease = - = 13212 13,212

EITHES Revision of a lease term - - - (6,060) (6,060)

JERHAI S Accrual of interest S 500,432 = 6,601 507,033

BAAE Interest paid - (1,783,771) - - (1,783,771)
FRBEHHNE/(FR) Cash flows from/(used in)

ReRE non-financing activities 653,226 - (1,995,932) - (1,495,932)

RZE-—-%+-f=1-H At 31 December 2021 and

kZZF--%—-H-H 1 January 2022 29,422,779 4,963,657 4,236,529 67,675 38,690,640
BEEBAMA Cash flows used in

ReneE financing activities (4,235,073) (350,364) (673,736) (27,633) (5,286,806)
btk New lease - - - 3,105 3,105
eI & Accrual of interest - 611,180 - 3,541 614,721
FREEY(FE)/ Cash flows (used in)/from

FERENRE non-financing activities (2,193,160) 364,632 (1,172,035) (9,060) (3,009,623)
-y g By el = At 31 December 2022 22,994,546 5,589,105 2,390,758 37,628 31,012,037
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36.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (conTinUED)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash flows is
as follows:

—E-= —E-—4F

ARET AREFTT

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

REEETEE A Within operating activities 342 5,517
REEEEA Within financing activities 27,633 32,195
27,975 37,712

3. BB E 1 A

EBEUF
(a) REFE

HIAEAnSREMARERAA([IHRE
HaZ|) ROMNEZLXEZFR A ([H
MEZE]) 19K IE

RZEZZFNA=Z+H AEEHEIHF
EREBEEEEARAR (LIAER]) &I
mE)IBEEERAR (DIEE]D TR
DEZER® Bt ~EBNAREARE
2,500,000 oW B 7T Fa @ e B R IR (5
AR B TAMEEMTEZEIB35% K% 15%
fEHE) - Btz ASEBEBHAE IAREH=
Er100% KE  ERAEPEZEALEER
MEBAR - IFAEMASEEN T EE B
B WENAAEEEREMERAZRLE
MHHRENBEEDD -

37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Business combination

(a) In the current year

Acquisition of I 745 H 2z & 1% & B % A IR 2 & Jiangxi Futian Yishou
Investment Development Co., Ltd (“Jiangxi Futian Yishou”) and ¥t /W&
B PEEEFRA A Hangzhou Junda Enterprise Management Co., Ltd
(“Hangzhou Junda”).

On 20 September 2022, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with JLFat2 A & % &£ B G R 2 Al Jiangxi Futian Industrial Group
Co., Ltd (“Jiangxi Futian”) and )T 78 £ JI| B % B R A 7] Jiangxi Dachuan
Industrial Co., Ltd (“Jiangxi Dachuan”), pursuant to which the Group
acquired equity interests in Jiangxi Futian Yishou from Jiangxi Futian and
Jiangxi Dachuan with 35% and 15% respectively, for a total consideration
of RMB2,500,000. Since then, the Group had equity interests of 100%
of Jiangxi Futian Yishou, which has been changed from a joint venture
to subsidiary of the Group. Jiangxi Futian Yishou is engaged in property
development in the PRC. The acquisition was part of the Group’s strategy
to expand its market share of property development and operation.
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3. B AR (#) 37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTinUED)
EBLO 8 Business combination (continued)
() REFEE (&) (a) In the current year (continued)

YIAEHAnEREFHBRERA A ([CIAE Acquisition of ;I 74 #5 H# & 1% B B % 5 R 2 & Jiangxi Futian Yishou

AnZ ) ROMEZLXEEFRLA (1 investment development Co., Ltd (“Jiangxi Futian Yishou”) and #i &

MEE]) W IE (&) ZPEEHEER A A Hangzhou Junda enterprise management Co., Ltd
(“Hangzhou Junda”) (continued)

RZZEZZF+—-—HAZ+NB KxEEHEMR On 29 November 2022, the Group entered into a share transfer agreement
MEBEZNRRFT RO EE G - Bk R with the shareholder of Hangzhou Junda, pursuant to which the group
SEWEMMNEER 100% &K#E - Bt 2% - acquired 100% equity interest in Hangzhou Junda. Since then, the Group
REBEAMIMNEER100% KiE - TME had equity interests of 100% of Hangzhou Junda. Hangzhou Junda is
ERPEAEMEEE - WEXAREEE engaged in property management in the PRC. The acquisition was part of
REWEERTISHENHE LD - the Group’'s strategy to expand its market share of property management.

ZEERNIENEERSERIEE R B The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of these entities as at

nup

NTFERAT : the date of acquisition were as follows:
AN MMNEE st
EHRE
wE ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR
Jiangxi
Futian Hangzhou
Notes Yishou Junda Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

M BERRE Property, plant and equipment 14 44 141 185
EEBEEE Deferred tax assets 20 15,418 20,725 36,143
REpyE Properties under development 77,462 6,363 83,825
BEHENSRINE Completed properties held for sale 361,110 11,171 372,281
EZRKURERERREE Trade and bills receivables 12,792 186 12,978
BARE ZEREMERRIE Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables 63,035 1,039,442 1,102,477
FeRELEEY Cash and cash equivalents 9,639 14,275 23,914
BESEAREREMREE Trade and bills payables (259,899) (112,372) (372,271)
HiERRERESER Other payables and accruals (190,123) (826,453) (1,016,576)
BHER Contract liabilities (36,360) (12,753) (49,113)
Ef5iE Tax payable (12,766) (140,725) (153,491)
EWBEEESE Net assets acquired 40,352 - 40,352
BUATAFRXAM Satisfied by:
Be Cash 25,000 - 25,000
EBREHABENEELE Fair value of investments in
REANTVE the joint venture held before
business combination 15,352 - 15,352
40,352 - 40,352
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(a) REFE (&)

HIAEAZSREFRERAA(CIHRE
HaZ ) ROMNEZLXEZFR A ([H
MEZE]) H9K 8 (#)

ERKBHBARNBRESRESNMAT

REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z - —#F+ = F=+—H 31 December 2022
37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

Business combination (continued)

(a) In the current year (continued)
Acquisition of ;I 75 #5 Hz 2 1 & B % 5 R 2 & Jiangxi Futian Yishou
investment development Co., Ltd (“Jiangxi Futian Yishou”) and #1 &

EPEEEFRA 7 Hangzhou Junda enterprise management Co., Ltd
(“Hangzhou Junda”) (continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the subsidiary
is as follows:

PN
BHRS MMEE @t
AR®TT AR¥TR AR%ETxR
Jiangxi Hangzhou
Futian Yishou Junda Total
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BerE Cash consideration (25,000) = (25,000)
e EEHRES RREEEY  Add: Cash and cash equivalents acquired 9,639 14,275 23,914
FAREEBAGRENEN
BeRBEEBYWORE),/ Net (outflow)inflow of cash and cash equivalents
A HEE included in cash flows from investing activities (15,361) 14,275 (1,086)

BUKEBR  ZEEBEEBS R RBE=T ==
F+-_A=Z+—BLEEENGEHEFEB
Uk % R % K A R #105,019,000 T & A R
28,601,000 7T ©

HWEAHER - ZT-_—_F—F—Bi#7 K&
EHEE T - —F+-A=1+—HILFEHN
Wz X BB o Bl A AR 19,723,367,000
TR AR¥3,852,345,000 7T °

Since the acquisition, the revenue and profit contributed by these entities
to the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
RMB105,019,000 and RMB28,601,000, respectively.

Had the combination taken place at 1 January 2022, the revenue and loss
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 would have been RMB
19,723,367,000 and RMB3,852,345,000, respectively.
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3. B B 2 B ()

EBLO 8
(b) ABEFEE

W EFLILBEERXERA A ([FEHE
L)

RZTEZ—FRNA=1+H  FEFLELBR
RiBBENAEFEEF AL AESEEA
BRI E L A S B &% E=#E (B 5T ATH 50% 12
E51%) - At NEE TSI EESEE
SMiE - Bt B EREEREE AAEEW
BT FEEFEAEAMERF R EMERE -
WEKAASBEREREMEREREEMS
MEEREEE I D - BUWEEIAKR - FEFE5L
BHAEIHEE T - —F+-_A=+—
HEFENBERGEERERAZTERE
EBARE?21,519,000 L - HAEHER =Z
——F—A—B#&T rEEEHE-T=—
F+ZA=+—BLEFERE R &R
DR A ANR#43,719,028,000 T & A R #&
421,212,0007¢ °

HEER(EB)ARAR T _FFR

37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

Business combination (continued)
(b) In the prior year

Acquisition of &% & # 4 5A JlE B % 5 R 2 & Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (“Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng”)

On 30 June 2021, Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng's shareholders agreed to
increase the voting rights of the Group from the previous 50% to 51%
by revisiting the articles of association of Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng. As a
result, the Group is able to control Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng, which has
been changed from a joint venture to a subsidiary of the Group since
then. Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng is engaged in property investment in the
PRC. The acquisition was part of the Group’s strategy to expand its market
share of property development and operation. Since the acquisition, Zhuji
Shinsun Hongpeng contributed nil and losses of RMB21,519,000 to the
Group’s revenue and the consolidated profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2021. Had the combination taken place at 1 January 2021, the
revenue and profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
would have been RMB43,719,028,000 and RMB421,212,000, respectively.
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37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

Business combination (continued)

(b) In the prior year (continued)

Acquisition of % B # 4 5A I8 & % 5 R 2 & Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng Real

Estate Co., Ltd. (“Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng”) (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiredc

NFERT : company as at the date of acquisition were as follows:
U BE B HE SR Y
NEE
ARBT T
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
RMB’'000
ME - B KRR Property, plant and equipment 57
BEETHIBEE Deferred tax assets 31,590
R YE Properties under development 1,333,200
TR RUIE - = K H b FE YR IE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 701,167
A [E £ 18 Tax recoverable 44,636
PR HIEE & Restricted cash 180,383
ReRBEEZEED Cash and cash equivalents 124,919
B S RN REMENRERE Trade and bills payables (14,163)
Hh S RIERERTER Other payables and accruals (82,219)
EHEE Contract liabilities (1,954,970)
BEETIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities (27,385)
BAFEFENH#HPEEFEHEE Total identifiable net assets at fair value 337,215
A IERERRRERS (BTEARUEEHE]  Less: Non-controlling interests measured as a proportionate
DGR A TEFBR A T] 34 5 share of the net identifiable assets at fair value at the
BEFEMNLH) acquisition date 168,270
BEEEFE Net assets acquired 168,945
BUATHAZA Satisfied by:
BHe Cash _
EBAHAFANEENERE Fair value of investments in the joint venture held before
NEE business combination 168,945
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3. B B 2 B ()

EBLO 8
(b) ABEERE (&)

WEFEFLIBERXFRA A ([FEFE
ML) (&)

ERKBHBARNBRESRESNMAT

37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

Business combination (continued)

(b) In the prior year (continued)

Acquisition of % B ## 4 A JE & % 5 R 2 & Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (“Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng”) (continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the subsidiary
is as follows:

ARBT T

RMB’'000

ReNRE Cash consideration -

mn:EENRERAESEED Add: Cash and cash equivalents acquired 124,919
AAREEBAEHESREN Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash flows

HekReEBYWRAFHE from investing activities 124,919

BBRBHWBLAANBEERER

(a) REFE
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE K
EETESBRENBARKBEERERE -

(b) RBEEE

WEANEZEXARAR (NEMNES ) K
HIfERrLRMEREXARAR (DRINE
&l e

RZZE-_—FA=-+H AEEEBNE
FEBEBEXERARGIROE R RS Bt
AN £2 [ LA 42 (B A R #5 4,000,000 7T [ 18 M
BRI BB MNEE B R EME A RDRINE D
40%[EHE - Bt 21 - AEEERRINEF
EBAMNER(HEEAASENEGELEET
BB AR 8 85% AR AE

RAREERR  WENBARL MEK—
BER - At - ZRX 5 AR RS B
BRARWBEERAE  MIFBERMBERE
BREIREBAHAARENEHEH

HEER(EB)ARAR T _FFR

Acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition of
subsidiaries

(a) In the current year

The Group had not any acquisition of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2022.

(b) In the prior year

Acquisition of ;& /N 5 & ¥ 5 R A &l (Wenzhou Lanyi Real Estate Co., Ltd.,
“Wenzhou Lanyi”) and its subsidiary, )& /N 8 7£ & ¥ 5 R 2 7 (Wenzhou
Lanbei Real Estate Co., Ltd., “Wenzhou Lanbei”).

On 20 June 2021, the Group entered into a share transfer agreement with
BN EE R B 2B BR A & (Wenzhou Lanli Real Estate Co., Ltd.), pursuant to
which the Group acquired 40% equity interests in Wenzhou Lanyi and its
subsidiary, Wenzhou Lanbei, from Wenzhou Lanli for a total consideration
of RMB4,000,000. Since then, the Group had equity interests of 85% of
Wenzhou Lanli and Wenzhou Lanbei, which had been changed from joint
ventures to subsidiaries of the Group.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the acquisition of the
subsidiaries does not constitute a business. Therefore, the transaction was
accounted for as acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition
of subsidiaries rather than a business combination as defined in IFRS 3
Business Combinations.
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37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTinUED)

Acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition of
subsidiaries (continued)
(b) In the prior year (continued)

The identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired companies as at the

T ¢ date of acquisition were as follows:
KRR SR
AR®EF T
Amounts
recognised
on acquisition
RMB’'000
FEE Y2 Properties under development 827,304
JERTERIE -« Be R H M E RIS Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 555,655
RekBEEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 119
FFERITREMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (500,000)
B EMNZIE L ENEE Trade and bills payables (13,678)
H b et FIE K EE B A Other payables and accruals (859,432)
AR EEFERRE Total identifiable net assets 9,968
B FEE R Less: Non-controlling interests 1,356
BWEEEFE Net assets acquired 8,612

BATHAXA Satisfied by:
Re Cash 4,000
WEAMRAENEERE Fair value of investments in the joint ventures

KEATE held before acquisition 4,612
8,612

BERLBEHNBARNRERESNIT

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the subsidiaries

is as follows:
AR®EF T
RMB’'000
ReRE Cash consideration (4,000)
m:EBENHReRRNEEEY : Add: Cash and cash equivalents acquired 119
FAREBEHAEEHRESREN Net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash
ReERBSEBYRLFE flows from investing activities (3,881)
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BHEME QA 38.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
BEIBEREERTHBHNKRABESS The carrying values of the assets and liabilities on the dates of disposal and
LU deregistration in aggregation were as follows:
—E-—F —E-—4F
Bt & ARBT ARBTT
2022 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BHEEEFE Net assets disposed of:
WE - BB &RE Property, plant and equipment 14 1,192 180
EEFIEE E Deferred tax assets 20 111,307 73
BERPYE Properties under development 4,148,221 =
BIEHEMNE R I ME Completed properties held for sale 1,013,265 28,428
H 5 EUGRIE K E W =& Trade and bills receivables 1,010 279
TERTFRIE - ke R E M BRI Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables 12,205,237 825,880
Al Y [B] 7 IR Tax recoverable 5,809 49,460
RELRENKRE Investments in joint ventures 588,000 -
RERBFEFEYD Cash and cash equivalents 797,530 42,206
FTEERTT R H A B Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings (2,193,160) -
B RNFRBERENEE Trade and bills payables (727,097) (174,628)
HihpEtoE ediz & R ESTER  Other payables, deposits received and
accruals (9,247,295) (603,614)
EHEE Contract liabilities (2,640,798) (16,034)
eI IR Tax payable (106,878) (49,199)
3,956,343 103,033
o IEIE R R Less: Non-controlling interests 508,837 56,960
RNEEEEREE The carrying values attributable to
the Group 3,447,506 46,071
HEN B AR ERE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 8 (179,638) (39,577)
ATFN AT Satisfied by:
Re Cash 68,000 6,494
H fh fE kI8 Other receivables 2,986,927 =
NEERENRE Investments in joint ventures 212,941 -
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38.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continvED)

FALENBARNRE RASEBYHNER An analysis of the cash flows of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
SREDWWT : disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:
—E-—F —T-—4F
AR¥T T ARBTT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BeRE Cash consideration 68,000 6,494
o BN FE e N HMEUWEIE  Less: Prepayments, deposits and other
(REBEERE) receivables (unsettled consideration) — (6,494)
B EHERSEMREEED Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (797,530) (42,206)
FALHEMBARNReREE Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
BYm 88 respect of the disposal of subsidiaries (729,530) (42,206)

9. JXARAEE

39.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

RE|E R R - WEa P RKRGHRE At the end of each reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for

HOHABENT : in the consolidated financial statements were as follows:
—E- T —4F
k23 AR¥ETF T ARBTIT
2022 2021
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
MR TFAEEMEE FHNRLEMRTT  Guarantees given to banks in connection
R ER with facilities granted to purchasers of
the Group's properties (1) 17,767,144 22,250,949
R T RAEE 5 B A M RTT Guarantees given to banks in connection
RAERER with facilities granted to related
parties 2) 320,980 913,650
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9. [AREE 2

st

(1

HEZR(KE)BERLQF

AEERETRITANAKERELHENRTIYE
BERBRHMERRBERHRER - REERZHN
B MERERZBNR  AEEAEAZS
RITEEREEER RS REOERAROER
FEET IS R & o

R L 2B EAMECERTRERITIER
EREROERR MZREEREREREN
ZERTERBRERMEAERERE  WEBRFA
AR EER

AEANERARRDABERERADLEEER
REEMEMBEERRESLLE  BHREA—
BRERERZEMARNERNLFEMFRRSE -

RER - AEBEL R AAREFELEND %
ITHEBERRENERRERFEREEENE
REBR - EERR/MBRENNR  HEAMEN
A EEFER N EERMEE KRR ER E A&
FHRLE R EI R - B A AR AT R

W_E-——FR-FT-——%+-A=+—8 &
S E A BT ELAERARTREMEE
R|ER - EFRA BEARR-_Z=_—F+=
A=+—BRBEFRENBERIELEE (2T
- ) BAAPEITEA -

—T__FFH

39.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTinUED)

Notes:

M

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks
to the purchasers of the Group’s completed properties held for sale. Pursuant to the terms
of the guarantee arrangements, in the case of default on mortgage payments by the
purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage principals
together with any accrued interest and penalties owed by the defaulted purchasers to those
banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were pledged to the banks as
collateral for the mortgage loans, and upon default on mortgage repayments by these
purchasers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal titles and will realise the pledged
properties through open auction.

The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage
loans and ends upon the issuance and registration of property ownership certificates to
the purchasers, which will generally be available within half a year to two years after the
purchasers take possession of the relevant properties.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year in respect of the guarantees
provided for mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the Group’s completed properties
held for sale. The Directors considered that in the case of default on payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties would be sufficient to repay the outstanding
mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty, and therefore, no provision
has been made in connection with the guarantees.

The Group provided guarantees to banks and other institutions in connection with
borrowings made to the related parties as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The Directors
consider that no provision was needed in respect of the guarantees provided to the related
parties as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil) since the fair value is immaterial.



40.BEE F R Z

REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

40.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) AN AR EERF R EREE S ETHR (a) The Group had the following transactions with related parties during
2 - the year:
S8 —EF-—4F
ARBT ARBTT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B3 A RREDER Property and sales management services
HEBERY provided by:
RPEARAR R 2 89 A A Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 92,263 187,227
BT & RHEMNER RS Construction services provided by:
SRR AR R P I AR A A company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 1,734,987 5,393,265
AR IR R SR R A B B A A B Companies controlled by a family member of
the Controlling Shareholder 122,090 294,670
[T 5 A AR E R AR Management consulting services provided to:
BB Joint ventures — 53,244
b/ Associates — 10,603
M NHRRREYFEEE Sale of properties provided to:
%R AR R R kK B A family member of the Controlling
Shareholder - 9,181
BT ABREYERBERERT :  Property and hotel lease services provided to:
EERAR RS D A Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder - 40,023
/N An associate - 95
ZEXRSHBBESLEEFEEREEEHTE These transactions were carried out in accordance with the terms and
B (6K R AR (31T o conditions mutually agreed after negotiation by the parties involved.
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0.BEBEARS (2)

40.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conTinvED)

(b) BRI E M E (b) Other transactions with related parties
—E-CH T4
AR¥TR AR¥ETTT
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
) A B 75 $R A 2 HEAR Guarantees provided to related parties:
SRR AR IR P I A R A Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 166,960 250,000
B &N 7] Associates 56,020 169,510
BEhE Joint ventures 98,000 494,140
Fh BB T PR O HE AR Guarantees provided by related parties:
22 IS A% 3R Controlling Shareholder 8,196,224 9,037,802
ZRRIR R R AL B A family member of the Controlling
Shareholder 8,062,675 8,075,801
EERAR R A E Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 888,900 359,000
HEER (RE)EBERAT —T-—FFK



0.BEBEARS (2)
(c) BEEE B 5 1Yy K B 18 45 6

—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conTinvED)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

—E-CH T4
AR¥F T AR®EF T
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
JE LT A Bk O RO Due from related parties:
2 5 R Trade-related:
& (M) Joint ventures (note) 65,416 60,510
B2 N R) (B RE) Associates (note) 40,317 40,317
RPERR AR RIS A A ) Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 386,477 86,879
7 % IR PR R R Bk B A family member of the Controlling
Shareholder 9,640 9,640
JFE Lz [ Bk O R Due from related parties:
EE G Non-trade-related:
AEE (M) Joint ventures (note) 866,757 1,287,213
B~ a] (s Associates (note) 818,816 1,104,554
PR AR SR 2 ) 5 A Al Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 668,324 1,659,000
XEZEEABEHH A company controlled by a key
—ME AT management personnel 11,901 36,042
2 % IR R R R B B A family member of the Controlling
Shareholder 218 207
2,867,866 4,284,362
VRN Impairment (2,380) =
F Grand total 2,865,486 4,284,362
Mzt - R BEAECERBEARBKIE  KNEE Note: For receivables from joint ventures and associates, the Group performed impairment

REEELEREE QR EFHEITRENG -
ARPEANEHETEEE  HASEEET
AECERBMANRERTE WBERETE
MAE  SIBALEERFADRIERBEHEE
BERARK1,878000T (ZE=—F 1 &) &

ARM502,000 0 (ZFT=—%F : &)

respectively during the year.
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239



REMBRMRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—T - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

NEBERS #) 40.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conTINUED)
(c) BRI 5 HY KRB 1B 45 6F (4) (c) Outstanding balances with related parties (continued)
—EB-F —T-—F
AR¥TR ARETTT
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
JE{<F A BE 0 RROR Due to related parties:
2 5 Trade-related:
Z 1R AR R PRI A A Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 324,946 1,967,260
PR AR IR PR SR R K B 1 1 Companies controlled by family members
EOF/NG]! of the Controlling Shareholder 123,012 174,210
2 AR IR R R R B B A family member of the Controlling
Shareholder 620 620
JE {1 A Bk 05 RROA Due to related parties:
JEE F AN Non-trade-related:
EEhFE Joint ventures 556,369 1,094,786
iR l/NC]| Associates 1,294,904 990,768
SRR AR RIS A A ) Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 10,847 6,699
IR AR R R MR A B 1 Companies controlled by a family member
E/NE] of the Controlling Shareholder 41,488 231
ERRRR K IEK B A family member of the Controlling
Shareholder 38,572 1,955
@t Total 2,390,758 4,236,529
B FRBAEE S VAR R - AEHER Balances with the above related parties were unsecured, non-interest-
BERER - bearing and repayable on demand.
() FEEETEEEEANSHTH (d) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
=== —E-—%F
AR¥T R AREFTT
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
EHIEE RN Short-term employee benefits 15,429 17,430
RIREFT IR Pension scheme contributions 809 1,170
MEZEERREAEZND Total compensation paid to key management
B2 R personnel 16,238 18,600
EEHURE — L H BN E M BHREM Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to the
29 consolidated financial statements.
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41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as
at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

—EB--ft+=RA=+-H

31 December 2022

THEE Financial assets
REE RATE
RAGTEN FTABERHN
cTWMEE cTMEE st
AR¥BTR AR%®Trx AR%¥Tx
Financia
assets Financial
atamortised  assets at
cost FVTPL Total
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Z 2 FEWKRIE R E R & Trade and bills receivables 69,475 - 69,475
Financial assets included in
TABNRIE - e REMERK prepayments, deposits and
FIERE R EE (s 25) other receivables (note 25) 14,478,462 - 14,478,462
BEAFEFABENEREE Financial assets at FVTPL - 4,946 4,946
JE s A Bt 5 RRIR Due from related parties 2,865,486 - 2,865,486
Re RIBITRR Cash and bank balances 4,645,193 - 4,645,193
22,058,616 4,946 22,063,562
—E-__F+-A=+—H 31 December 2022
THEE Financial liabilities
REBHEAARTTE
Hema &
AR¥T
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RMB’000
B 5 RN FIE RN RE Trade and bills payables 6,832,230
STAEMENFIEREEAL Financial liabilities included in other payables
TR B E FEE29) and accruals (note 29) 4,910,243
JE 1~ BB B 5 RRIR Due to related parties 2,390,758
FHERIT R EHAMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 22,994,546
HEBE Lease liabilities 37,628
BEER Senior notes 5,049,837
hEEH Corporate bonds 539,268
42,754,510
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NEZEERNEITHWEMI AR @)

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)
—E-—F+-A=+—H 31 December 2021
THEE Financial assets
birg: Xic! BAFE
RAGTER  FABZEA
ERMEE ERMEE “ant
ARBTIT AREFT AR®ETT
Financia
assets Financial
at amortised assets at
cost FVTPL Total
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
B S W GRTE KRR E R Trade and bills receivables 13,281 = 13,281
FTATER IR - 12E R E AR Financial assets included in
TN 2 R EE (M3 25) prepayments, deposits and
other receivables (note 25) 12,075,924 - 12,075,924
BATEFABSNESREE Financial assets at FVTPL - 840,117 840,117
L Bk 5 SRR Due from related parties 4,284,362 — 4,284,362
IR e MIRITHE Cash and bank balances 8,448,078 - 8,448,078
24,821,645 840,117 25,661,762
—E—F+=ZA=+—H 31 December 2021
THEE Financial liabilities
HHENAGTE
MEmEas
ARBFT
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RMB’000
B EMN IR ENEE Trade and bills payables 6,587,113
T AE fth FEAT SRIE R ERT B AR Financial liabilities included in other payables
T AaE (ME29) and accruals (note 29) 4,492,056
B RARS: 5 3k IB Due to related parties 4,236,529
FTEIRITREMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 29,422,779
HEAE Lease liabilities 67,675
BRER Senior notes 4,462,890
TEEFH Corporate bonds 500,767
49,769,809

—T__FFH
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42.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments
as at the end of each reporting period, other than those with carrying

RAFELT amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:
RAEE NEE
Carrying amounts Fair values
—EC-CF —TET-—F —EC-CF —EBE-—F
+=-B=t+-B +=ZA=+—H +=ZB=+-H +=ZA=+—H
AR¥T R ARETT AR¥ TR AR®F T
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
SREE Financial assets
BATEABENEE® Financial assets at FVTPL
&= (MsE26) (note 26) 4,946 840,117 4,946 840,117
SHEE Financial liabilities
BEZEx (HizE32) Senior notes (note 32) 5,049,837 4,462,890 160,637 1,908,422
¥EEH ([H5E33) Corporate bonds (note 33) 539,268 500,767 536,007 506,910
5,589,105 4,963,657 696,644 2,415,332

EREEDETG  RERRTER BEH
FEWCRIA Ko FE M S 4 - FE M B B O RO - R T
ABRNFRBEREMEYRENEHEE - B
ZEMNFIBRENRE St AEMENRIEA
REEANSRAE  BHBEBIREA -
HERBEREEENESN A ERERET
ERE RAREIHRZETAMREE -

EREFBEAERATARAGERELUER
FEERBEFGEHBENTEMFIRAIRTE
HMARRBEREBMEFRATETABRZN®
BMEECATE BRAFEFAEZNSH
BEZATEFAERATFEERANDERSE
—fH-

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank balances,
trade and bills receivables, amounts due from related parties, financial
assets included in prepayments and other receivables, trade and bills
payables, financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
amounts due to related parties, lease liabilities and asset-backed securities
are approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

Management has estimated the fair values of the financial assets at
FVTPL by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The fair value measurement of the financial assets at FVTPL is
categorised as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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RNEMIENL2TFERATFEE
& oE)

ATRRITREMER BEAZEBERARESR
MNAFEFEAREITAREEBLER 5
ERBEEGIBENT AN EAEIRTE
HARBREREFE RN-_ZT-__F+=-A
=t+—H8 &FE BEAEEEZFNTER
TREMER BEERBRRATGESFNTE
HELEBRHAFEEEHTTEKX o

AEEHREENBRERGH N E M EK
BENEERMIAATEFTENBERIZF
REAMBEGEENEEYBRERESS
R NEREAH  REANBEKRDTE
BMTAEEMNEHER YEEHEMHAN
IZHARE HEAKEMBAERRY
e - HEAERERAEETSEFLETT
Rt AER B R RIS -

RERN F—REF_RATFEFTEZMAL
BER cREENBBYEBEARNBFE=

HEER(EB)ARAR T _FFR

42.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNUED)

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes
and corporate bonds have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a
result of the Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
and other borrowing, senior notes and corporate bonds as at 31 December
2022 were assessed to be insignificant.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the group financial
controller is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The corporate finance
team reports directly to the group financial controller and the board of
directors. At each reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the group financial controller. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the board of directors twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and liabilities.



NEMITENAFERLIFEE
e

RFEER
TRITASESBMTANDTEBER

BEAVPEAENEE:
BAFEFABZNEHEE

REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

42.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNnUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

Financial assets at FVTPL

ERTWE LR EATHRE EAFTUHE
BE WAE AEE
(5—%) (B=#&) (E=4) Y
AR¥ETR AR¥T R AR¥T R AR¥T R
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZE-——F+=-A=+—8H As at 31 December 2022
BRATEFAEGNSREE Financial assets at FVTPL - 4,946 - 4,946
MN-ZE-_—F+-A=+—8° As at 31 December 2021
BRATEFAESNEREE Financial assets at FVTPL - 840,117 = 840,117
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RNE[MIENAFERAFEE 42.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

e FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)
RFEERE) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
PREEAFENERS: Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
FTERITRAMEN Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

BEERWELN EATER EATUEE
HE BARE WA

(E—%) (F=#) (B=#) st
ARBT R ARBTR ARBT R ARBTR
Quoted

prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

RZZE-—_—F+-A=+—8H As at 31 December 2022

FHERITREAMER Interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings - 23,113,768 - 23,113,768
BERE Senior notes - 160,637 - 160,637
TEESR Corporate bonds - 536,007 - 536,007

- 23,810,412 - 23,810,412

EREMBLEE BEAUBE BATAEE
HE BARE AR

(F—#) (B=®) (B=#) BEr
ARETFT ARBT T ARBTT ARETRT
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

R-B-—F+=-A=+—A1 As at 31 December 2021

HERIT REMER Interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings - 29,575,330 - 29,575,330
BERE Senior notes 633,847 1,274,575 - 1,908,422
TrEER Corporate bonds 506,910 - - 506,910

1,140,757 30,849,905 - 31,990,662
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SEYEERITESR T A A XER
AEEEREBRITERREMEREEE
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43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include cash and bank
balances, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
payables and other payables, which arise directly from its operations. The
Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, financial assets at FVTPL, other financial liabilities,
amounts due to related parties and amounts due from related parties.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, credit risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the
Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk management. To keep
the Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum, the Group has not used
any derivatives and other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below:

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings set
out in note 30. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages its interest cost using variable
rate bank borrowings and other borrowings.

As at 31 December 2022, if the interest rate of bank borrowings had
increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables held constant, (loss)/
profit before tax for the year of the Group would have decreased/increased
by approximately RMB5,743,000 (2021: RMB5,007,000).
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BUKEREEBEEREE ®)

(b) 51 B Jz1

AEEERZEBRER -AHRBRERRE
AEBERSMRITERREBERE - E¥R
EILaHE - UEEINERREBEATE -

43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (conTinuED)

(b) Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures mainly
arise from the Group’s cash and bank balances and senior notes. The
currency in which they are denominated is US$. There is no significant
impact on foreign currency risk.

EY-1%:
E= 5 R
@, CRd)  #&m0RD)  #EGRD)
% ARBTT ARBTR

Increase/

(decrease) in Increase/ Increase/
US$ or HK$ (decrease) (decrease)
rate in profit in equity
% RMB'000 RMB’'000

—E-—#+-A=+—H 31 December 2022
i A R HE 5 22T B If the RMB weakens against US$ 5% (81,794) (81,794)
i AR H & 7T LR If the RMB strengthens against US$ +5% 81,794 81,794
i A R T T B If the RMB weakens against HK$ 5% 100,085 100,085
i A RSB T Bk If the RMB strengthens against HK$ +5% (100,085) (100,085)

—E-—&+-A=+—8H 31 December 2021
AR KT TR’ If the RMB weakens against US$ -5% (2,449) (2,449)
fid AR ¥ 5 370 £ If the RMB strengthens against US$ +5% 2,449 2,449
fid AR 5 & T T2 If the RMB weakens against HK$ -5% 58,795 58,795
fid AR 5 AT £ If the RMB strengthens against HK$ +5% (58,795) (58,795)

HEER(KE)ARAFE - —FFH
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43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (conTinuED)

(c) Credit risk

The Group classifies financial instruments on the basis of shared credit
risk characteristics, such as instrument type and credit risk ratings for the
purpose of determining significant increases in credit risk and calculation
of impairment. To manage risk arising from trade and bills receivables,
the Group has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are made only
to counterparties with an appropriate credit history and management
performs ongoing credit evaluations of the Group’s counterparties. The
credit period granted to the customers is generally six months and the
credit quality of these customers is assessed, taking into account their
financial position, past experience and other factors. The Group also has
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue receivables. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of trade and bills receivables to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no
significant concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

Management makes periodic collective assessments for financial assets
included in prepayments and other receivables and amounts due from
related parties as well as individual assessments on the recoverability of
other receivables and amounts due from related parties based on historical
settlement records and past experience. The Group has classified financial
assets included in prepayments and other receivables and amounts due
from related parties in Stage 1 and continuously monitored their credit risk.
The Directors believe that there is no material credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding balance of financial assets included in prepayments
and other receivables and amounts due from related parties. Maximum
exposure and year-end staging.
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BEBHEEREBEEEREE &) 43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (conTINUED)

() EER &) (c) Credit risk (continued)

TREVNERAEECEEBRRNEEERR The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to
EeEERR (FEEREHER  RIEH credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on past
ERFTEBEE DL EXARSE NI E due information unless other information is available without undue cost

B A SERR) URFRBEESE -T2 or effort, and year-end staging classification. The amounts presented are
e FHIESRMEENLREEK S RER gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure to credit risk
SRS B - for the financial guarantee contracts.
R=ZB=-=f+=A=+—H As at 31 December 2022
1218 A
HEEER EEGEARNEERE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
£-BR E-RER E=EBR  EiLhE @
ARBTR AR¥TRT ARBTR AR®TR AR%®TR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

B SRR R EREE Trade and bills receivables - - - 88,869 88,869
SAEMTE RER Financial assets included in
HitERR BN ERERE prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 14,491,076 233,507 - - 14,724,583
BATEFABSNEREE Financial assets at FVTPL 4,946 = = = 4,946
FE U BB 5 300E Due from related parties - 2,865,486 = - 2,865,486
B RFITHHR Cash and bank balances 4,645,193 = = - 4,645,193

19,141,215 3,098,993

88,869 22,329,077
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AND POLICIES (conTtinuED)

REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

() EER &) (c) Credit risk (continued)
R-ZZE-_—F+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2021
128/ /A
HEEHB BEGESNEHEEER
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
F-ME  EZRBE  FZRER &% st
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B S RWFE RN E & Trade and bills receivables - = = 13,281 13,281
SABRMRE - BER Financial assets included in
HthERFENSREE prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 12,122,161 - - - 12,122,161
BATEFABRNERHEE Financial assets FVTPL 840,117 = = = 840,117
JE U B 5 TR0 Due from related parties 4,284,362 = = - 4,284,362
Be RFITHE R Cash and bank balances 8,448,078 = = - 8,448,078
25,694,718 - - 13281 25,707,999
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BYEYERAREEEZERBEK #)

(d) "B & = B
AEENEERBERERFERITREME
REFBESEHRBEIE2HNTE - K

SERKBETYERRERE -

AEBNEREHRIZERARUBNRGTE
MERMBENIHERAT

43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (conTtinuED)

(d) Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings. Cash flows are closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of
each reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted payments, is as
follows:

REX Z@ANKN =ZE+={A —£H0E @zt

ARBTT ARBTR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR%TR
Less than 3to 12

Ondemand 3 months months  Over 1 year Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

—E--%#4+=-fB=+-H 31 December 2022
B oENTERENRE Trade and bills payables 6,832,230 - - - 6832230
Hi e FE R B R Other payables and accruals 10,387,495 - - - 10,387,495
JEfT R 3R Due to related parties 2,390,758 - - - 2,390,758
HEBME Lease liabilities - 8,717 21,559 17,334 47,610
STERITRAMER Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 8573412 1475820 4363426 11,887,818 26,300,476
BEZR Senior notes 5,051,738 - - - 5,051,738
rEES Corporate bonds 541,708 - - - 541,708
33,777,341 1,484,537 4,384,985 11,905,152 51,552,015
REX Z@EANA ==+-BF —FNlLt @t
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTRT AR®TR
Less than 3t0 12
Ondemand 3 months months ~ Over 1 year Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—E-—-#4+-A=+-H 31 December 2021
BIRNFERENER Trade and bills payables 6,587,113 - - - 6,587,113
HiENFRIBRESER Other payables and accruals 11,238,515 = = - 11,238,515
JERT R 5 0B Due to related parties 4,236,529 = = - 4,236,529
HEERE Lease liabilities - 7,123 21,093 45,890 74,106
HERITRAMBER Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings - 13,800,265 1,170,930 17,601,659 32,572,854
BERE Senior notes - 1,992,725 1,418593 1,428,157 4,839,475
T¥ESH Corporate bonds - - 38,500 538,500 577,000

22,062,157 15,800,113 2,649,116 19,614,206 60,125,592
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43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (conTinuED)

(e) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided
by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes, within net debt, trade
and bills payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due to related
parties, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and other financial
liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits and restricted
cash. Capital represents equity attributable to owners of the parent. The
gearing ratio as at the end of each reporting period was as follows:

—E-= —E-—%F

ARET T AREF T

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

B HEMNZRIE R ENEE Trade and bills payables 6,832,230 6,587,113
H fth FE A SR IE R FERT B Other payables and accruals 10,387,495 11,238,515
JE 1~ BB B 5 RIR Due to related parties 2,390,758 4,236,529
BEER Senior notes 5,049,837 4,462,890
TEESH Corporate bonds 539,268 500,767
HERITREMMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 22,994,546 29,422,779
B IRe RIRITE S Less: Cash and bank balances (4,645,193) (8,448,078)
B FE Net debt 43,548,941 48,000,515
HRARER AE LR Equity attributable to owners of the parent 3,868,492 7,717,713
BEARREEFEE Capital and net debt 47,417,433 55,718,228
BEBGBHE Gearing ratio 92% 86%
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MEEBERFERERZNIEERE 44.PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
Ft 1B 2 = NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

AEEEEEANFEREROMNBRRFE Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
oy interests are set out below:

FERERE SEREFER FFER S

HEREBDL ERFEEFR Rtk
% AR#F T AR®T T
Percentage Loss for
of equity the year  Accumulated
interest held by allocated to balances of
non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
interests interests interests
% RMB’'000 RMB’000
—E-_-f+=ZHA=+-—H 31 December 2022
EEREEMEMZEAR AT Shanghai Jubo Real Estate
(=33 =H)) Development Co., Ltd.
("Shanghai Jubo") 17.5 (37,756) 1,212,497
HBHELBEMERBZEAR  Zhuji Shinsun Hongyue Real Estate
NE) ([FEEBEELH]) Development Co., Ltd.
("Zhuji Shinsun Hongyue”) 49 (4,729) 968,530

JEfERR iR DEEIFER FEFER A B

REREBS L R EEE e
% ARBT T ARBTT
Percentage Loss for
of equity the year Accumulated
interest held by allocated to balances of
non-controlling  non-controlling  non-controlling
interests interests interests
% RMB’000 RMB’000
—2--f%+-A=+-—H 31 December 2021
EEBEEEMEMZEER QA Shanghai Jubo Real Estate
(TEEBE]) Development Co., Ltd.
("Shanghai Jubo") 17.5 (1,570) 1,250,253
LA BEERZ AR Zhuji Shinsun Hongyue Real Estate
~al ([EEFEELB]) Development Co., Ltd.
("Zhuji Shinsun Hongyue”) 49 (6,558) 973,259
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44, PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (conTinuED)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of the

above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company

eliminations:

31 December 2022

tEBE  EEH4LM
ARET R AR¥ET T
Shanghai  Zhuji Shinsun
Jubo Hongyue
RMB’000 RMB’000
Iz Revenue = =
S 5 Total expenses (275,549) (9,650)
FNEE Loss for the year (275,549) (9,650)
FALHEEGBREE Total comprehensive loss for the year (275,549) (9,650)
AT %75 FE1h - Attributable to:
B RAHE A Owners of the parent (237,793) (4,921)
FEPE R Non-controlling interests (37,756) (4,729)
(275,549) (9,650)
TENE E Current assets 15,378,786 4,884,593
FERBEE Non-current assets 84,883 10,994
mEN B E Current liabilities (801,234) (2,920,383)
ERBEME Non-current liabilities (7,793,676) -
LA &5 FEfh - Attributable to:
ISYNCIEZ 2N Owners of the parent 5,656,262 1,006,674
FEPE R Non-controlling interests 1,212,497 968,530
6,868,759 1,975,204
KEEBARS REFE Net cash flows used in operating activities (68,458) (112,292)
KREFBAEHRESMNEFA Net cash flows generated from investing
activities 87 -
MEEDAEREREBFEAE Net cash flows generated from financing
activities 64,251 79,390
RekBeEBYHIFE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,120) (32,902)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.

255



REMBRMRMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—T - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022

MEBERFEREZNFEZE

Kl NG ),

44, PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (conTinuED)

31 December 2021

EERE  EBHLELAE
ARBFIT ARBFIT
Shanghai Zhuiji Shinsun
Jubo Hongyue
RMB’000 RMB’000
& Revenue = =
S 5 Total expenses (8,970) (13,384)
FNEE Loss for the year (8,970) (13,384)
FRNEEEBELRE Total comprehensive loss for the year (8,970) (13,384)
AT &7 A Attributable to:
UNSIEZ RN Owners of the parent (7,400) (6,826)
FEPE R Non-controlling interests (1,570) (6,558)
(8,970) (13,384)
mENEE Current assets 15,448,515 5,328,229
ERBEE Non-current assets 19,080 6,355
mEBEE Current liabilities (625,613) (3,348,341)
EREEE Non-current liabilities (7,697,675) =
7,144,307 1,986,243
DAT%??)?EE\E : Attributable to:
NEER A Owners of the parent 5,894,054 1,012,984
3H I = Non-controlling interests 1,250,253 973,259
7,144,307 1,986,243
LEEHMARSREFEE Net cash flows used in operating activities (637,120) (1,959,183)
KHEEHMARESREFHE Net cash flows used in investing activities (1,189) =
MEEDAEREREFH Net cash flows generated from financing
activities 643,379 2,000,000
Be MBS EYEIMNFE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,070 40,817
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REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F - —HF+=H=+—H 31 December 2022
45. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of each
reporting period:

S8 —EF-—4F
ARBT AREFTT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ERTRME ARG REE - Contracted, but not provided for:
MERERS Property development activities 21,427,858 26,459,241
15 B + 4 (i PR AEE Acquisition of a land use right 271,271 1,767,731
21,699,129 28,226,972

46.Lt B F

EFHBEFEENHIPAGAFTER 22
% -

47. 3R EHI &R EE

RZZTZ=F=R  ARRRENB A A
AHEEEARARRBHEAEAARE
500,000,000 T A RIER ([ZE =T F(&
F)ETER -

RZZEZ=FHNA AEEE-_T_TFE
HZEFFAEAMERIBEREER=F2
—EoRF=A UESN L ERAERAE
EWBRRIZYMEERERM - WIHIN =F
TEFBEEFIFNERARAES55% -

46.COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current
year's presentation.

47.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In March 2023, the Company and its subsidiary, Shinsun Property Group
Co., Ltd commenced the extension offer to the corporate bonds with a
principal amount of RMB500,000,000 (the “2020 Bonds").

In April 2023, the Group has obtained approval from the bondholders of
the 2020 Bonds for further extension of the maturity date for 3 years to
March 2026 with additional land use right and property of the Group’s
subsidiaries as collateral. Furthermore, the interest rate of 2020 Bonds has
adjusted to 5.5% per annum.
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48. 75 A B 2 Bt B AR OR 3/ 48.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

RBEBRAAARA TR RKER AT Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

S8 —EF-—4F
AR®T ARBFIT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSET
AN E A A Investments in subsidiaries = =
ERBEEET Total non-current asset = =
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
RERREFEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,001 29,030
e BT B A R IE Due from subsidiaries 7,557,176 6,404,536
MBNE E4RER Total current assets 7,558,177 6,433,566
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
BEER Senior notes 3,838,234 1,334,238
H At JE A< FRIE KBS B Other payables and accruals 399,083 342,297
mEBEERE Total current liabilities 4,237,317 1,676,535
RBEEERE NET CURRENT ASSETS 3,320,860 4,757,031
EEAERRBERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,320,860 4,757,031
FRBEME NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
BEER Senior notes = 1,258,377
JEmBBEETE Total non-current liabilities - 1,258,377
BEFE Net assets 3,320,860 3,498,654
B’ EQUITY
i @N Share capital 199,616 199,616
s Reserves 3,121,244 3,299,038
IxiEa5E Total equity 3,320,860 3,498,654
258 HEER (@) BRAT —T - _—FFR



REMBHRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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48.7K 1 8] Z B B AR R 3k (42 48.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (conTiNUED)
AARIREBRER AT ¢ A summary of the Company’s total equity is as follows:
R R 1% E RitEE HmE
AR®TR ARBTR ARET T ARETR
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RZZZ—F—R—HZ&#H Balance at 1 January 2021 199,616 4,147,720 (94,359) 4,252,977
EER-ZF_ZFRERE Final 2020 dividend declared - (512,150) - (512,150)
ENEEEBERE Total comprehensive loss

for the year - - (242,173) (242,173)
R-E-_—F+-A=1+—H Balance at 31 December 2021 and

R—ZE-_—F-F—Hz&% 1 January 2022 199,616 3,635,570 (336,532) 3,498,654

FREEEELE Total comprehensive loss

for the year - - (177,794) (177,794)
“T-—F+-A=+—HZ%&#%  Balance at 31 December 2022 199,616 3,635,570 (514,326) 3,320,860
49. 41t B 4R & B IS R R 49.APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

R-EBE-_NFEF—A=+—AREUHHRRE The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
ExgEURENE - issue by the board of directors on 31 January 2024.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

e -3 —E-F e S 23 —E-NF —E-NE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ARETR AREBTI AREF ARETF AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
& Revenue 19,701,040 43,719,028 46,638,413 35,519.54 14,215,302
HERA Cost of sales (17,963,839) (39,012,806) (38,203,574) (27,039,427) (11,216,121)
E Gross profit 1,737,201 4,706,222 8,434,839 8,480,111 2,999,181
B Finance income 60,047 305,334 75,773 151,883 71,376
Hep W A Kz Other income and gains 519,621 131,074 108,621 95,375 36,789
HERNHAT Selling and distribution expenses (625,220) (1,266,839) (1,240,318) (1,073,899) (752,944)
THREY Administrative expenses (505,837) (987,351) (1,132,252) (1,125,445) (1,119,107)
HEbx Other expenses (678,705) (306,661) (101,221) (199,371) (69,630)
RENENDTFEYE Fair value gains on investment
properties (46,397) 17,726 4,624 22,406 13,978
OB EHEMERT Write-down of completed
MENBRFPOE properties held for sale and
properties under development (292,747) (134,611) - - -
HioEWRFIRRE Impairment of other receivables (220,345) (12,403) - - -
R FABEEB B Loss on forfeited land
development projects (1,643,635)
R DN Finance costs (1,547,392) (1,257,317) (1,113,405) (777,570) (432,110)
FEETHRARIEF R EE « Share of profits and losses of:
RELE Joint ventures (63,470) 349,184 2,026 (54,644) (30,492)
/NS Associates 49,772 95,563 (19,770) 11,502 (30,929)
BREAER/ (B8R) Profit/(loss) before tax (3,257,107) 1,639,921 5,018,917 5,530,348 686,062
s (%), # Income tax (expense)/credit (669,470) (1,159,246) (1,965,546) (2,321,393) (258,122)
ERER/ (FR) Profit/(loss) for the year (3,926,577) 480,675 3,053,371 3,208,955 427,940
AT & 7 e - Attributable to:
/NCIE 2PN Owners of the Company (3,878,628) (215,363) 2,646,006 2,312,283 325,047
FIERER Non-controlling interests (47,949) 696,038 407,365 896,672 102,893
(3,926,577) 480,675 3,053,371 3,208,955 427,940
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets 6,266,144 7,273,265 6,182,230 5,572,070 4,177,467
REEE Current assets 110,466,699 138,469,867 153,557,352 125,055,622 117,890,290
BEMAE Total assets 116,732,843 145,743,132 159,739,582 130,627,692 122,067,757
AERARK EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BaE%E Total equity 7,247,789 16,952,356 16,037,036 5,975,116 2,880,859
ERBEE Non-current liabilities 10,502,114 17,384,546 24,265,963 17,267,219 13,697,323
nEERE Current liabilities 98,982,940 111,406,230 119,436,583 107,385,357 105,489,575
BEAE Total liabilities 109,485,054 128,790,776 143,702,546 124,652,576 119,186,898
ERREEEs Total equity and liabilities 116,732,843 145,743,132 159,739,582 130,627,692 122,067,757
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